ORDINANCE

WHEREAS, special service areas may be established pursuant to Article VIl, Sections
6(l) and 7(6) of the Constitution of the State of lllinois, and pursuant to the provisions of the
Special Service Area Tax Law, 35 ILCS 200/27-5 et seq., as amended from time to time (the
“Act’) and pursuant to the Property Tax Code, 35 ILCS 200/1-1 et seq., as amended from time
to time (the “Code”); and

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Chicago (the “City Council”) determines that it
is in the best interests of the City of Chicago (the “City") to establish a special service area to be
known and designated as Special Service Area Number 60 (the “Area”) to provide certain
special governmental services in addition to services provided generally by the City, all as
further provided in this ordinance (the “Special Services”), and further determines to authorize
the levy of an annual ad valorem real property tax in the Area for a period of ten (10) years
sufficient to produce revenues required to provide those Special Services (the “Services Tax”);
and

WHEREAS, the City Council desires to authorize the execution of an agreement with a
service provider for the provision of the Special Services in and for the Area in fiscal year 2014;
now, therefore,

Be It Ordained by the City Council of the City of Chicago:

SECTION 1. Incorporation of Preambles. The preambles of this ordinance are hereby
incorporated into this text as if set out herein in full.

SECTION 2. Findings. The City Council finds and declares as follows:

(a) The Area, as established by this ordinance, consists of contiguous territory in the
City;

(b) The City Council adopted an ordinance on October 16, 2013 authorizing a public
hearing (the “Public Hearing”) to consider the establishment of the Area and the levy of the
Services Tax on the taxable property located in the Area to provide the Special Services;

(c) Notice of the Public Hearing was given by publication at least once not less than
fifteen days prior to the hearing in the Chicago Sun-Times, a newspaper published in and of
general circulation within the City, and notice of the Public Hearing was also given by depositing
said notice in the United States mail addressed to the person or persons in whose name the
general taxes for the last preceding year were paid on each property lying within the Area, not
less than ten days prior to the time set for the Public Hearing. For any properties for which
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taxes for the last preceding year were not paid, the notice was sent to the person last listed on
the tax rolls prior to that year as the owner of the property;

(d) The notice complied with all of the applicable provisions of the Act;

(e) The Public Hearing was held on November 14, 2013 by the Committee on Finance of
the City Council. All interested persons, including all persons owning real property located
within the Area, were given an opportunity to be heard at the Public Hearing regarding any
issues embodied in the notice and have had an opportunity to file with the City Clerk of the City
of Chicago (the “City Clerk”) written objections on such issues;

() The Committee on Finance of the City Council has heard and considered all of the
comments, objections, protests and statements made at the Public Hearing with regard to the
issues embodied in the notice and has determined to recommend to the City Council that it is in
the public interest and in the interest of the City and the Area to establish the Area and to
authorize the levy of the Services Tax, all as provided in this ordinance;

(9) The Public Hearing was finally adjourned on November 14, 2013;

(h) The sixty day period as described in Section 27-55 of the Act, in which an objection
petition to this ordinance may be filed, commenced on November 14, 2013; and

(i) The City Council hereby finds and determines that it is in the best interests of the City
that the Area be established and the Services Tax be authorized, all as set forth herein.

SECTION 3. Area Established. There is hereby established a special service area
located within the City to be known and designated as City of Chicago Special Service Area
Number 60. The approximate street location of said territory consists of the area on Lawrence
Avenue from the North Channel to Kimball, Montrose Avenue from the North Channel to Central
Park, Kedzie Avenue from Ainslie to Irving Park Road, and Irving Park Road from Spaulding to
Sacramento. A legal description of the Area is attached as Exhibit 1 hereto and hereby
incorporated herein. A map of the Area is attached as Exhibit 2 hereto and hereby incorporated
herein. A list of Permanent Index Numbers for the properties in the Area is attached hereto as

" Exhibit 3 and hereby incorporated herein.

SECTION 4. Special Services Authorized. The Special Services authorized hereby
include, but are not limited to: recruitment of new businesses to the Area, rehabilitation
activities, maintenance and beautification activities, new construction, security, coordination of
promotional and advertising activities, strategic planning for the Area, and other technical
assistance activities to promote commercial and economic development (which may include, but
are not limited to, streetscape improvements, strategic transit/parking improvement including
parking management studies, and enhanced land use oversight and control initiatives). The

-2
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Special Services shall be in addition to services provided to and by the City of Chicago
generally.

SECTION 5. Authorization of Levy. There is hereby authorized to be levied in each
year beginning in 2013 through and including 2022 the Services Tax upon the taxable property
within the Area to produce revenues required to provide the Special Services, said Services Tax
not to exceed an annual rate of 0.425 percent of the equalized assessed value of the taxable
property within the Area. The Services Tax shall be in addition to all other taxes provided by
law and shall be levied pursuant to the provisions of the Code. The levy of the Services Tax for
each year shall be made by annual ordinance, commencing with this ordinance.

SECTION 6. Appropriations. Based on the recommendation of the Department of
Housing and Economic Development, there is hereby appropriated the following sum in the
amount and for the purposes necessary to provide the Special Services in and for the Area
indicated as follows:

SPECIAL SERVICE AREA NUMBER 60
SPECIAL SERVICE AREA BUDGET

For the fiscal year beginning January 1, 2014 and ending December 31, 2014.

EXPENDITURES
Service Provider Agreement
for the provision of Special
Services $423,368
TOTAL BUDGET REQUEST $423,368
SOURCE OF FUNDING
Tax levy not to exceed an annual rate of
0.425 percent of the equalized assessed
value, of taxable property within
Special Service Area Number 60 $423,368
Carryover funds currently available
from prior tax years $00.00

Late collections received by the City of Chicago
attributable to the levy of the Services Tax

3.
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in prior tax years, along with interest income
thereon, if any $00.00

SECTION 7. Levy of Taxes. There is hereby levied pursuant to the provisions of Article
VI, Sections 6(a) and 6(l)(2) of the Constitution of the State of lllinois and pursuant to the
provisions of the Act and pursuant to the provisions of this ordinance, the sum of $423,368 as
the amount of the Services Tax for the tax year 2013.

SECTION 8. Commission Authorized. There is hereby established the Albany Park
Special Service Area Commission (the “Commission”) which shall consist of nine members.
The Mayor, with the approval of the City Council, shall appoint the initial Commission members.
Of the initial Commission members, four members shall be appointed to serve for two-year
terms, and five members shall be appointed to serve for three-year terms. Upon the expiration
of the term of any Commission member, the Mayor, with the approval of City Council, shall
appoint a successor Commission member. Other than the initial Commissioners, each
Commission member shall be appointed to serve for a term of three years and until a successor
is appointed. In the event of a vacancy on the Commission due to resignation, death, inability to
serve, removal by the Mayor, or other reason, the Mayor, with the approval of City Council, shall
appoint a successor. Each successor so appointed shall serve for the remaining term for which
he/she was appointed. The Commission shall designate one member as the Chairman of the
Commission, and he/she shall serve not more than two successive two year terms. The
Commission may establish bylaws for its procedural operation.

The Commission shall have the powers delegated to it in Section 9 hereof. The terms
and powers of the Commission members shall cease upon the termination of the time period for
which the levy of the Services Tax is authorized. The members of the Commission shall serve
without compensation.

SECTION 9. Powers of the Commission. The Commission is hereby granted the
following powers:

(a) to recommend the rate or amount of the Services Tax and an annual budget to the
City Council; and

(b) to recommend a sole service provider contract, including a scope of services and a
contractor therefor, to the City Council for the provision of the Special Services.

SECTION 10. Service Provider Agreement. The Commissioner of the Department of
Housing and Economic Development (the “Commissioner”), or a designee of the Commissioner,
are each hereby authorized, subject to approval by the Corporation Counsel as to form and
legality, to enter into, execute and deliver an agreement with North River Commission, an lllinois
not-for-profit corporation (the “Organization”), in substantially the form attached hereto as

-4-
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Exhibit 5 and hereby made a part hereof (the “Service Provider Agreement”), and such other
supporting documents, if any, as may be necessary to carry out and comply with the provisions
of the Service Provider Agreement, with such changes, deletions and insertions as shall be
approved by the persons executing the Service Provider Agreement.

SECTION 11. Protests And Objections. If a petition of objection is filed with the
Office of the City Clerk signed by at least fifty-one percent (51%) of the electors residing within
the boundaries of the Area and by at least fifty-one percent (51%) of the owners of record of the
property included within the boundaries of the Area within sixty (60) days following the
adjournment of the Public Hearing, all as provided for in Section 27-55 of the Act, as a result of
such filing this ordinance shall be deemed to be null and void, the Area shall not be created, the
Services Tax shall not be levied, and the Service Provider Agreement shall not be entered into
or shall be deemed to be null and void and no compensation in connection therewith shall be
provided to the Organization. )

SECTION 12. Severability. If any provision of this ordinance or the application of any
such provision to any person or circumstances shall be invalid, such invalidity shall not affect
the provisions or application of this ordinance which can be given effect without the invalid
provision or application, and to this end each provision of this ordinance is declared to be
severable.

SECTION 13. Filing. The City Clerk is hereby ordered and directed to file in the Office
of the County Clerk of Cook County, lllinois (the “County Clerk”), in accordance with Section 27-
75 of the Act, a certified copy of this ordinance containing an accurate map of the Area and a
copy of the public hearing notice attached as Exhibit 4. The City Clerk is hereby further ordered
and directed to file in the Office of the Recorder of Deeds of Cook County, in accordance with
Section 27-40 of the Act, a certified copy of this ordinance containing a description of the Area,
within 60 days of the effective date of this ordinance. In addition, the City Clerk is hereby further
ordered and directed to file in the Office of the County Clerk, in accordance with Section 27-75
of the Act, a certified copy of this ordinance on or prior to December 31, 2013, and the County
Clerk shall thereafter extend for collection together with all other taxes to be levied by the City,
the Services Tax herein provided for, said Services Tax to be extended for collection by the
County Clerk for the tax year 2013 against all the taxable property within the Area, the amount
of the Services Tax herein levied to be in addition to and in excess of all other taxes to be levied
and extended against all taxable property within the Area.

SECTION 14. Conflict. This ordinance shall control over any provision of any other
ordinance, resolution, motion or order in conflict with this ordinance, to the extent of such
conflict.
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SECTION 15. Publication. This ordinance shall be published by the City Clerk, in
special pamphlet form, and made available in her office for public inspection and distribution to
members of the public who may wish to avail themselves of a copy of this ordinance.

SECTION 16. Effective Date. This ordinance shall take effect 10 days after its passage
and publication.
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EXHIBIT 1
Legal Description

See attached pages.
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ALBANY PARK,S. S. A. #60

ALL THOSE PARTS OF THE EAST HALF OF SECTION 14, THE SOUTHEAST
QUARTER OF SECTION 11, THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF SECTION 12, THE WEST
HALF OF SECTION 13, THE WEST HALF OF THE EAST HALF OF SECTION 13, THE
EAST HALF OF THE NORTHEAST QUARTER OF SECTION 23, AND THE WEST HALF
OF THE NORTHWEST QUARTER OF SECTION 24, ALL IN TOWNSHIP 40 NORTH,
RANGE 13 EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, BOUNDED AND DESCRIBED
AS FOLLOWS:

BEGINNING AT THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF LOT 1 OF BLOCK 1 IN AM.
BARNE’S SUBDIVISION OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF THE SOUTHWEST
QUARTER OF THE NORTHEAST QUARTER IN SAID SECTION 14, TOWNSHIP 40
NORTH, RANGE 13, EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, SAID SOUTHWEST
CORNER BEING ALSO THE POINT OF INTERSECTION OF THE NORTH LINE OF WEST
MONTROSE AVENUE WITH THE EAST LINE OF NORTH CENTRAL PARK AVENUE,

THENCE NORTH ALONG SAID EAST LINE OF NORTH CENTRAL PARK
AVENUE TO THE SOUTH LINE OF THE ALLEY FIRST NORTH OF WEST MONTROSE
AVENUE LYING BETWEEN NORTH CENTRAL PARK AVENUE AND NORTH DRAKE
AVENUE;

THENCE EAST ALONG SAID SOUTH LINE OF SAID ALLEY FIRST NORTH OF
WEST MONTROSE AVENUE LYING BETWEEN NORTH CENTRAL PARK AVENUE
AND NORTH DRAKE AVENUE AND ITS EAST EXTENSION TO THE EAST LINE OF
NORTH ST. LOUIS AVENUE;

THENCE SOUTH ALONG SAID EAST LINE OF NORTH ST. LOUIS AVENUE TO
THE SOUTH LINE OF THE ALLEY FIRST NORTH OF WEST MONTROSE AVENUE
LYING BETWEEN NORTH ST. LOUIS AVENUE AND NORTH BERNARD STREET;

THENCE EAST ALONG SAID SOUTH LINE OF THE ALLEY FIRST NORTH OF
WEST MONTROSE AVENUE LYING BETWEEN NORTH ST. LOUIS AVENUE AND
NORTH BERNARD STREET AND ITS EAST EXTENSION TO THE WEST LINE OF THE
ALLEY FIRST WEST OF NORTH KEDZIE AVENUE LYING BETWEEN WEST
MONTROSE AVENUE AND WEST SUNNYSIDE AVENUE;

THENCE NORTH ALONG SAID WEST LINE OF THE ALLEY FIRST WEST OF
NORTH KEDZIE AVENUE LYING BETWEEN WEST MONTROSE AVENUE AND WEST
SUNNYSIDE AVENUE AND ITS NORTH EXTENSION TO THE SOUTH LINE OF THE
NORTHWESTERN ELEVATED RAILROAD;

Alfred Benesch and Company Date: September 6, 2013
205 N. Michigan Ave., Suite 2400, Chicago, I1., 60601
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THENCE WEST ALONG SAID SOUTH LINE OF THE NORTHWESTERN
ELEVATED RAILROAD AND ITS WEST EXTENSION TO THE WEST LINE OF NORTH
KIMBALL AVENUE;

THENCE NORTH ALONG SAID WEST LINE OF NORTH KIMBALL AVENUE TO
THE NORTH LINE OF WEST LELAND AVENUE;

THENCE WEST ALONG SAID NORTH LINE OF WEST LELAND AVENUE TO
THE EAST LINE OF THE ALLEY FIRST WEST OF NORTH KIMBALL AVENUE LYING
BETWEEN WEST LELAND AVENUE AND WEST LAWRENCE AVENUE,;

THENCE NORTH ALONG SAID EAST LINE OF THE ALLEY FIRST WEST OF
NORTH KIMBALL AVENUE LYING BETWEEN WEST LELAND AVENUE AND WEST
LAWRENCE AVENUE AND ITS NORTH EXTENSION TO THE NORTH LINE OF THE
ALLEY FIRST SOUTH OF WEST LAWRENCE AVENUE LYING BETWEEN NORTH
KIMBALL AVENUE AND NORTH BERNARD STREET;

THENCE EAST ALONG SAID NORTH LINE OF THE ALLEY FIRST SOUTH OF
WEST LAWRENCE AVENUE LYING BETWEEN NORTH KIMBALL AVENUE AND
NORTH BERNARD STREET TO THE WEST LINE OF LOT 4 IN BLOCK 66 IN NORTH
WEST LAND ASSOCIATION SUBDIVISION OF BLOCKS 1, 8, AND 2 (EXCEPT THE
EAST 1 ACRE) IN CLARK’S SUBDIVISION OF THE NORTHWEST QUARTER OF THE
NORTHEAST QUARTER OF SECTION 14, TOWNSHIP 40 NORTH, RANGE 13, EAST OF
THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN;

THENCE NORTH ALONG SAID WEST LINE OF LOT 4 IN BLOCK 66 AND ITS
NORTH EXTENSION TO THE CENTERLINE LINE OF WEST LAWRENCE AVENUE;

THENCE EAST ALONG SAID CENTERLINE OF WEST LAWRENCE AVENUE TO
THE CENTERLINE OF NORTH KIMBALL AVENUE;

THENCE NORTH ALONG SAID CENTERLINE OF NORTH KIMBALL AVENUE
TO THE WEST EXTENSION OF THE NORTH LINE OF THE ALLEY FIRST NORTH OF
WEST LAWRENCE AVENUE LYING BETWEEN NORTH KIMBALL AVENUE AND
NORTH CHRISTIANA AVENUE;

THENCE EAST ALONG SAID WEST EXTENSION OF THE NORTH LINE OF THE
ALLEY FIRST NORTH OF WEST LAWRENCE AVENUE LYING BETWEEN NORTH
KIMBALL AVENUE AND NORTH CHRISTIANA AVENUE AND SAID NORTH LINE OF
THE ALLEY FIRST NORTH OF WEST LAWRENCE AVENUE LYING BETWEEN NORTH
KIMBALL AVENUE AND NORTH CHRISTIANA AVENUE AND ITS EAST EXTENSION
TO THE EAST LINE OF THE ALLEY FIRST WEST OF NORTH KEDZIE AVENUE LYING
BETWEEN WEST LAWRENCE AVENUE AND WEST AINSLIE STREET;
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THENCE NORTH ALONG SAID EAST LINE OF THE ALLEY FIRST WEST OF
NORTH KEDZIE AVENUE LYING BETWEEN WEST LAWRENCE AVENUE AND WEST
AINSLIE STREET TO THE SOUTH LINE OF WEST AINSLIE STREET;

THENCE EAST ALONG SAID SOUTH LINE OF WEST AINSLIE STREET TO THE
WEST LINE OF NORTH KEDZIE AVENUE;

THENCE SOUTH ALONG SAID WEST LINE OF NORTH KEDZIE AVENUE TO
THE NORTH LINE OF WEST LELAND AVENUE;

THENCE WEST ALONG SAID NORTH LINE OF WEST LELAND AVENUE TO
THE WEST LINE OF THE ALLEY FIRST WEST OF NORTH KEDZIE AVENUE LYING
BETWEEN WEST LELAND AVENUE AND WEST LAWRENCE AVENUE;

THENCE NORTH ALONG SAID WEST LINE OF THE ALLEY FIRST WEST OF
NORTH KEDZIE AVENUE LYING BETWEEN WEST LELAND AVENUE AND WEST
LAWRENCE AVENUE TO THE NORTH LINE OF THE ALLEY FIRST SOUTH OF WEST
LAWRENCE AVENUE LYING BETWEEN NORTH KEDZIE AVENUE AND NORTH
SAWYER AVENUE;

THENCE WEST ALONG SAID NORTH LINE OF THE ALLEY FIRST SOUTH OF
WEST LAWRENCE AVENUE LYING BETWEEN NORTH KEDZIE AVENUE AND
NORTH SAWYER AVENUE AND ITS WEST EXTENSION TO THE WEST LINE OF
NORTH SPAULDING AVENUE;

THENCE SOUTH ALONG SAID WEST LINE OF NORTH SPAULDING AVENUE
TO THE SOUTH LINE OF THE NORTH 14 FEET OF LOT 8 IN BLOCK 16 IN SAID
NORTH WEST LAND ASSOCIATION SUBDIVISION;

THENCE WEST ALONG SAID SOUTH LINE OF THE NORTH 14 FEET OF LOT 8§
IN BLOCK 16 IN SAID NORTH WEST LAND ASSOCIATION SUBDIVISION TO THE
WEST LINE OF THE 16 FOOT PRIVATE ALLEY FIRST WEST OF NORTH SPAULDING
AVENUE LYING BETWEEN WEST LAWRENCE AVENUE AND WEST EASTWOOD
AVENUE;

THENCE SOUTH ALONG SAID WEST LINE OF THE 16 FOOT PRIVATE ALLEY
FIRST WEST OF NORTH SPAULDING AVENUE LYING BETWEEN WEST LAWRENCE
AVENUE AND WEST EASTWOOD AVENUE TO THE NORTH LINE OF THE
NORTHWESTERN ELEVATED RAILROAD;

THENCE EAST ALONG SAID NORTH LINE OF THE NORTHWESTERN
ELEVATED RAILROAD TO EAST LINE OF LOT 6 IN BLOCK 13 IN NORTH WEST
LAND ASSOCIATION SUBDIVISION OF THE EAST HALF OF THE NORTHEAST
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QUARTER OF SECTION 14, TOWNSHIP 40 NORTH, RANGE 13, EAST OF THE THIRD
PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN;

THENCE NORTH ALONG SAID EAST LINE OF SAID LOT 6 IN BLOCK 13 TO
THE SOUTH LINE OF WEST LELAND AVENUE;

THENCE EAST ALONG SAID SOUTH LINE OF WEST LELAND AVENUE TO
THE CENTERLINE OF NORTH KEDZIE AVENUE;

THENCE NORTH ALONG SAID CENTERLINE OF NORTH KEDZIE AVENUE TO
THE WEST EXTENSION OF THE NORTH LINE OF LOT 20 IN THOMASSON’S THIRD
RAVENSWOOD ADDITION OF BLOCKS 28 AND 29 IN JACKSON’S SUBDIVISION OF
THE SOUTHEAST QUARTER OF SECTION 11 AND THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF
SECTION 12, TOWNSHIP 40 NORTH, RANGE 13, EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL
MERIDIAN;

THENCE EAST ALONG SAID WEST EXTENSION OF THE NORTH LINE OF LOT
20 IN THOMASSON’S THIRD RAVENSWOOD ADDITION AND ALONG THE NORTH
LINE OF SAID LOT 20 TO THE WEST LINE OF THE ALLEY FIRST EAST OF NORTH
KEDZIE AVENUE LYING BETWEEN WEST AINSLIE STREET AND WEST ARGYLE
STREET;

THENCE SOUTH ALONG SAID WEST LINE OF THE ALLEY FIRST EAST OF
NORTH KEDZIE AVENUE LYING BETWEEN WEST AINSLIE STREET AND WEST
ARGYLE STREET TO THE SOUTH LINE OF WEST AINSLIE STREET;

THENCE EAST ALONG SAID SOUTH LINE OF WEST AINSLIE STREET TO THE
EAST LINE OF THE ALLEY FIRST EAST OF NORTH KEDZIE AVENUE LYING
BETWEEN WEST LAWRENCE AVENUE AND WEST AINSLIE STREET;

THENCE SOUTH ALONG SAID EAST LINE OF THE ALLEY FIRST EAST OF
NORTH KEDZIE AVENUE LYING BETWEEN WEST LAWRENCE AVENUE AND WEST
AINSLIE STREET TO THE NORTH LINE OF THE ALLEY FIRST NORTH OF WEST
LAWRENCE AVENUE LYING BETWEEN NORTH TROY STREET AND NORTH KEDZIE
AVENUE;

THENCE EAST ALONG SAID NORTH LINE AND ITS EAST EXTENSION TO THE
EAST LINE OF WEST ALBANY AVENUE;

THENCE SOUTH ALONG SAID EAST LINE OF WEST ALBANY AVENUE TO
THE NORTH LINE OF THE ALLEY FIRST NORTH OF WEST LAWRENCE AVENUE
LYING BETWEEN NORTH TROY STREET AND NORTH ALBANY AVENUE;
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THENCE EAST ALONG SAID NORTH LINE OF THE ALLEY FIRST NORTH OF
WEST LAWRENCE AVENUE LYING BETWEEN NORTH TROY STREET AND NORTH
ALBANY AVENUE AND ITS EAST EXTENSION TO THE WEST LINE OF THE EAST
HALF OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF SECTION 12, TOWNSHIP 40 NORTH,
RANGE 13, EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN;

THENCE NORTH ALONG SAID WEST LINE OF THE EAST HALF OF THE
SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF SECTION 12, TOWNSHIP 40 NORTH, RANGE 13, EAST OF
THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN TO THE NORTH LINE THE SOUTH 251 FEET OF
THAT PART OF LOT 31 LYING NORTH OF THE NORTH LINE OF LAWRENCE
AVENUE IN JACKSON’S SUBDIVISION OF THE SOUTHEAST 1/4 OF SECION 11 AND
THE SOUTHWEST 1/4 OF SECTION 12;

THENCE EAST ALONG SAID NORTH LINE OF SAID SOUTH 251 FEET TO A
LINE 46 FEET EAST OF AND PARALLEL WITH THE WEST LINE LOT 31 AFORESAID;

THENCE SOUTH ALONG SAID EAST LINE OF THE WEST 46 FEET OF LOT 31
AND ITS SOUTH EXTENSION 127.7 FEET;

THENCE EAST ALONG A LINE PARALLEL TO THE SOUTH LINE 4 FEET TO
THE EAST LINE OF THE WEST 50 FEET OF THE EAST HALF OF THE SOUTHWEST
QUARTER OF SECTION 12, TOWNSHIP 40 NORTH, RANGE 13, EAST OF THE THIRD
PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN;

THENCE NORTH ALONG SAID EAST LINE OF THE WEST 50 FEET OF THE
EAST HALF OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF SECTION 12, TOWNSHIP 40 NORTH,
RANGE 13, EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN 125.2 FEET TO THE NORTH
LINE OF OF THE SOUTH 248.5 FEET OF THAT PART OF LOT 31 LYING NORTH OF
THE NORTH LINE OF LAWRENCE AVENUE AFORESAID;

THENCE EAST ALONG SAID NORTH LINE OF SAID SOUTH 248.5 FEET TO THE
EAST LINE OF THE WEST 100 FEET OF THE EAST HALF OF THE SOUTHWEST
QUARTER OF SECTION 12, TOWNSHIP 40 NORTH, RANGE 13, EAST OF THE THIRD
PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN;

THENCE NORTH ALONG SAID EAST LINE OF THE WEST 100 FEET OF THE
EAST HALF OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF SECTION 12, TOWNSHIP 40 NORTH,
RANGE 13, EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN TO THE NORTH LINE OF
THE SOUTH 322.4 FEET OF THE EAST HALF OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF
SECTION 12, TOWNSHIP 40 NORTH, RANGE 13, EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL
MERIDIAN;

THENCE EAST ALONG SAID NORTH LINE OF THE SOUTH 322.4 FEET OF THE
EAST HALF OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF SECTION 12, TOWNSHIP 40 NORTH,
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RANGE 13, EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN 25.3 FEET MORE OR LESS TO
THE SOUTHWESTERLY LINE OF THE SANITARY DISTRICT RIGHT OF WAY;

THENCE NORTHWEST 80 FEET ALONG SAID SOUTHWESTERLY RIGHT OF
WAY LINE;

THENCE NORTHEAST 21.5 FEET TO A LINE NORTHEAST OF AND ADJACENT
TO SAID SOUTHWESTERLY LINE OF THE SANITARY DISTRICT RIGHT OF WAY;

THENCE SOUTHEAST ALONG SAID ADJACENT LINE TO THE NORTH LINE OF
THE SOUTH 322.4 FEET OF THE EAST HALF OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF
SECTION 12, TOWNSHIP 40 NORTH, RANGE 13, EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL
MERIDIAN;

THENCE WEST ALONG SAID NORTH LINE OF THE SOUTH 322.4 FEET OF THE
EAST HALF OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF SECTION 12, TOWNSHIP 40 NORTH,
RANGE 13, EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN TO A POINT ON SAID LINE
7.64 FEET EASTERLY OF AS MEASURED ALONG SAID LINE FROM THE
INTERSECTION OF SAID LINE WITH A LINE BEGINNING ON THE SOUTH LINE OF
LOT 31, 317.8 FEET EAST OF THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF SAID LOT 31, SAID LINE
BEARING NORTH 32°41°30” WEST;

THENCE SOUTH 34°28°41” EAST 133.05 FEET TO A LINE 200 FEET EAST OF
THE WEST LINE OF THE EAST HALF OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF SECTION
12, TOWNSHIP 40 NORTH, RANGE 13, EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN;

THENCE SOUTH ALONG SAID LINE 200 FEET EAST OF THE WEST LINE OF
THE EAST HALF OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF SECTION 12, TOWNSHIP 40
NORTH, RANGE 13, EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN 9.16 FEET;

THENCE SOUTH 32°47°42” EAST TO THE SOUTH LINE OF WEST LAWRENCE
AVENUE;

THENCE EAST ALONG SAID SOUTH LINE OF WEST LAWRENCE AVENUE TO
THE EAST LINE OF LOT 62 IN THE SUBDIVISION OF LOTS 1, 20, 21 AND 40 IN FIRST
ADDITION TO RAVENSWOOD MANOR SUBDIVISION OF THAT PART OF THE EAST
HALF OF THE NORTHWEST QUARTER AND THE WEST HALF OF THE NORTHEAST
QUARTER OF SECTION 13, TOWNSHIP 40 NORTH, RANGE 13, EAST OF THE THIRD
PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN LYING BETWEEN THE SANITARY DISTRICT RIGHT OF WAY
AND FAIRFIELD AND MANOR AVENUE;

THENCE SOUTHEAST ALONG SAID EAST LINE OF LOT 62 IN THE
SUBDIVISION OF LOTS 1, 20, 21 AND 40 IN FIRST ADDITION TO RAVENSWOOD
MANOR SUBDIVISION TO THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID LOT 62 IN THE SUBDIVISION

Alfred Benesch and Company Date: September 6, 2013
205 N. Michigan Ave., Suite 2400, Chicago, I1., 60601
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OF LOTS 1, 20, 21 AND 40 IN FIRST ADDITION TO RAVENSWOOD MANOR
SUBDIVISION;

THENCE WEST ALONG SAID SOUTH LINE OF LOT 62 IN THE 'SUBDIVISION
OF LOTS 1, 20, 21 AND 40 IN FIRST ADDITION TO RAVENSWOOD MANOR
SUBDIVISION TO AN ANGLE POINT IN SAID SOUTH LINE OF SAID LOT 62;

THENCE SOUTHWEST ALONG SAID SOUTH LINE OF SAID LOT 62 TO AN
ANGLE POINT IN SAID SOUTH LINE OF SAID LOT 62;

THENCE WEST ALONG SAID SOUTH LINE OF SAID LOT 62 AND ITS WEST
EXTENSION TO THE WEST LINE OF NORTH MANOR AVENUE;

THENCE SOUTH ALONG SAID WEST LINE OF NORTH MANOR AVENUE TO
THE SOUTH LINE OF THE ALLEY FIRST SOUTH OF WEST LAWRENCE AVENUE
LYING BETWEEN NORTH MANOR AVENUE AND NORTH SACRAMENTO AVENUE;

THENCE WEST ALONG SAID SOUTH LINE OF THE ALLEY FIRST SOUTH OF
WEST LAWRENCE AVENUE LYING BETWEEN NORTH MANOR AVENUE AND
NORTH SACRAMENTO AVENUE AND ITS WEST EXTENSION TO THE EAST LINE OF
THE ALLEY FIRST EAST OF NORTH KEDZIE AVENUE LYING BETWEEN WEST
LAWRENCE AVENUE AND WEST LELAND AVENUE;

THENCE SOUTH ALONG SAID EAST LINE OF THE ALLEY FIRST EAST OF
NORTH KEDZIE AVENUE LYING BETWEEN WEST LAWRENCE AVENUE AND WEST
LELAND AVENUE AND ITS SOUTH EXTENSION TO THE NORTH LINE OF THE
CHICAGO TRANSIT AUTHORITY RAILROAD;

THENCE EAST ALONG SAID NORTH LINE OF THE CHICAGO TRANSIT
AUTHORITY RAILROAD TO THE SOUTHWEST LINE OF THE NORTH SHORE
CHANNEL;

THENCE SOUTHEAST ALONG SAID SOUTHWEST LINE OF THE NORTH
SHORE CHANNEL TO THE SOUTH LINE OF THE CHICAGO TRANSIT AUTHORITY
RAILROAD;

THENCE WEST ALONG SAID SOUTH LINE OF THE CHICAGO TRANSIT
AUTHORITY RAILROAD TO THE EAST LINE OF LOT 1 IN BLOCK 38 OF
NORTHWESTERN LAND ASSOCIATION SUBDIVISION OF THE WEST HALF OF THE
NORTHWEST QUARTER OF SECTION 13, TOWNSHIP 40 NORTH, RANGE 13, EAST OF
THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN (EXCEPT THE RIGHT OF WAY OF THE
NORTHWESTERN ELEVATED RAILROAD);

Alfred Benesch and Company Date: September 6, 2013
205 N. Michigan Ave., Suite 2400, Chicago, Il., 60601
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THENCE SOUTH ALONG SAID EAST LINE OF LOT 1 IN BLOCK 38 OF
NORTHWESTERN LAND ASSOCIATION SUBDIVISION AND ITS SOUTH EXTENSION
TO THE SOUTH LINE OF WEST SUNNYSIDE AVENUE;

THENCE WEST ALONG SAID SOUTH LINE OF WEST SUNNYSIDE AVENUE TO
THE CENTERLINE OF THE ALLEY FIRST EAST OF NORTH KEDZIE AVENUE LYING
BETWEEN WEST SUNNYSIDE AVENUE AND WEST MONTROSE AVENUE;

THENCE SOUTH ALONG SAID CENTERLINE OF THE ALLEY FIRST EAST OF
NORTH KEDZIE AVENUE LYING BETWEEN WEST SUNNYSIDE AVENUE AND WEST
MONTROSE AVENUE TO THE EAST EXTENSION OF THE SOUTH LINE OF LOT 11 IN
BLOCK 65 IN SAID NORTHWESTERN LAND ASSOCIATION SUBDIVISION;

THENCE EAST ALONG SAID EAST EXTENSION OF THE SOUTH LINE OF LOT
11 IN BLOCK 65 TO THE WEST LINE OF LOT 36 IN SAID BLOCK 65;

THENCE SOUTH ALONG SAID WEST LINE OF LOT 36 IN BLOCK 65 AND ITS
SOUTH EXTENSION TO THE CENTERLINE OF THE ALLEY FIRST NORTH OF WEST
MONTROSE AVENUE LYING BETWEEN NORTH TROY STREET AND NORTH KEDZIE
AVENUE;

THENCE EAST ALONG SAID CENTERLINE AND ITS EAST EXTENSION TO THE
SOUTHWEST LINE OF THE NORTH SHORE CHANNEL,;

THENCE SOUTHEAST ALONG SAID SOUTHWEST LINE OF THE NORTH
SHORE CHANNEL TO THE CENTERLINE OF WEST MONTROSE AVENUE;

THENCE WEST ALONG SAID CENTERLINE OF WEST MONTROSE AVENUE TO
THE NORTH EXTENSION OF THE WEST LINE OF NORTH CALIFORNIA AVENUE;

THENCE SOUTH ALONG SAID NORTH EXTENSION OF THE WEST LINE OF
NORTH CALIFORNIA AVENUE AND THE WEST LINE OF NORTH CALIFORNIA
AVENUE 140.01 FEET TO A POINT 107.01 FEET SOUTH OF THE NORTH LINE OF LOT
1 IN HENRY SEVERIN’S RESUBDIVISION OF LOTS 1 TO 8 IN BLOCK 8 IN ROSE PARK
SUBDIVISION OF THE EAST 1/2 OF THE SOUTHWEST 1/4 OF SECTION 13;

THENCE NORTH 89°10°00” WEST 66.61 FEET;
THENCE NORTH 42°35°54” WEST 6.52 FEET;

THENCE NORTH 00°11°41” EAST 3.31 FEET;

Alfred Benesch and Company Date: September 6, 2013
205 N. Michigan Ave., Suite 2400, Chicago, 11., 60601
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THENCE NORTH 89°10°00” WEST 42.26 FEET TO THE EAST LINE OF THE
ALLEY FIRST EAST OF NORTH MOZART STREET LYING BETWEEN WEST CULLOM
AVENUE AND WEST MONTROSE AVENUE;

THENCE SOUTH ALONG SAID EAST LINE OF THE ALLEY FIRST EAST OF
NORTH MOZART STREET LYING BETWEEN WEST CULLOM AVENUE AND WEST
MONTROSE AVENUE TO THE EAST EXTENSION OF THE NORTH LINE OF LOT 43 IN
BLOCK 1 IN ROSE PARK SUBDIVISION OF THE EAST HALF OF THE SOUTHWEST
QUARTER OF SECTION 13, TOWNSHIP 40 NORTH, RANGE 13, EAST OF THE THIRD
PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN;

THENCE WEST ALONG SAID EAST EXTENSION OF THE NORTH LINE OF LOT
43 IN BLOCK 1 IN ROSE PARK SUBDIVISION AND THE NORTH LINE OF LOT 43 IN
SAID BLOCK 1 AND ITS WEST EXTENSION TO THE WEST LINE OF NORTH
FRANCISCO AVENUE;

THENCE SOUTH ALONG SAID WEST LINE OF NORTH FRANCISCO AVENUE
TO THE SOUTH LINE OF LOT “A” IN THE CONSOLIDATION OF LOTS 1 TO 6 IN
BLOCK 3 IN SAID ROSE PARK SUBDIVISION;

THENCE WEST ALONG SAID SOUTH LINE OF LOT “A” IN THE
CONSOLIDATION OF LOTS 1 TO 6 IN BLOCK 3 AND ITS WEST EXTENSION TO THE
WEST LINE OF THE ALLEY FIRST EAST OF NORTH RICHMOND STREET LYING
BETWEEN WEST MONTROSE AVENUE AND WEST CULLOM AVENUE;

THENCE SOUTH ALONG SAID WEST LINE OF THE ALLEY FIRST EAST OF
NORTH RICHMOND STREET LYING BETWEEN WEST MONTROSE AVENUE AND
WEST CULLOM AVENUE TO THE NORTH LINE OF THE SOUTH 2.8 FEET OF LOT 41
IN BLOCK 3 OF SAID ROSE PARK SUBDIVISION;

THENCE WEST ALONG SAID NORTH LINE OF THE SOUTH 2.8 FEET OF LOT 41
IN BLOCK 3 OF SAID ROSE PARK SUBDIVISION AND ITS WEST EXTENSION TO THE
WEST LINE OF NORTH RICHMOND STREET;

THENCE NORTH ALONG SAID WEST LINE OF NORTH RICHMOND STREET TO
THE SOUTH LINE OF LOT 1 IN BLOCK 4 OF SAID ROSE PARK SUBDIVISION;

THENCE WEST ALONG SAID SOUTH LINE OF LOT 1 IN BLOCK 4 OF ROSE
PARK SUBDIVISION AND ITS WEST EXTENSION TO THE WEST LINE OF NORTH
SACRAMENTO AVENUE;

THENCE NORTH ALONG SAID WEST LINE OF NORTH SACRAMENTO
AVENUE TO THE NORTH LINE OF THE ALLEY FIRST SOUTH OF WEST MONTROSE

Alfred Benesch and Company Date: September 6, 2013
205 N. Michigan Ave., Suite 2400, Chicago, Il., 60601
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AVENUE LYING BETWEEN NORTH SACRAMENTO AVENUE AND NORTH WHIPPLE
AVENUE;

THENCE WEST ALONG SAID NORTH LINE OF THE ALLEY FIRST SOUTH OF
WEST MONTROSE AVENUE LYING BETWEEN NORTH SACRAMENTO AVENUE AND
NORTH WHIPPLE AVENUE AND ITS WEST EXTENSION TO THE WEST LINE OF
NORTH ALBANY AVENUE,;

THENCE NORTH ALONG SAID WEST LINE TO THE SOUTH LINE OF LOT 2 IN
BLOCK 1 IN BALDWIN DAVIS SUBDIVISION OF THE NORTHEAST QUARTER OF THE
WEST HALF OF THE WEST HALF OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF SECTION 13,
TOWNSHIP 40 NORTH, RANGE 13, EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN;

THENCE WEST ALONG SAID SOUTH LINE OF LOT 2 IN BLOCK 1 IN BALDWIN
DAVIS SUBDIVISION AND ITS WEST EXTENSION TO THE WEST LINE OF THE
ALLEY FIRST EAST OF NORTH TROY STREET LYING BETWEEN WEST MONTROSE
AVENUE AND WEST CULLOM AVENUE;

THENCE SOUTH ALONG WEST LINE OF THE ALLEY FIRST EAST OF NORTH
TROY STREET LYING BETWEEN WEST MONTROSE AVENUE AND WEST CULLOM
AVENUE TO THE NORTH LINE OF LOT 13 IN THE RESUBDIVISION OF LOTS 1 TO 6
AND VACATED PART OF THE STREET NORTH OF AND ADJACENT TO LOT 1 IN
BLOCK 1 OF CHAS. N. HALE’S SUBDIVISION OF THE NORTHWEST QUARTER OF
THE WEST HALF OF THE WEST HALF OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER IN SECTION
13, TOWNSHIP 40 NORTH, RANGE 13, EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN
TOGETHER WITH LOTS 42 TO 46 AND VACATED STREET NORTH AND ADJACENT
LOT 46 IN BLOCK 1 OF SAID BALDWIN DAVIS SUBDIVISION;

THENCE WEST ALONG SAID NORTH LINE OF SAID LOT 13 AND ITS WEST
EXTENSION TO THE WEST LINE OF NORTH TROY STREET;

THENCE SOUTH ALONG SAID WEST LINE OF NORTH TROY STREET TO THE
NORTH LINE OF LOT 11 IN SAID RESUBDIVISION OF LOTS 1 TO 6 AND VACATED
PART OF THE STREET NORTH OF AND ADJACENT TO LOT 1 IN BLOCK 1 OF CHAS.
N. HALE’S SUBDIVISION OF THE NORTHWEST QUARTER OF THE WEST HALF OF
THE WEST HALF OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER IN SECTION 13, TOWNSHIP 40
NORTH, RANGE 13, EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN TOGETHER WITH
LOTS 42 TO 46 AND VACATED STREET NORTH AND ADJACENT LOT 46 IN BLOCK 1
OF BALDWIN DAVIS SUBDIVISION;

THENCE WEST ALONG SAID NORTH LINE OF SAID LOT 11 TO THE EAST
LINE OF THE ALLEY FIRST EAST OF NORTH KEDZIE AVENUE LYING BETWEEN
WEST CULLOM AVENUE AND WEST MONTROSE AVENUE;

Alfred Benesch and Company Date: September 6, 2013
205 N. Michigan Ave., Suite 2400, Chicago, 11., 60601
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THENCE SOUTH ALONG SAID EAST LINE OF THE ALLEY FIRST EAST OF
NORTH KEDZIE AVENUE LYING BETWEEN WEST CULLOM AVENUE AND WEST
MONTROSE AVENUE AND ITS SOUTH EXTENSION TO A LINE 127 FEET NORTH OF
THE NORTH LINE OF WEST IRVING PARK ROAD;

THENCE EAST ALONG SAID LINE 127 FEET NORTH OF THE NORTH LINE OF
WEST IRVING PARK ROAD TO THE EAST LINE OF NORTH ALBANY AVENUE;

THENCE SOUTH ALONG SAID EAST LINE OF NORTH ALBANY AVENUE TO
THE SOUTH LINE OF THE ALLEY FIRST NORTH OF WEST IRVING PARK ROAD
LYING BETWEEN WEST ALBANY AVENUE AND WEST WHIPPLE STREET;

THENCE EAST ALONG SAID SOUTH LINE OF THE ALLEY FIRST NORTH OF
WEST IRVING PARK ROAD LYING BETWEEN WEST ALBANY AVENUE AND WEST
WHIPPLE STREET AND ITS EAST EXTENSION TO THE WEST LINE OF NORTH
SACRAMENTO AVENUE;

THENCE SOUTH ALONG SAID WEST LINE OF NORTH SACRAMENTO
AVENUE TO THE NORTH LINE OF THE ALLEY FIRST SOUTH OF WEST IRVING
PARK ROAD LYING BETWEEN NORTH WHIPPLE STREET AND NORTH
SACRAMENTO AVENUE;

THENCE WEST ALONG SAID NORTH LINE OF THE ALLEY FIRST SOUTH OF
WEST IRVING PARK ROAD LYING BETWEEN NORTH WHIPPLE STREET AND
NORTH SACRAMENTO AVENUE AND ITS WEST EXTENSION TO THE EAST LINE OF
NORTH SPAULDING AVENUE;

THENCE NORTH ALONG SAID EAST LINE OF NORTH SPAULDING AVENUE
TO THE NORTH LINE OF THE ALLEY FIRST NORTH OF WEST IRVING PARK ROAD
LYING BETWEEN NORTH SPAULDING AVENUE AND NORTH SAWYER AVENUE;

THENCE EAST ALONG SAID NORTH LINE OF THE ALLEY FIRST NORTH OF
WEST IRVING PARK ROAD LYING BETWEEN NORTH SPAULDING AVENUE AND
NORTH SAWYER AVENUE TO THE EAST LINE OF THE ALLEY FIRST WEST OF
NORTH KEDZIE AVENUE LYING BETWEEN WEST IRVING PARK ROAD AND WEST
BELLE PLAINE AVENUE;

THENCE NORTH ALONG SAID EAST LINE OF THE ALLEY FIRST WEST OF
NORTH KEDZIE AVENUE LYING BETWEEN WEST IRVING PARK ROAD AND WEST
BELLE PLAINE AVENUE AND ITS NORTH EXTENSION TO THE NORTH LINE OF THE
ALLEY FIRST SOUTH OF WEST BELLE PLAINE AVENUE LYING BETWEEN NORTH
KEDZIE AVENUE AND NORTH SAWYER AVENUE;

Alfred Benesch and Company Date: September 6, 2013
205 N. Michigan Ave., Suite 2400, Chicago, Il., 60601
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THENCE EAST ALONG SAID NORTH LINE OF THE ALLEY FIRST SOUTH OF
WEST BELLE PLAINE AVENUE LYING BETWEEN NORTH KEDZIE AVENUE AND
NORTH SAWYER AVENUE TO THE WEST LINE OF LOT 5 IN BLOCK 4 OF WILLIAM
BOLDENWECK’S ADDITION TO GRANT PARK, A SUBDIVISION OF THE EAST HALF
OF THE SOUTHEAST QUARTER OF THE SOUTHEAST QUARTER OF SECTION 14,
TOWNSHIP 40 NORTH, RANGE 13, EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN;

THENCE NORTH ALONG SAID WEST LINE OF LOT 5 IN BLOCK 4 TO THE
NORTH LINE OF WEST BELLE PLAINE AVENUE;

THENCE WEST ALONG SAID NORTH LINE OF WEST BELLE PLAINE AVENUE
TO THE EAST LINE OF THE ALLEY FIRST WEST OF NORTH KEDZIE AVENUE LYING
BETWEEN WEST BELLE PLAINE AVENUE AND WEST WARNER AVENUE;

THENCE NORTH ALONG SAID EAST LINE OF THE ALLEY FIRST WEST OF
NORTH KEDZIE AVENUE LYING BETWEEN WEST BELLE PLAINE AVENUE AND
WEST WARNER AVENUE AND ITS NORTH EXTENSION TO THE NORTH LINE OF
WEST BERTEAU AVENUE;

THENCE WEST ALONG SAID NORTH LINE OF WEST BERTEAU AVENUE TO
THE WEST LINE OF THE ALLEY FIRST WEST OF NORTH KEDZIE AVENUE LYING
BETWEEN WEST CULLOM AVENUE AND WEST BERTEAU AVENUE;

THENCE NORTH ALONG SAID WEST LINE OF THE ALLEY FIRST WEST OF
NORTH KEDZIE AVENUE LYING BETWEEN WEST CULLOM AVENUE AND WEST
BERTEAU AVENUE AND ITS NORTH EXTENSION TO THE SOUTH LINE OF LOT 42 IN
BLOCK 1 IN ROSEWELL BARBER’S ADDITION TO IRVING PARK SUBDIVISION OF
THE EAST HALF OF THE EAST HALF OF THE NORTHEAST QUARTER OF THE
SOUTHEAST QUARTER OF SECTION 14, TOWNSHIP 40 NORTH, RANGE 13, EAST OF
THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN;

THENCE WEST ALONG SAID SOUTH LINE OF LOT 42 IN BLOCK 1 IN
ROSEWELL BARBER’S ADDITION TO IRVING PARK SUBDIVISION AND ITS WEST
EXTENSION TO THE WEST LINE OF NORTH SAWYER AVENUE;

THENCE NORTH ALONG SAID WEST LINE OF NORTH SAWYER AVENUE TO
THE NORTH LINE OF THE ALLEY FIRST SOUTH OF WEST MONTROSE AVENUE
LYING BETWEEN NORTH SAWYER AVENUE AND NORTH SPAULDING AVENUE;

THENCE WEST ALONG SAID NORTH LINE OF THE ALLEY FIRST SOUTH OF
WEST MONTROSE AVENUE LYING BETWEEN NORTH SAWYER AVENUE AND
NORTH SPAULDING AVENUE AND ITS WEST EXTENSION TO THE WEST LINE OF
NORTH SPAULDING AVENUE;

Alfred Benesch and Company Date: September 6, 2013
205 N. Michigan Ave., Suite 2400, Chicago, Ii., 60601
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THENCE NORTH ALONG SAID WEST LINE OF NORTH SPAULDING AVENUE
TO THE SOUTH LINE OF THE NORTH 75 FEET OF LOT 24 IN W.H. CONDON’S
SUBDIVISION OF THE WEST HALF OF THE EAST HALF OF THE SOUTHEAST
QUARTER OF SECTION 14, TOWNSHIP 40 NORTH, RANGE 13, EAST OF THE THIRD
PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN;

THENCE WEST ALONG SAID SOUTH LINE OF THE NORTH 75 FEET OF LOT 24
AND ITS WEST EXTENSION TO THE EAST LINE OF LOT 20 IN SAID W.H. CONDON’S
SUBDIVISION;

THENCE SOUTH ALONG SAID EAST LINE OF LOT 20 IN W.H. CONDON’S
SUBDIVISION TO THE NORTH LINE OF THE ALLEY FIRST SOUTH OF WEST
MONTROSE AVENUE LYING BETWEEN NORTH SPAULDING AVENUE AND NORTH
KIMBALL AVENUE;

THENCE WEST ALONG SAID NORTH LINE OF THE ALLEY FIRST SOUTH OF
WEST MONTROSE AVENUE LYING BETWEEN NORTH SPAULDING AVENUE AND
NORTH KIMBALL AVENUE AND ITS WEST EXTENSION TO WEST LINE OF NORTH
KIMBALL AVENUE;

THENCE SOUTH ALONG SAID WEST LINE TO THE NORTH LINE OF LOT 46 IN
BLOCK 1IN A.H. HILL AND COMPANY’S BOULEVARD ADDITION TO IRVING PARK
SUBDIVISION OF THE EAST HALF OF THE WEST HALF OF THE SOUTHEAST
QUARTER OF SECTION 14, TOWNSHIP 40 NORTH, RANGE 13, EAST OF THE THIRD
PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN;

THENCE WEST ALONG SAID NORTH LINE LOT 46 IN BLOCK 1 IN A.H. HILL
AND COMPANY’S BOULEVARD ADDITION TO IRVING PARK SUBDIVISION AND ITS
WEST EXTENSION TO THE WEST LINE OF NORTH ST. LOUIS AVENUE;

THENCE NORTH ALONG SAID WEST LINE OF NORTH ST. LOUIS AVENUE TO
THE NORTH LINE OF THE ALLEY FIRST SOUTH OF WEST MONTROSE AVENUE
LYING BETWEEN NORTH ST. LOUIS AVENUE AND NORTH DRAKE AVENUE;

THENCE WEST ALONG SAID NORTH LINE OF THE ALLEY FIRST SOUTH OF
WEST MONTROSE AVENUE LYING BETWEEN NORTH ST. LOUIS AVENUE AND
NORTH DRAKE AVENUE TO THE EAST LINE OF NORTH CENTRAL PARK AVENUE;

THENCE NORTH ALONG SAID EAST LINE OF NORTH CENTRAL PARK
AVENUE TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING;

ALL IN THE CITY OF CHICAGO, COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS.

Alfred Benesch and Company Date: September 6, 2013
205 N. Michigan Ave., Suite 2400, Chicago, Il., 60601
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Legal Description completed September 6, 2013 by:

Alfred Benesch & Company

Illinois Professional Land Surveyor No. 3685
License expires November 30, 2014

Alfred Benesch and Company
205 N. Michigan Ave., Suite 2400, Chicago, 11., 60601
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EXHIBIT 2
Map

See attached.
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EXHIBIT 3
Permanent Index Numbers

See attached pages.
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PIN

13-14-205-037-1023

13-14-205-037-1026

13-14-400-042-1008

13-14-224-033-0000

13-14-205-037-1027

13-14-400-043-1003

13-14-400-043-1004

13-14-224-034-0000

13-14-205-037-1028

13-14-400-043-1005

13-11-428-023-0000

13-14-205-037-1029

13-14-431-003-0000 |

13-11-430-028-0000

13-14-205-037-1033

13-14-431-004-0000

13-13-125-022-0000

13-14-205-037-1037

13-14-221-026-1027

13-14-205-037-1038

13-14-431-005-0000

13-14-431-006-0000 |

13-14-221-026-1057

13-14-205-037-1039

13-13-308-037-1005

13-13-308-033-0000

13-14-205-037-1040

13-13-308-037-1006

13-13-308-036-0000

13-14-415-041-0000

13-14-205-037-1041

13-13-308-037-1007

13-13-105-001-0000

13-13-308-037-1010

13-14-212-029-0000

13-13-105-002-0000

13-13-107-003-0000

13-13-105-003-0000

13-13-308-037-1011

13-13-308-037-1012

13-13-107-004-0000

13-13-105-004-0000

13-13-308-037-1014

13-13-308-035-0000 |

13-14-212-030-0000

13-14-206-002-0000

13-13-105-005-0000

13-13-308-037-1018

13-13-105-006-0000

13-13-308-037-1020

13-13-125-023-1001

13-13-105-007-0000

13-13-308-037-1022

13-13-105-008-0000 |

13-13-308-037-1025

13-13-125-023-1011

13-13-105-009-0000

13-13-308-037-1026

13-11-431-014-0000

13-13-128-034-1001

13-13-308-037-1027

13-11-431-015-0000

13-13-128-034-1002

13-13-308-037-1028

13-11-431-016-0000

13-13-127-033-0000

13-13-308-037-1032

13-11-431-026-0000

13-14-423-040-0000

13-13-326-028-0000

13-14-407-027-0000

13-13-101-033-1011

13-13-127-032-0000

13-14-423-041-0000

13-13-101-033-1013

13-14-228-021-0000 |

13-14-205-036-1015

13-13-101-033-1016

13-14-207-014-0000

13-14-205-037-1035

13-14-205-036-1001

13-13-101-033-1017

13-14-207-015-0000

13-13-101-033-1018

13-14-205-036-1021

13-14-205-036-1003

13-13-101-033-1031

13-12-309-008-0000

13-14-205-036-1006

13-14-205-036-1007

13-14-407-018-0000

13-14-403-004-0000

13-14-407-031-0000

13-14-403-005-0000

13-14-205-036-1008

13-14-407-034-1005

13-14-403-043-0000

13-14-205-036-1009

13-14-407-034-1006

13-13-101-033-1019

13-14-205-036-1013

13-11-429-027-0000

13-14-407-024-0000

13-14-205-036-1017

13-11-429-026-0000

13-13-303-037-1007

13-14-205-036-1018

13-14-400-041-1002

13-14-205-036-1019

13-14-400-041-1004

13-13-306-006-0000

13-14-207-029-0000

13-14-205-036-1020

13-14-400-042-1004

13-13-101-033-1020

13-14-205-037-1001

13-14-400-042-1005

13-13-127-031-0000

13-14-400-042-1006

13-13-128-027-0000




13-13-101-033-1025

13-14-402-046-1004

13-13-100-008-0000

13-14-431-019-0000

13-13-100-009-0000

13-13-302-044-1004

13-13-100-010-0000

13-13-302-044-1005

13-14-431-020-0000

13-14-431-021-0000

13-13-100-011-0000

13-13-316-013-0000

13-13-100-012-0000

13-13-127-027-0000

13-13-117-001-0000

13-12-315-027-1022

13-14-226-034-0000

13-13-127-028-0000

13-12-315-027-1003

13-13-316-032-1022

13-13-226-038-1004

13-14-203-028-0000

13-13-100-004-0000

13-14-423-034-0000

13-14-203-029-0000

13-13-229-036-1004

13-14-225-033-0000

13-13-304-006-0000

13-13-229-036-1005

13-13-229-034-1008

13-14-221-026-1004

13-12-315-027-1019

13-13-303-037-1008

13-14-401-006-0000

13-12-315-027-1013

13-14-221-026-1005

13-14-221-026-1010

13-13-326-031-0000

13-13-129-039-1019

13-14-221-026-1012

13-14-225-036-0000

13-13-308-037-1034

13-14-221-026-1013

13-14-225-037-0000

13-13-129-039-1032

13-14-221-026-1023

13-14-223-037-0000

13-13-325-039-1002

13-14-221-026-1029

13-13-131-038-0000

13-13-325-039-1005

13-13-304-005-0000

13-14-221-026-1035

13-13-101-033-1015

13-14-221-026-1038

13-13-308-037-1021

13-12-315-026-0000

13-14-221-026-1039

13-13-308-037-1036

13-12-315-027-1006

13-14-221-026-1042

13-13-229-024-0000

13-12-315-027-1015

13-14-221-026-1044

13-13-308-008-0000

13-12-315-027-1017

13-14-221-026-1049

13-14-227-031-0000

13-12-315-027-1024

13-14-221-026-1054

13-24-103-002-0000

13-24-101-002-0000

13-14-221-026-1067

13-13-326-036-0000

13-24-101-003-0000

13-13-308-037-1008

13-13-316-012-0000

13-13-316-003-0000

13-13-308-037-1023

13-14-421-039-0000

13-13-316-004-0000

13-13-229-034-1006

13-14-404-008-0000

13-13-229-028-0000

13-13-107-002-0000

13-14-221-026-1030

13-13-229-031-0000

13-13-229-033-1003

13-14-221-026-1058

13-13-304-033-0000

13-14-402-046-1001

13-13-300-016-0000

13-13-304-034-0000

13-13-308-013-0000

13-13-307-001-0000

13-13-104-040-1015

13-13-308-034-0000

13-13-307-002-0000

13-13-129-039-1024

13-13-308-002-0000

13-13-307-003-0000

13-13-129-039-1020

13-13-301-001-0000

13-13-125-019-0000

13-13-101-033-1033

13-14-207-040-1030

13-13-129-039-1011

13-13-125-021-0000

13-14-400-004-0000

13-14-423-033-0000

13-13-302-001-0000

13-13-100-005-0000

13-13-303-037-1014

13-13-302-002-0000

13-13-100-006-0000

13-13-302-044-1001

13-13-302-003-0000

13-13-100-007-0000

13-13-302-044-1002

13-14-228-035-0000

13-13-302-044-1003 |

13-13-104-040-1010

13-11-431-018-0000




13-14-212-034-0000

13-14-228-039-0000

13-14-407-019-0000

13-14-221-026-1015

13-14-228-040-1001

13-13-102-001-0000

13-14-221-026-1068

13-14-228-040-1002 |

13-14-228-040-1003

13-14-404-001-0000

13-14-404-002-0000

13-14-402-005-0000

13-14-228-040-1014

13-14-404-003-0000

13-14-402-006-0000

13-14-402-007-0000

13-14-228-040-1015

13-14-404-004-0000

13-14-228-040-1016

13-14-404-005-0000

13-13-324-001-0000

13-14-228-040-1018

13-14-404-006-0000

13-14-402-001-0000

13-13-303-037-1003

13-13-500-001-0000

13-14-221-026-1019

13-14-204-041-0000

13-14-221-026-1036

13-13-101-032-1002

13-11-431-019-0000

13-14-204-047-0000

13-13-101-033-1005

13-14-203-020-0000

13-24-101-004-0000

13-12-315-027-1014

13-14-203-021-0000

13-13-303-037-1010

13-13-101-032-1012

13-14-203-022-0000

13-13-308-037-1024

13-13-101-032-1041

13-14-203-023-0000

13-13-101-033-1009

13-14-407-034-1003

13-14-400-042-1002 |

13-14-221-026-1001

13-13-104-001-0000

13-13-316-032-1001

13-13-226-038-1006

13-14-221-026-1066

13-13-101-033-1032

13-13-327-026-0000

13-13-103-001-0000

13-13-226-030-0000

13-13-101-032-1003

13-13-125-023-1003

13-13-226-035-0000

13-13-101-032-1039

13-13-125-023-1007

13-13-306-003-0000

13-13-129-039-1023

13-14-225-035-0000

13-13-306-004-0000

13-24-102-004-0000

13-14-406-003-0000

13-13-129-039-1007

13-13-306-005-0000

13-13-101-032-1008

13-12-316-013-0000

13-13-101-032-1031

13-12-316-014-0000

13-13-129-039-1021

13-13-112-001-0000

13-13-129-039-1017

13-12-316-015-0000

13-11-431-021-0000

13-13-117-002-0000

13-12-316-020-0000

13-11-431-022-0000

13-14-221-026-1032

13-12-316-021-0000

13-13-104-040-1006

13-14-221-026-1060

13-12-316-025-0000

13-14-400-043-1006

13-13-302-044-1006

13-13-302-044-1007

13-12-316-026-0000

13-14-228-026-0000

13-14-400-043-1007

13-14-400-043-1008

13-14-221-026-1016

13-14-228-027-0000

13-13-229-033-1006

13-14-221-026-1045

13-14-228-028-0000

13-13-128-034-1004

13-13-326-032-0000

13-13-325-039-1006

13-14-212-032-0000

13-13-101-032-1015

13-13-129-039-1029

13-13-101-033-1023

13-13-101-032-1050

13-13-303-037-1006

13-13-100-016-0000

13-13-125-023-1005

13-13-306-001-0000

13-13-125-023-1008

13-13-129-039-1005

13-14-400-043-1001

13-13-129-039-1008

13-14-224-030-0000

13-14-221-026-1007

13-12-315-027-1004

13-13-101-033-1027

13-13-303-034-0000

13-14-431-023-0000

13-14-228-040-1005

13-13-126-031-0000

13-14-228-040-1017

13-13-117-004-0000




13-11-430-027-0000

13-13-305-012-0000

13-13-101-032-1025

13-13-316-009-0000

13-13-101-032-1037

13-13-316-032-1003

13-13-327-025-0000

13-14-221-026-1021

13-13-316-032-1004

13-13-125-012-0000

13-13-101-032-1024

13-13-316-032-1006

13-13-125-013-0000

13-13-101-032-1049

13-24-102-039-0000

| 13-13-101-032-1051

13-13-316-032-1007

13-13-101-033-1012

13-13-316-032-1008

13-14-431-028-0000

1 13-13-316-032-1010

13-13-316-032-1011

13-14-406-040-0000

13-14-431-029-0000

13-12-315-027-1010

13-24-101-001-0000

13-14-431-030-0000

13-13-316-032-1012

13-14-431-031-0000

13-13-316-032-1013

13-14-221-026-1028

13-14-401-004-0000

13-13-316-032-1014

13-14-221-026-1050

13-13-104-040-1014
13-13-324-031-0000

13-13-101-032-1001

13-13-316-032-1015

13-14-402-046-1005

13-13-316-032-1016

13-13-307-041-0000

13-13-316-032-1017

13-13-131-030-0000

13-13-302-044-1010

13-13-316-032-1018

13-13-131-034-0000

13-12-316-030-0000

13-13-316-032-1019

13-13-131-035-0000

13-14-207-030-0000

13-13-316-032-1020

13-14-430-031-0000

13-14-430-032-0000

13-14-207-033-0000

13-13-316-032-1021

13-14-207-031-0000 |

13-13-316-032-1023

13-14-430-033-0000

| 13-14-207-034-0000

13-13-316-032-1024

13-11-428-021-0000

13-13-126-029-0000

13-14-206-018-0000

13-11-428-022-0000

13-13-101-033-1004

13-14-206-019-0000

| 13-14-206-020-0000
13-14-206-021-0000

13-12-315-027-1016

13-13-129-039-1013

13-13-117-005-0000

13-13-131-033-0000

13-13-101-033-1026

13-13-229-033-1005

13-13-101-032-1009

13-14-220-028-0000

13-13-316-014-0000

13-13-101-032-1042

13-13-129-039-1012

13-14-423-036-0000

13-24-103-005-0000

13-14-421-038-0000

13-14-221-026-1025

13-13-103-002-0000 |

13-11-431-020-0000

13-13-325-040-0000

13-14-221-026-1046

13-14-403-001-0000

13-14-207-040-1004

13-13-308-010-0000

13-14-221-026-1006

13-12-315-027-1023

13-14-403-002-0000

13-14-423-037-0000

13-11-429-025-0000

13-14-403-003-0000

13-13-308-037-1016

13-23-207-001-0000

13-14-430-030-0000

13-13-308-037-1040

13-23-207-002-0000

13-14-224-035-0000

13-14-223-038-0000

13-23-207-003-0000

13-14-401-008-0000

13-14-421-032-0000

13-23-207-035-0000

13-14-221-026-1009

13-14-421-033-0000

13-23-207-037-0000

13-14-221-026-1041

13-14-421-034-0000

13-13-229-020-0000

13-14-221-026-1026

13-14-421-035-0000

13-13-302-005-0000

13-14-221-026-1052

13-14-421-040-0000

13-13-306-033-0000

13-13-325-039-1001

13-13-316-032-1002

13-13-303-037-1015

13-13-129-039-1031 |




13-13-308-012-0000

13-13-101-032-1026

13-14-423-038-0000

13-13-101-032-1030

13-13-117-007-0000

13-14-400-042-1001

13-14-228-040-1006

13-13-117-008-0000

13-14-227-037-0000

13-14-227-038-0000

13-13-117-030-0000

13-13-101-033-1030

13-13-129-040-1011

13-13-117-031-0000

13-14-227-039-0000

13-12-316-028-0000

13-13-104-040-1001

13-14-228-016-0000

13-14-407-034-1004

13-13-327-030-0000

13-14-228-017-0000

13-13-303-037-1009

13-13-303-037-1011

13-12-315-027-1011

13-13-308-037-1019

13-14-431-033-0000

13-12-315-027-1012

13-13-308-037-1035

13-14-407-020-0000

13-13-324-013-0000

13-12-315-027-1008

13-14-423-035-0000

13-14-206-029-0000

13-14-407-021-0000

13-13-306-034-0000

13-13-102-002-0000

13-14-407-022-0000 |

13-14-400-003-0000

13-13-305-001-0000

13-14-407-023-0000

13-13-101-032-1007

13-14-203-024-0000

13-14-402-046-1006

13-13-101-032-1034

13-14-203-025-0000

13-11-430-026-0000

13-14-225-031-0000

13-14-203-026-0000

13-14-225-032-0000

13-14-203-027-0000

13-12-313-027-0000

13-12-313-028-0000

13-12-315-027-1002

13-14-221-026-1064

13-14-221-026-1065

13-12-313-029-0000

13-12-315-027-1021

13-12-313-030-0000

13-13-128-028-0000

13-13-101-032-1016

13-13-129-039-1025

13-13-101-032-1022

13-13-101-032-1029

13-14-222-025-0000

13-13-101-032-1027

13-14-228-034-0000

13-14-222-026-0000

13-14-228-040-1004

13-14-205-036-1016

13-13-325-039-1007

13-14-205-037-1036

13-14-221-026-1033

13-14-400-043-1002

13-13-101-033-1014

13-13-308-037-1009

13-13-226-038-1003

13-13-308-037-1013

13-23-207-006-0000

13-13-126-028-0000

13-13-226-038-1001

13-13-104-040-1017

13-13-325-039-1003

13-14-205-004-0000

13-14-205-003-0000

13-13-327-028-0000

13-13-101-032-1018

13-14-212-035-0000

13-13-324-012-0000

13-13-101-032-1028

13-14-226-030-0000

13-13-126-030-0000

13-13-229-033-1004

13-11-430-025-0000

13-14-401-007-0000

13-13-302-044-1011

13-13-117-003-0000

13-14-224-032-0000

13-13-107-019-0000

13-24-103-006-0000

13-13-316-011-0000

13-13-100-003-0000

13-14-220-026-0000

13-24-102-001-0000

13-14-415-040-0000

13-14-220-027-0000

13-24-102-008-0000

13-14-228-037-0000

13-14-222-028-0000

13-14-400-041-1001

13-14-421-036-0000

13-13-104-040-1005

13-13-117-010-0000

13-14-221-026-1002

13-13-308-037-1004

13-13-117-011-0000

13-14-221-026-1037

13-13-308-037-1033

13-13-117-012-0000

13-13-126-034-0000

13-14-205-002-0000

13-13-125-023-1009

13-13-101-033-1001

13-13-104-040-1007




13-13-101-033-1002

13-13-226-039-0000

13-13-125-023-1013

13-13-129-039-1028

13-13-101-032-1020

13-13-125-023-1014

13-14-221-026-1022

13-13-101-032-1046

13-13-125-023-1015

13-23-207-004-0000

13-14-421-037-0000

13-14-227-036-0000

| 13-13-125-023-1016

13-13-229-021-0000

13-14-228-025-0000

13-13-326-034-0000

13-13-302-044-1012

13-24-102-006-0000

13-12-316-023-0000

13-13-129-039-1002

13-13-125-015-0000

13-14-228-019-0000

13-12-312-027-0000

13-14-221-026-1047

13-13-101-032-1021

13-12-312-028-0000

13-14-401-005-0000

13-13-101-032-1048

13-12-312-030-0000

13-13-101-032-1011

13-13-129-039-1018

13-13-324-002-0000

13-13-101-032-1044

13-13-125-023-1006

13-13-324-003-0000

13-13-101-033-1010

13-13-316-032-1005

13-13-324-004-0000

13-13-300-015-0000

13-14-407-030-0000

13-13-324-005-0000

13-13-129-039-1001

13-13-104-040-1002

13-13-324-006-0000

13-13-327-027-0000

13-13-129-039-1016

13-13-324-007-0000

13-14-205-036-1012

13-14-205-036-1014

13-13-324-008-0000

13-14-205-037-1032

13-14-205-037-1034

13-13-324-009-0000

13-13-302-006-0000

13-13-316-008-0000

13-13-324-010-0000

13-13-302-007-0000

13-14-220-030-0000

13-13-324-011-0000

13-24-103-007-0000

13-13-300-006-0000

13-14-204-045-0000

13-14-221-026-1011

13-13-308-037-1017

13-13-129-039-1026

13-14-221-026-1043

13-13-308-037-1031

13-13-316-007-0000

13-13-229-036-1006

13-13-302-044-1008

13-14-205-036-1010

13-12-316-031-0000

13-13-302-044-1009

13-14-205-037-1030

13-14-207-040-1034

13-14-221-026-1020

13-13-308-037-1039

13-14-207-040-1052

13-14-221-026-1051

13-13-104-040-1016

13-13-129-039-1004

13-13-304-001-0000

13-13-129-033-0000

13-13-300-012-0000

13-13-304-002-0000

13-12-315-027-1005

13-13-300-013-0000

13-14-402-008-0000

13-14-224-031-0000

13-13-300-014-0000

13-13-303-003-0000

13-13-229-036-1001

13-13-229-034-1010

13-13-303-004-0000

13-13-229-036-1002

13-14-221-026-1003

13-13-104-040-1004

13-13-229-036-1003

13-14-221-026-1056

13-14-206-022-0000

13-13-226-038-1002

13-13-129-039-1006

13-14-206-031-0000

13-13-104-040-1003

13-14-206-027-0000

13-13-102-032-0000

13-14-206-026-0000

13-14-206-028-0000

13-13-130-035-0000

13-13-308-011-0000

13-13-104-040-1011

13-12-316-027-0000

13-14-221-026-1053

13-14-402-046-1002

13-14-205-036-1011

13-13-131-036-0000

13-13-101-032-1006

13-14-205-037-1031

13-13-125-023-1012

13-13-101-032-1032

13-13-301-017-0000

13-13-101-032-1033

13-14-212-031-0000




13-13-128-035-0000

13-13-100-017-0000

13-14-221-022-0000

13-13-129-040-1009

13-14-221-023-0000

13-14-207-040-1036

13-13-125-023-1004

13-13-325-035-0000

13-14-207-040-1037

13-24-102-007-0000

13-13-308-037-1015

13-14-207-040-1038

13-13-125-011-0000

13-13-308-037-1041

13-14-207-040-1039

13-13-101-033-1003

13-13-101-033-1006

13-14-207-040-1040

13-14-407-034-1002

13-13-132-028-0000

13-14-207-040-1041

13-14-224-036-0000

13-12-316-029-0000

13-14-207-040-1042 |

13-14-224-037-0000

13-13-325-028-0000

13-14-207-040-1043

13-13-324-034-0000

13-14-207-040-1001

13-14-207-040-1044

13-14-221-026-1034

13-14-207-040-1002

13-14-207-040-1045

13-14-205-036-1004

13-14-207-040-1003

13-14-207-040-1046

13-14-205-037-1024

13-14-207-040-1005

13-14-207-040-1047

13-13-327-029-0000

13-14-207-040-1006

13-14-207-040-1048

13-14-222-029-0000

13-14-207-040-1007

13-14-207-040-1049

13-13-308-001-0000

13-14-207-040-1008

13-14-207-040-1050

13-13-129-040-1012

13-14-207-040-1009

13-14-207-040-1051

13-13-129-039-1015

13-13-127-029-0000

| 13-14-207-040-1010

13-14-207-040-1053

13-14-207-040-1011

13-14-207-040-1054

13-14-207-040-1055

13-13-127-030-0000

13-14-207-040-1012

13-13-306-002-0000

13-14-207-040-1013

13-14-207-040-1056

13-14-404-007-0000

13-14-207-040-1014

13-14-207-040-1057

13-13-117-006-0000

13-14-207-040-1015

13-14-207-040-1058

13-14-406-039-0000

13-14-207-040-1016

13-14-207-040-1059

13-13-112-002-0000

13-14-207-040-1017

13-14-207-040-1060

13-23-207-036-0000

13-14-207-040-1018

13-14-207-040-1061

13-13-101-033-1024

13-14-207-040-1019

13-14-207-040-1062

13-14-205-036-1005

13-14-207-040-1020

13-14-207-040-1063

13-14-205-037-1025

13-14-207-040-1021

13-14-207-040-1064

13-12-315-027-1009

13-14-207-040-1022

13-14-207-040-1065

13-14-222-027-0000

13-14-207-040-1023

13-14-207-040-1066

13-13-112-003-0000

13-14-207-040-1024

13-14-207-040-1067

13-14-207-040-1068

13-12-315-019-0000

13-14-207-040-1025

13-12-315-020-0000

13-14-207-040-1026

13-14-207-040-1069

13-12-315-021-0000

13-14-207-040-1027

13-14-207-040-1070 |

13-14-407-025-0000

13-14-207-040-1028

13-14-207-040-1071

13-14-407-026-0000

13-14-207-040-1029

13-14-207-040-1072

13-13-229-034-1007

13-14-207-040-1031

13-14-207-040-1073

13-13-303-037-1005

13-14-207-040-1032

13-14-207-040-1074

13-13-104-040-1013

13-14-207-040-1033

13-14-207-040-1075

13-14-207-040-1035

13-14-207-040-1076

13-14-207-040-1077




13-14-207-040-1078

13-14-207-040-1079

13-13-102-004-0000

13-13-125-001-0000

13-14-207-040-1080

13-13-102-005-0000

13-14-207-040-1081

13-13-102-006-0000

13-13-129-039-1034 |

13-14-207-040-1082

13-13-102-031-0000

13-13-129-039-1035

13-14-207-040-1083

13-13-229-033-1001

13-13-129-039-1036

13-14-207-040-1084

13-13-229-033-1002

13-13-226-038-1005

13-14-207-040-1085

13-13-101-032-1019

13-13-100-001-0000

13-14-207-040-1086

13-13-101-032-1038

13-13-100-002-0000

13-13-303-035-0000

13-14-406-001-0000

13-23-206-038-0000

13-13-316-010-0000

13-14-401-003-0000

13-13-229-016-0000

13-24-103-001-0000

13-13-129-040-1001

13-13-229-017-0000

13-14-402-002-0000

13-13-129-040-1002

13-13-132-029-0000

13-13-326-029-0000

13-24-102-002-0000

113-13-129-040-1003

13-13-132-030-0000

13-13-129-040-1004

13-13-132-031-0000

13-14-430-034-0000

13-13-129-040-1005

13-13-132-032-0000

13-14-430-035-0000

13-13-132-033-0000

13-13-129-040-1007

13-13-129-039-1009

13-13-129-040-1008

13-13-132-034-0000

13-13-129-039-1010

13-14-423-042-1001

13-13-132-035-0000

13-14-225-034-0000

13-13-324-033-0000

13-14-423-042-1004

13-13-132-036-0000

13-13-325-031-0000

13-12-312-029-0000

13-14-221-026-1031

13-13-302-004-0000

13-12-312-026-0000

13-14-221-026-1055

13-13-303-037-1004

13-13-326-033-0000

13-13-101-032-1004

13-12-312-001-0000

13-13-101-032-1040

13-12-312-025-0000

13-12-315-017-0000

13-12-315-018-0000

13-13-104-039-0000

13-13-101-033-1008

13-12-315-027-1020

13-13-129-039-1033

13-14-228-018-0000

13-14-400-041-1003

13-13-107-001-0000

13-14-400-042-1003

13-13-303-037-1013

13-13-101-033-1021

13-13-325-039-1004

13-13-302-010-0000

13-13-101-032-1023

13-13-129-040-1006

13-12-315-027-1001

13-13-101-032-1045

13-14-407-032-0000

13-13-308-009-0000

13-11-431-023-0000

13-13-303-037-1001

13-14-212-033-0000

13-12-316-032-0000

13-13-303-037-1002

13-14-226-031-0000 |

13-24-103-003-0000

13-13-101-032-1010

13-13-125-002-0000

13-13-326-030-0000

13-13-101-032-1035

13-13-125-003-0000

13-12-315-027-1007

13-13-101-032-1013

13-13-125-004-0000

13-14-206-030-0000

13-14-404-009-0000

13-13-125-005-0000

13-14-406-002-0000

13-13-101-033-1007

13-13-125-006-0000

13-12-315-023-0000

13-13-229-034-1009

13-14-220-025-0000

13-12-315-016-0000

13-13-316-001-0000

13-24-100-003-0000

13-13-102-003-0000

13-12-315-027-1018

13-24-100-004-0000

13-13-100-031-0000

13-24-100-005-0000

13-24-100-006-0000




13-24-100-007-0000

13-24-100-008-0000

13-13-316-002-0000

13-24-100-035-0000

13-13-126-032-0000

13-13-129-032-0000

13-14-221-026-1017

13-24-100-036-0000

13-13-129-039-1027

13-13-117-013-0000

13-13-308-037-1037

13-14-221-026-1048

13-14-228-020-0000

13-13-308-037-1038

13-14-205-036-1002

13-14-431-024-0000

13-14-226-037-0000

13-14-205-037-1022

13-14-401-001-0000

13-14-221-026-1014

13-14-431-022-0000

13-14-221-026-1040

13-24-103-004-0000

13-14-401-002-0000

13-13-125-023-1002

13-14-222-030-0000

13-14-400-041-1005

13-14-222-031-0000

13-13-226-025-0000

13-13-125-023-1010

13-14-223-036-0000

13-13-226-026-0000

13-13-324-035-0000

13-13-229-034-1001

13-13-226-027-0000

13-13-131-039-0000

13-13-128-036-0000

13-13-226-028-0000

13-13-101-033-1022

13-14-407-033-0000

13-13-226-029-0000

13-13-325-032-0000

13-14-407-034-1001

13-13-129-039-1003

13-14-402-046-1003

13-14-226-032-0000

13-13-325-030-0000

13-13-325-039-1008

13-14-226-033-0000

13-13-324-032-0000

13-24-102-005-0000

13-14-226-035-0000

13-13-126-033-0000

13-24-102-040-0000

13-14-226-036-0000

13-13-301-002-0000

13-13-112-004-0000

13-14-221-026-1024

13-13-101-033-1029

13-13-300-001-0000

13-14-221-026-1062

13-13-101-032-1014

13-13-300-002-0000

13-14-221-026-1063

13-13-101-032-1043

13-13-300-003-0000

13-13-300-004-0000

13-13-101-033-1028

13-13-129-031-0000

13-13-104-040-1009

13-13-129-040-1010

13-13-300-005-0000

13-14-400-006-0000

13-14-228-029-0000

13-13-300-041-0000

13-14-400-007-0000

13-14-228-036-0000

13-13-300-042-0000

13-13-130-028-0000

13-14-228-040-1019

13-13-300-045-0000

13-13-130-029-0000

13-14-221-026-1008

13-13-101-032-1005

13-13-130-030-0000

13-14-221-026-1061

13-13-101-032-1047

13-13-324-036-0000

13-13-128-034-1003

13-13-129-039-1022

13-13-101-032-1017

13-13-104-040-1008

13-13-229-033-1007

13-13-101-032-1036

13-13-229-035-0000

13-13-229-033-1008

13-13-316-032-1009

13-14-431-025-0000

13-14-227-035-0000

13-14-203-019-0000

13-14-431-026-0000

13-13-129-039-1014

13-14-206-001-0000

13-14-431-027-0000

13-13-103-003-0000

13-14-227-032-0000

13-13-326-035-0000

13-13-101-001-0000

13-14-227-033-0000

13-14-431-032-0000

13-11-430-024-0000

13-13-303-037-1012

13-13-104-040-1012

13-14-227-034-0000

13-13-129-040-1013

13-14-221-026-1018

13-14-228-040-1013

13-13-129-039-1030

13-14-221-026-1059

13-13-308-037-1001

13-14-400-042-1007

13-13-308-037-1002

13-13-308-037-1003




13-13-308-037-1029

13-13-308-037-1030

13-13-300-017-0000

13-13-300-018-0000




EXHIBIT 4
Public Hearing Notice

See attached pages.
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Notice of Public Hearing
Hﬂ‘h cago Special Sarvice Area Number
‘;wzn al at 1Dutbckam . 0o the
zu H.a.ll

14ih day of Navembsr 2013, in Hoom
kol 1 North LaSaie Sveel, Ciicano, llinols, o public hearing will be held by
n! wa wiithiri ot Chicago to be known and designaléd as Special Sarvica Araa
nhe “Area™y and (he authazation of the levy of 2 special annual sevices B (the
k{0 be lew In fax years 2013 though and including 2022, 1 gwm of :mau
a: Iu:nall ba 1o mmdd[n apecinl services within the Area, thr. Includa, bl
23

mmitles on Flmg:u ol the City Counchl of Ihe City of Chicagn o consider (e ereation
w within Ihy Area. The Services Tax un cnnsuﬂm!lon ahall bef authorized
nel

10 e Area,

dvertising aciivities, strat
h:pmm r;g b l:?:

il {which ma\l Includ, but are not [emiled
mpravement including riim;

:J. :nnlml Initiatives}, wiveh
re wil be | LA

mp stral
management stuilies, and enhanced Iand use uvmlg“nm
be herglrafter reterred lo cull:cm 1y a5 e *Special Services." M Ihe hearing
considered a Services Tax (o ba lavied agninat he |aabde property Included within the Area
Tor the wnwﬂnn ol the Specla'l Sw\rlm not 10 eegeed Uhe annual sum o! 0425 perconl af the
| equalized asseased val 1: iy within the Area, Tncgﬂ sed amount of the Lk
Iewf ackal serw:esfnr Iha Jnmn mr tnr wihich taxes will be Fovied within the Area in tax
ar 2013 |5 $423,068. The Services Tax shall be In addilion 10 2 elher Laxes provis
and shall hie Ievlm pursuant to the provisians of he Propeny Tax Cods, 35 ILES 2
at 5o, 45 amended from time fo lmo. The Aren shall consist of the teeritory descnbed
hereln and Incorparaled beralo ng Exhibil 1. The approximale slecet incation of s=id lenilory
consists of l.avm.'nce Avenue from [he North Chasnel to Kimball, Monlrese Avenus Iram Uhe
Naorth Channei Lo Central Park. Kedzle Avanue from Ainsliz (o rving Park ftoad, and |N Palk
Reoad from Spnuldmf 1o Saccamento, Al the pulbi¥e hearing any Ieresl
all persons owning laxable real proj r? Ipcatnd within the proposed Ar
ereation of the Area and the levy ol 1 ces Tax may file witft tha CI":I' L‘Utk of tha G !
Uhlmgn wnﬂen objections to and may te heaid or c{mlg: respeci Lo any issues embediad
co. The Committee an Finance of e City it o tha City of Chizago shall hyar
nrl mm alrgmhﬁls and objzchons al said hearing, and said hearing may be adjoernad

the EXT'EN'SIU T0 THE W

of new vitins,
baadjl‘lcm]on aclivilies, new construction, securiy, mmlr\nﬁun al promatianal and ALGNG SND SOUTH
planning for Ula Area, and viher lechnical assistance aclvities WEST

THENGE WEST ALONG S0 NORTH LINE OF WEST LELAND AVENLE TO THE WEST LINE OF
THE ALLEY FIRST WEST OF NORTH KEDZIE AVENLIE LYING BETWEEN WEST LELAND AVENUE

AND WEST LAWRENCE AVENUE; THENCE NORTH ALONG SAID WEST LINE OF THE ALLEY | AVENUE LYING BETWEEN

ARST
WWRENCE AVENUE TO THE NOATH LINE OF THE ALLEY FIRST SOUTH OF WEST
NUE LYING BETWEEN DRTH KEB!E AVENUE AND NORTH SAWYER AVENLI& THEKCE
WEST ALONG SAID KOATH F 'l ALLEY HNSI SOUTH OF WEST LAWRENCE AVE
LYING BETWEEN NOHTH KEDZIE Al ATH SAWYER AVENUE AND 175 WEST
EST LINE OF NOR“{SMLUIHEJNE NUE; THENCE SOUTH ALONG SAID
LINE OF HDRTH SPAULDING AVEMLE TO THE S0UTH 0F THE NOATH 14 FEET OF
La BINBL CX 16 IN SAID NORTH WEST LANDMSDG&T‘IDN SUBDIVI
LINE OF THE NORTH 14 FEET OF LOT B IN BLOCK 16 IN SAID NORTH
LAND ASSOCIATION SUBDIVISION TO THE WEST LINE OF THE 16 FOOT PAIVATE ALLEY
F]!!ST WEST OF NOATH SPﬂUI DING AVERUE LYING BETWEEN WEST LAWRENCE AVENLIE AN
T EASTWOOD AVENUE, THENCE SOUTH ALONG SAK) WEST LINE OF THE 18 FOUT
FHW-WI'E ALLE‘I' FI 5T WE§I OF NOATH SPAULDING AVENUE LYING BETWEEN, WES
NUE AND WEST EASTWODD AVENUE TO THE NORTH LINE OF THE
NUIITI‘IWESI'EHN ELEVATED RN[HON? THENCE EAST ALONG SAIE NOATH LINE OF THE § OF
URTHWESTERN ELEVATED RAILROAD Tl F,ﬂSTLHEUF LOT B Ik BLOCK 13 IN NORT] HWEST
LAND ASSOCLATION smuw N OF TH EJ\ST HALF (F THE NURTI tAST OUARTER O
SECTION 14, TOWNSHIP 40 NI lll'H FIMEt 3, EAST (F THE THIA GIPAL RJUWI
THEHGE NOIﬁTH NG SMD EAS INEUFSMjLUTBIN BLOCK ISTDTHE SI‘H.ITH LINE OF
WEST THEN! CEFJ\SH.[UNGSN SOUTH LINE OF WEST LELAN)
TOTHE CENIENUN‘E GF NOFTH KEDZIE AVENUE, THENCE NOATH ALONG SAID CENTERLINE
OF NORTH KEDZIE AVENUE.TO THE WEST EXTENSION OF THE NORTH LINE OF LOT 20 1N
THOMASSON'S THIRD RAVENSWODD ADDITION OF B
SUBDMSION OF THE SOUTHEAST DUARTER OF SECT U QUARTE!
114 | OF SECTION 12, TOWNSHIP AD NORTH, RANGE 13, EAS THE THIRR FRiNCIl‘M MERIGIAN:
THENCE EAST ALONG SAID WEST EXTENSION EN‘ORW OF LOT 20 I
THOMASSON'S THIRD R'WENSWDOD ADDITION MIIJ ALONG THE NUHTH !.INE OF SAI0 LOT

WEST OF NORTH KEDZIE AVENUE LYING BETWEEN WEST LELAND AVENUE AND WEST

=

=

20 TO THE WEST LINE OF THE ALLEY FIRST EAST OF NORTH KEDIIE AVERUE LYING BETWEEN | CENTERLINE
ST AR 1TH ALONG WEST LINE | CHANNEL,

WEST AINSLIE STREET AND WEST ARGYLE STREET: TH|

ENGE 501
OF THE ALLEY FIRST EAST OF NDIﬂIf KEDIEA\'ENUE LYING
AND £ 57

LAWRENGE | AVERUE LYING
HUE | AVERUE LYING BETWEEN

SH0M; THENDE WEST | S0

0 AVENUIE MENIJE THENCE SOUTH

LAND ASSOCIATION SUBDMS[D THEN
A | SOUTH LINE DF LOT 11 IN BLOCK 65 TO THE
ALONG SAD WES

WEST LINE OF NORTH MANOR AVENUE: THENCE Smm ALONG SAID WEST LINE OF NOAT
MANGR AVERUIE T0 THE SOUTH UINE OF THE ALLEY FIRST SOUTH OF WEST LAWRENG
NORTH MANCIH .R‘J'ENL!E AKD NDRTH SACRAMENTO AVENUL
THENCE WEST ALONG SAH SOUTH LINE OF THE M.LEV FIRST SOUTH OF WEST LA'NEEMC
BETWEEN NDRTH MANOR AVENUE HURTH SACRAMENTO J\\?
ITS WEST EXTENSION TD THE EAST LINE OF TH'E MLEY FIRST EAST OF NORTH KEDZI
WEST LAWRENLE AVENUE AND WEST LELAND AVENUE; THENC
SOUTH ALONG SAI0 EAST LINE GFT‘HE ALLEY FIRST EAST OF NORTH KEDZIE AVENUE l_'ﬂN
BETWEENWEST LAWHENCE AVENLE ANOWEST LELAND AVENUE AND 15 SOLTH EXTE
TOTHE NORTH LINE OF THE CHICAGD TRANSIT AUTHORITY
NORTH LINE OF THE CHICAGO IHMSJT MTI‘HCWI\' F.N
LINE OF THE NORTH SHORE CHANNEL, TH SOUTHEASY
OF THE NI'JI"JH SHORE FHMNEL 'ID THE SUUTH LINE OF THE Glh'ia\m THANSTT
FALAOAD; THENCE WEST AL 0 SOUTH LINE OF THE CHICAGE TRANSIT AUTHORIT
IWLHORU'TD THE EAST LINE UF LCI'I 1 IN BLOCK 34 OF NOATHWES: TERN LAND ASSOCIATIO
SUBDMEION OF THE WEST HALF OF THE KORTHWEST GUARTER OF SECTION 13, TOWNSHI
NU FANGE 13, EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MEHID!.'\N tENCEF"F THE RIGHT OF Wi
RTHWESTERN TED HAI-LHD& , THENGE SOUTH AL

THE NORTH £ SAID EAST LINE O
LT EI"éN BLOCK 38 OF NORTHWESTERN LAY ASSOGLATION aunmnsanu AND IS SGUT
SOUTH LN

THE SOUTH UINE I:IFWEST SUNNYSIDE AVENUE: THENCE WEST ALONG
W‘&ST SUNNYSIDE V'ENUE TEITHE CENTERLINF OF THE ALLEY FIRST EF.S
CFN'DRTHKED.EI’EMNUEL’I’PNEW S
ALONG S0 CENTEHLTNE OF 'I'IIE N.LE\" FIFST EAST OF NORT

EST SUNNYSIDEAVENUE ANDWEST MONTROS
AVENUE LYING IIETW‘EEN wssr 1O AVENUE AND

2
-‘.‘}

WEST LINE OF L0 IN SAD BLOCK B!
THENCE SOUTH TUNE OF LOT 36 IN HLGCK GS ANG ITS SOUTH EXTENSID
TO THE CENTERLINE OF THE ALLEY FIRST NORTH OF WEST MONTROSE M’FHUE LYIN
BETWEEN NORTH THOY STREET AND NDRTH KEDZIE A\l'l-_NllE THENCE EAST ALONG SAI
N ANE TS EAST EXTENSION TO THE SDUTHWEST LINE OF THE NORTH SHOR

THENCE SOUTHEAST ALONG SAD SOUTHWEST LINE (F THE NORTH SHOR
CHANNEL TO THE CENTERLINE OF WEST MONTROSE AVENUE: THENCE WEST AL

ONG SA)

another da 1 lurther nolice olher han & motlon 1o be entered upon the minules EET T0 THE SOUTH LINE OF WEST AJNSLIE smEE'r THEWCE EﬁST CENTERLINE OFWEST mrnﬂusemwe TD THE NOATH EXTENSION EIFTHEWEST LINE 0

H:T aE}““ time and place it Mliéﬂmmne It a pelltion sipnad by af sast ty-one PRCEANL | ALONG SAD SOU'ITILINi OF WEST musuz STREET 10 THE EAST LINE OF THE ALLEY FINST | NORTH CALIFORNIA AVENUE; THENCE SOUTH ALGNG SN0 NORTH EXTENSIUN OF THE WES
(57%) of tha elactors residing wiltin the beundaries of Ihe nmmﬂma and by al 'lﬁsl mF EAST OF NORTH KEDZIE AVENLE LYING BETWEEN WEST LAWRENCE AVENUE AND WEST | LINE OF NDATH c&fuaummuus mu ms WEST LINE OF i

om w"mld1 1%) of tha landawnors incudad W“I"h Ihe boundarlas of he propesad a AINSLIE STREET, THENCE SOUTH ALONG SAID EAST LINE OF THE ALLEY FIFIST EAST OF | 140.01 FEET T0'A POINT 107.01 FEET SOUT FTHE NDRTI 1 LINE nr mn 1N HENR

nmahur::g: the %‘mlamlllhﬂ al the Services T'-'x 1llml" i3 'ﬂﬂwn‘"'he NOATH KEDZIE AVENUE (YING umm WEST LAWRENCE AVENUE AMD WEST AINSLIE | SEVERIN'S AESUBDIVISION OF LB S1T08M aw M AOSE PARK SUBDMSION OF TH

mg WF'LN‘ Ghicano wilin sty (60} daye ollowing the finol acgournindnt of the | STREET T THE NORTH LINE OF THE ALLEY FIRST NORTH OF WEST LAWRENCE AVENLIE LYING | EAST 172 OF THE SOUTHWEST 17 orsscnum& wenr;z unnm na-m 00" WEST 56,6

it hearing, the Area ol ot Ev"'";‘f;ﬁ‘ o Jorres taxaall ok e 1avie, BETWEEN NORTH TROY STREET Mo NORTH KEDZIE AVENUIE; THENCE EAST ALONG SAID | FEET; THENCE NORTY 42°35°54" WEST 6 52 FEET, THENCE NORTH 00"11741° EAST 3.3

> Y ordar o 1510(;'90;“& ) e OO hfﬂ Icagn, Caok County, Minals NOATH LINE AND TTS EAST EXTENSION T0 THE EAST LINE GF WEST ALBANY AVENIUE, THENCE | FEET THENCE NORTH 89%10°00" wssr 42.26 FEET T0) THE EAST LINE OF THE mm FIRS

c?“&”f o S SOUTH ALONG BAID EAST LINE DF WEST ALBANY AVENUE TO THE NDRTH LINE DF THE ALLEY | EAST OF NORTH MOZART STREET LYING BETWEEN WEST CULLOM AVENUE AND WES

fy Cterk, Gityof Lhicage, FIRST NORYH DF WEST |AVIRENCE AVENUE LYING BETWEEN NOFTH TROY STREET AND | MONTROSE AVENUE; THENGE SOUTH ALONG SAD EAST UNE OF THE ALEY RS EAST 0

A Gounty, lino NOATH ALBANY AVENUE: THENCE G SAID NOATH LINE (F THE ALLEY. ARST | NORTH IAOZART LYING BETWEEN WEST CULLOM AVENUE ANT WEST MONTRDS

i NOHTH OF WEST LAWRENCE AVENUE LYING BETWEEN NORTH TROY STREET AND NOHTH | AVENUE TO THE EAST EXTENSION DHHE NORTH LINE OF LOT 43 IN BLOCK 1IN AOSE PAR

Y GARKS S 1D peed SOUMMEST QLARIER,OF SECTION 12 TOWNGD “&“xﬁn’“ RN “‘ﬁ‘ AT O T 400 st 15 e OF TR PRNCEA HEROAN: ENGEMEST NG S

THORE'PARTS OF THE EAST HALF OF SECTION 14, THE SOUTHEAST (HIARTER OF PAL MERIDIAN: THENGE MORTH ALOI 43 [N BLOCK 1 1N NOSE PARK SUBDIVISION

ALL
SEGTION 11, THE SOI.ITHWI:”ST OUARTER OF SECTION 12 THE WEST HALF OF SECTION 13
THE WEST HALF OF THE EAST JALF OF SECTION 1:! THE EAST HALF OF THE NORTH
WMIERDF SECTION 23, AND THE WEST HALF OF T
ALL IN TOWNSHIP 40 NOATH, RANGE 13 EAST UF THE
I!EI\JHDEDMID DESCAMIED AS FOLLOWS: BEGINNING AT
1 DFﬂLﬁl}K 1IN AM, EMNES SUBDIVSHON. OF T}
SOUTHWES' UAH'FEI'. OF THE NORTHEAST
ST IJF AL} E'IHIH.D PIUNCIPAL
PﬁINTUF!NT[HSECTIUN UFTIIE NORTHUME EFWE MONTROSE AVENUE
THE EA.S!' LINE OF NORTH CENTRAL PARK AVENUE, THENCE NBTI\‘H ALONG SAID EAST
F NORTH CENTRAL PAFIK AVE ‘I’HE SOUTH LINE
HORTH CENTRAL AND KORTH | EAS
AID SOUTH LINE OF SAID nLLEY FIRST NORTH OF
0 LYING nFTW&EN NOATH CENTHAL PARK AVENLIE AND NORTH
RAKE AVENUE AMD ITS EAST EXTENSION 10 THE EAST LINE OF NORTH 5T, LOWAS AVENUE;
Eﬁﬂwﬂlllﬁﬂm SAID EAST LINE (IF NUHIH ST LOUIS AVENUE TO THE SOUTH LINE I}IE
E FIRST NOHTH OF WEST MONTROSE AVENUE LYING BETWEEN HORTH ST, LOUI
AVENUE AND NOATH BERNARD STREET, THENCE BAST ALONG SAID Sl]lJl‘h' LINE (F THE
ALLEY FIRST NORTH OF \NES MONTHOSE AVENLE LYING BETWEEN NORTH ST. LOUIS
IJEhHD NORTH ERM.HD SmEl-.'[ .ilNlJ 115 EAST EXTENSION 10 THE WEST UNE OF THE
HBTWES D AVENUE LYING BETWEEN WEST MBNTHDSE MI'EI'JI.IE
| AND WEST SU BEEN&' NONTH ALONG SAID WEST LINE OF THE ALLEY
FIRST WEST DF NOFﬂ'H I(EIJEIE "AVENLE L'!'ING DETWEEN WEST MUONTROSE AVENIJE ND
WEST SUNNYSIDE ATENSION SUIJTH |HE OF THE
D W.RBA THE

AN ELE\MTE tEML‘E WEST N.DNG SND SOUTH LINE OF
D STEAN ELEVATED RAILROAD AND (TS WEST EXTENSION T0 THE WESI LINE OF
3‘ BALL AVENUE: OF MOATH KIMBALL
A\'.ENUE'I THE NORTH LINE OF WEST LELAND AVENLIE; THENCE WEST AL'DNG SAHY NORTH
LINE OF WEST UFTUWEEJ\STLIIEOFM#LLEYFIR ST WEST OF HORT}

THENCE NOATH ALONG SAD WEST LINE
NE 0 AVEN
KIMBALL AVENUE LYING BETWEEN WEST LELAND AVENUE AND WEST LAWRENCE AVEN|

:-

uE
CE NORTH ALONG SAID EAST LINE i?‘r‘FETHE ALLEY EH!SI’ WQHST OF NORTH KIMBALL | 40

THEN
JVENUE YING DETWEEN WEST [ELAN| UE AND WEST LAWRENCE AVENUE "“E,EE
EXTENSION 10 THE NORTH LINE OF Tt n.urr FIAST SOUTH OF WEST
UE LYING BETWEEN NORTH KIMBALL AVENUE AND WORTH BERNARD STNEET, THENCE
ALGNG SAID NOFITH LINE OF THE MJ.E\' FIRST SOUTH OF WEST LAWRENCE AVENUE
9; RTH KIMBAL Lnus AND NORTH B EFJMRIJ STREET T0 THE WEST LINE
m}muua OCK 66 IN MUﬂTH sgijssom gu%nu OF rg.Tn?s 1, £a
1}? NORTHERST uuwe Psmmn 14, TOWNSHID 40 NORTH 15 EAar OF
memnu mm THENCE NORTH ALONG SAID WEST LINE or LOT mT 4
mnuc sa e Yo am:msauu T0 THE CENTERLINE LINE OF WEST
, EAST ALONG SAD CENTEHI.INE OF WERT LAWAENCE WENUE m
czmmlms THENCE NORTH ALONG SAID RLINE ur
umu mzsxm:nmnu OF THE NORTH LINE ufmemw FIRST
NDRT}ICIF wesrw:neummusum anweau NORTH KIMAALL AVENUE AND NORTH
CHRISTIAMA AVENUE: THENCE EAST ALONG SAID WEST tmusmcwme oA LINE O
THE ALLEY FIAST NORTH OF WEST LAWRENCE AVENUE LYING BETWEEN KORTH KNGALL
s'« LUE AND NORTH CHRISTANA AVENUE ANO SAID NGRTH LINE OF THE ALLEY F
OF WEST LAWRENCE MEN!.IE LYING BETYWEEN NORTH KIMBALL AVENUIE
ammu KEEE"”E EAST EXTENSION T0 THE EAST LINE DF THE ALLEY FIRST
OF NOATH IIEWENJE mms BETWEEN WEST wnmcs AVENUE AND
STREET; THENCE NOSTH ALONG SAID EAST LINE OF THE AL WEST
HEDZIE AVENLE LYING nsmr;m WEST LAWRENCE mwsm
mssm.mt LINE OFWEST AINSLIE STREET: THENCE EAGT ALONS ST L
STHEET 10 THE WEST UNE OF NDFTH neozls:\mua meuu-esnum ALONG SAID
wpsr UN‘E OF NOATH KEDZIE AVENUE TO THE'NORTH LINE OF WEST LELAND AVENUE;

WEST

SEAOL | ALONG SNO
PARALL
f | OF THE WEST 6 EET OF LOT 51 AND 1S Qi b
ALONG A LINE PARALLEL TG THE &

OF THE ALLEY HAST NOTH OF NE
PARK AVENLE

F | NORTHWEST

IRST
AND NORTH | SOUTHEAST AL

THIRD PRINGI N TL OF THE mr WALF OF
THE soumwesr CUARTER OF SECTION 12, mwuw m Nunm MNGE 13, EAST OF THE
THIAD PRl MERIDIAN TO THE NOSITH LINE THE SOUTH 258 FEET (F THAT PART OF L.
31 L'm.la uonm OF THE NORTH LINE OF LAWRENCE AVERUE IN ACKSO1 SUROMS
THE uumausr 174 OF SECION 11 AND THE SOUTHWEST 1/4 OF SECTION 12, THENCE FAST
NOATH LINE OF SA0 SOUTH 251 FEETTO A nua 46 FEET EAST OF ARD

ELWITH THE WEST LINE LOT 31 AFQHESAIN. THENCE SOUTH ALONG 5S40 EAST LINE
BATEASION 127 ‘!FEET THENCE EAST | Wi

LINE 4 FEET T0 THE EAST LINE OF THE WEST 50
THWEST QUARTER OF SECTION 1

SOUTH
FEET OF THE EAST HALF OF THE SOU)

THE WEST 50 FEET OF THE E&ST HALF OF THE SOUTHWEST OUARTE]
SECTIUN 12 T!?WNSIIIP AD WOATH, RANGE 13, EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN
125.2 FEET T0 THE NORTH LINE OF OF THE Sﬂlﬂ'ﬂ 248.5 FEET OF THAT PART OF LOT 31
L\'!NG NOHTH UF THE N(}RTH LINE UF LAWRENCE AVENUE AFCRESAID, THENCE EAST ALONG
SAID NORTH LINE OF SAID SOUTH 248 5 FEETTO THE EAST L PEOFIW’.WESTIQD&E‘I OF
THE EAST HALF OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF SECTION 12, TOWNSHIP 40 NORTH,
AANGE 13, EAST DF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERICIAN: THENCE NORTH ALONG MD EAST

1
NORTH, RANGE 13, EAST 0 EIHIR.D FR:NI;‘IFRL MENDMN
ONG SALD NORTH LINE i:iF THE SOUTH Jzz A FEET O HALF OF | Al
UTINVES QUARTER DF SECTION 12, TOWNSHIP 40 NORTH, FWJEE 13 E.A:!I OF THE
THRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN 263 FEET MORE DR LESS TIJ THE UUIHW S'I‘ERLY B&E 0F
THE SANITARY DISTR T FIGHT OF WaY, THENCE NORTHWEST @ G SA
SOUTHWES TERLY RIGHT OF WAY LINE; THENCE NDRTHEAST 21 .5 FEETID.AIJNENOWEJ\ST
(F AND .&DJJ\I‘.‘ENT TO SAID SOUTHWESTERLY LINE OF THE SANITARY DISTRI NGH‘I

{ | WAY, THENCE SOUTHEAST ALONG SAID ADJACENT LINE T THE NOTTTH LINE OF THE §

322 4 FEET OF THE EAST HALF OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF SECTION 12, TOWNSHIP
NOATH, RANGE 13, EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIOWAN; THENCE WEST ALONG
NORTH LINE 0F111‘E SOUTH 322 4 FEET OF THE EAST HALF OF THE SOUTHWEST GUARTER
OF SECTION 12, TOWNSHIP 40 NORTH, I'U.NGE 1:I am QF THE THIRD PHFNCIPAL MERIDIAN
TO A POINT OM 'S LINE 7,64 FEET EASTE AS MEASURED ALONG SAID LINE FROM
THE INTERSECTION OF SAJD LINE WITH A !JNE EEGINNING DN THE snum LINE OF LOT 31
317,68 FEET EAST OF THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF SAI0 LOT 31, SAID LINE BEARING NGFTH | AND
32°41'30" WEST, THENGE SOUTH 34'2B‘-|1 EASI 133,05 EFITUA LINE 200 FEET EAST
OF THE WEST LINE OF THE EAST HALF OF THE SOUTIWEST UUARTER OF SFBTL‘»N 12,
TOWNSHIP 40 NOTITH, RANGE 13, EAS'

ALDNG SAID UINE 200 FEET EAST

THENCE SOUTI( 32°47'42" EAST T0 THE SOUTH LINE OF WEST
fHENC EAST ALONG SAID SOUTH LINE OF WEST MWFENCE AVENL
LOT 5? IN THE SUBDMSIDN OF LOTS 1, 20, 21 AND 4
SWOOE MANOR SUBDIVISION OF THAT PARTE OF THE EAST HALF OF THE
C!JNTI‘EFI AN THE WEST HALF OF THE NDRTHEAST QUARTER OF SECTION 13,

TOWNSHIP 40 NOATH, PJNGE l:! EAST (OF THE THIRD PHlNI:[PN. MERIDIAN LYING BETWEEN
E SANTTARY DISTRICT RIGHT OF WAY AND FAIRFIELD AND MANOR AVERUE: THENCE
ONG SAD EJ\ST LiNE OF LOT 62 INTHE SWDMEIUN GFLOTS 1, 2, 21 AND

RAVENSWODD MANOR

40 IN ARST ADDNTION TO TD%S&HHL‘M

ANG D SOUTH N.QNG
S0UTH I.IP.I.E OF SAII} Lo7 52 TO AN ANGLE POINT S’JD Uﬂ%ﬂi OF SAID LOT 62,

THENCE WEST ALONG SAIL SOUTH LINE OF SNID I.DT 62 MD ASWEST BﬂENSIDN TOTHE

OT | LINE OF NORY
10N (F | FRANCE,

GF. 13, EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERITIAN: THENGE NOITH ALONG SAID | FEET OF LOT 41

AVENUE LYING BETWEEN
THENCE WEST ALONG SAID NORTH LINE OF T'HE AlLLY
A | AVENUE LYING BETWEEN NDATH SACRAMENTO AVEN

0 IN FIRST &ND&DJMHI' LOT

) |AOAD; THENCE EAST N.LJ (1]
D HIVING PARK ROAD T
I | SAD EAST LINE OF NOH'HIM.EMN\‘ M'EMU’E TU THE SOUTH LINE OF THE ALLEY FIRST NO
FIOAD LYING BETWEEN WEST AL

EAST EXTENSION OF THE NORTH LINE OF LOT
AND THE NOF!TH LINE OF LOT 43 In SAID BLOCK. | AND ITS WEST EKTENSIDH T0 THE WES
TH FRANCISCO AVENUE: IIENCE SOUTH ALONG SAID WE LINE OF NORT
SCEI .G.\TENUE‘IEI THE SDIJ'IH LINE OF LOT *A" [N THE CONSOLIDATION OF LOTS 1 T
GIN BLOCK 3 IN 50 NOSE PARK SUBDMSION; THEMCE WEST ALONG SAID SOUTH LINE D
LOT *A% IN THE QUNSUI.IUAHUN (f LOTS 1700 IH BLOCK 3 AND 15 WEST EXTENSION Tt
‘I'HEWESTLINECFTH Y FIRS E)\ST OF NOATH R
T MONTROSE AVENL EMID‘NEST LLEOM AVENUE, TH
UNE OF THE ALLEY FIRST EAST (F NORTH RICHMOND STHEEI' BETWEEN WES
MONTROSE AVENUE AND WEST CULLOM AVENUE TO THE NORTH LfNE EIF THE SOUTH 2.
IN BLOCK 3 OF SAID AOSE PARK J\HSIIJN 'IHENCE WEST ALONG SAll
WORTH LINE OF THE SCII.ITN'? B FEET OF LOT 41 INBLOCK 3 OF SAI0 AOSE SUBOMSION
AND TT5 WEST EXTENSION TO THE WEST LINE OF NGIIIH FIICHMGND STAEET, THENC
HORTH ALONG 5AID WEST LINE OF NORTH RICH MEIND STREET T0 THE
1 N BLOCK 4 UF SAID F!DSE FMIE SUBDIVISION, THE
LOT 1IN BLOE 4{!F 05 S‘UG VISION 'NESTEXT H Lt
QF NOATH SAC NTO AVENUE, THENCE NDRTH ALONG Sd\ID WEST LINE UF NUHII
SACRAMENTO .MI’ENIJE TOTHE HDR’F‘H LINE OF ‘I'HEAI.LEY HI!S'F SULI'IH OF WEST MD\‘TFIOS
LYING NOATH SACHAMENTO AVENUE AND N

FIRST SO1.I'IH DF WEST MBNTRD&-

UE AND NOATH WHIPPLE AVE

I.TS WEST EXTENSION T0 THE WEST LINE OF NOATH ALBANY AVENUE THENCE NOITI'!

G SAID WES'E UNE 0 THE SOUTH LINE OF LOT 2 IN BLOCK | (N BALDWIN DAY,

&ﬂ!mﬁm OF THE NOATHEAST QUARTER OF THE WEST HALF OF THE WES‘I ItALF ﬂF IH

SCFJ'IH'MEST OLIILRTEH OF SEL‘"IION 13, TOWNSHIP 40 NORTH, RANGE 13, EAST 0

THIAD PR THENCE WEST ALONG SAID SOUTH LINE DF LU!F 2N E!LIJCK

N B‘J\LD‘WJN [!Ml'lS SUBDIU!SIDN AND TS WEST EXTENSION [0 I'ILE\'.'LST UNE (F THE ALLE

FIRBT EAST OF NﬁHTH TRD\' WEST MONTRO! AND WES
£ SOUTH ALONG W ESI‘ UME OF THE ALLEY FIFLSf

OUTH | CULLOM AVENUE: EAST OF NOATH
TROY STREET. L'I‘hNG I! EEN WEST MONTRUSE AVENUE AND WEST WLLOMT&?EPI{IUTEH

NG S | THE NORTH LlNE OF LUT 13N fHE RESLHIDMSION aF uIS 110 G AND VA
(F AND ADJA QCK | OF

THE STREEY NT TO LOT 1 IN 8L H. HALE"
SUBDVISION BF ﬂlE NOHTHWEST DIJMTCIT O THE WEST HALF OF THE 'NESY HALF OF TH
SOUTHWEST OUARTER IN SECTION 13, TUWNSHIP 40 NORTH, HANGE 13, FAST OF TH
THIRD PRINCIPAL ﬁﬁﬂiDWJ TOGETHER WITH LOTS 42 TO 46 AND \'M.J\TEB S!‘HEET NUﬁ'ﬂ
ADJACENT LT 46 IN I.IEOCK 1 OF SAID BALDWIN DAVIS SUBDIVIS
0 G SAID NOTH LINE OF SAID LOT 125 AND ITS WEST EXTENSION 'ID I'N ‘NEST LINE U
NURI’H TROY STREET, THENEE SOUTH ALONG SAID WEST IJN[ OF NORTH TROY STREET T
£ MOATH LINE OF LOT 11 NSNDREWWS TDGNNJ‘MCMED PMTEI
THESTHB:T NOATH OF AND ABJACENT D INHL OF CHAS, K.
uunmou IJF THE NORTHWEST GUARWH GF THE WEST HALF u:r THE WEST HALF ﬂ ‘PH
QUTHWEST QUARTER IN SECTION 13, TOWN: RANGE 13, EA‘SI OF T
THIRD FH.INCIPAL MEFHDIMI TOBETHER LUTS 12 I'IJ iE \MCATED STREET 0TI
BLOCK 1 OF BALDWIN TALONI
SAID NOATH LINI EDFF&P.IDLOT H‘OT?EEJIST
I(EDZJE MVENUE I.\ﬂNG BETWEEN WEST [
THENCE SOUTH ALONG SAJ DEAST!.INEUF HEA.I..LE\‘
AVENUE LYING BE‘M’EEN WEST CULLOM AVENUE AND WEST MDHT‘RUSE AVENUE AND IT!
SOUTH EXTENSION 7O A LINE 127 FEET NOATH OF THENORTH LINE OF WEST IRVING PARU
l SAID LINE 1?? FEET NORTH OF THE NORTH I.INE [F WES
0 THE EAST LINE OF NORTH ALBANY AVENUE; THENCE SOUT) MPUNI

OF WEST IfIVING PARK DANY AVENUE AND WEST W‘HIFPL
STREET. THENCE EAST ALUNE SAID SUIJI‘H UNE OF THE ALLEY FIRST NOATH OF
IMANG PARK ATAD LYING 0 N WEST ALBANY AVENUE AND WEST WHIRPLE STREE

ET\;{EJ AL
AND TS EAST EX1EN5IGN TO THE WEST LINE OF NORTH SACRAMENTD AVENUE; THENC
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NORTH SACAAMENTO J\\I'ENI.IE 0
SAWG:MEI'IQ mfg REE%ET ALONG SAID NI!I‘TH UNE QF HDRTH
\;ﬁsf (VNG PARK ROAD LYING BETWEEN NORTH

NUE WEST mmsmmmsmr NE

Nﬂﬂ'l!i ALONG SAID UNE D?TI’E ALLEY i
G BETWEEN WEST

SOU?HEAS. T QUARTER
.Pt\-"ENI.IE LYING B'ENEEN PARK RO, EAST DF THNJ FRINCIPAL MERIDIAN;
THENCE NORTH ALONG SAID EJ\SF !.HE OF THE ALLEY FIREI UHE CIF
BETWEEN WE‘E!' VING PARK ROAD AND WEST AND ITS WEST WTHE OATH SAWYER
TO THE NOATH LINE OF THE ALLEY FIRST ALONG SAID WEST UNE OF NORTH meﬁw 10 THE NORTH
ZIE AVENUE AMD NORTH - FIRST SOUTH OF Wi UE LYING NI

FIAST SOUTH OF NDﬂﬂiSPﬁ.ﬂLmNB
IE AVERUE AND NOATH SAWYER

wsér
Adumummmmsw

EAST ALONG SAID NOHRTH

EXTENSIO
GE NOHTH ALONG SAID WEST LINE OF NORITH SPAULD|
OF LOT 24 IN WH, I:GNDI}H'S Sl.lg
SOUTHEAST OUARTER OF
LNTHFNE!E WEST M.ONG SHD NGNTH

T WEST OF N NORTH 75 FEET er 24 AND nswtsr
AVENUE AND WEST WARNER mmur
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ntm’m KEDZIE EAST LINE OF LOT 20 IN WH. CONDON'S SUBDVISION TO THE NORTH LINE ormmm

AVENUE ANDITS  FIRST SOUTH OF WEST MONTROSE AVENUE LYWG G BETWEEN NORTH SPALLOING avenuE | Il
\‘J‘iST ALONG AND NORTH KIMUALL AVENUE; THENCE WEST ALONG SAID NORTH LINE OF THE FRST
OF WEST MONTROSE AVENUE LYING DETWEEN NORTH SPAULDING AVENUE AND
VENE A w\ggﬁﬁﬁ% NORTII KIMBALL AVENUE AND TS WEST EXTENSION TO WEST LINE OF NOSITH KINRALL
VENLIE AND AVENUE; WENESMTHM.DNGMUWEHUHEYOWHDRTHLWEUFU}T%IHQLOGK
BARgeRs | WA, HILL AND COMPANY'S BOULEVARD ADDITION TO LVING PARK SUBDMSION OF THE

HALF OF THE EMTMLFDFTHEWESTHMFDFHESU UTHEAST QUARTER OF SECTION 14, TOWNSHP | -

{IP 40 NOATH, 40 NOATH. RANGE 13, EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN; THENGE WEST ALONG
SAID SOUTH smnunm LINE LMMNHLOGH 1N A, HILL AND COMPANY'S BOULEVARD ADDITION

N TO VNG PARK SUBDIVISION AND ITS WEST EXTENSION TO THE WEST LINE OF NOHTH ST, )
EHCENEJIII‘II LOLES AVENUE; THENCE NORTH M.D‘Nﬂ SAID WEST LINE OF NOKTH ST. LDIJISM‘ENUE T0
T!IEHQFITH LINE OF THE ALLEY FIRST SOUTH OF WEST MONTROSE AVENUE LYING BETWEEN
»°' NORATH ST. LOUS AVERLE AND NORTH DRAKE AVENUE; THENCE WEST ALONG SAID NORTH
o Eﬁw&wﬂm LINE OF THE ALLEY nusrsuum OFWEST MONTROSE AVENUIE LYING BETWEEN MORTH ST,

XE ﬂueeml%m SPAULDING LOUIS AVENUE ANO NORTH DRAXE AVENUE TO THE EAST LINE OF NORTH GENTRAL PARK

G AVENUE TD THE TWENUE; THENCE NORTH ALONG SAID EAST LINE OF NORTH GENIRALP.AH(I\I‘ENUETDTHE

DMSION OF THE POINT OF DEGINNING: ALL IN THE CITY OF CHICABD, COUK COUNTY, ILLINGIS.
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Mayor
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AGREEMENT

This Agreement for the management of Special Service Area Number 60 is entered into
on_Maich 1 , 2014 by and between North River Commission, an Illinois not-for-profit
corporation ("Contractor"), and the City of Chicago ("City"), a municipal corporation and home
rule unit of local government existing under the Constitution of the State of Illinois, acting
through the Special Service Area Commission at Chicago, Illinois.

RECITALS

WHEREAS, special service areas may be established pursuant to Article VII, §§ 6(1) and
7(6) of the Constitution of the State of Illinois, and pursuant to the provisions of the Special
Service Area Tax Law, 35 ILCS 200/27-5 et seq.; and

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Chicago ("City Council") has established a
special service area known and designated as "Special Service Area Number 60" ("Area"), to
provide special services in addition to those services provided generally by the City ("Special
Services"). The City Council has further authorized the levy of an annual ad valorem real
property tax in the Area sufficient to produce revenues required to provide those Special Services
but not to exceed .425% of the equalized assessed value of all property within the Area ("Service
Tax"), all as provided in the Establishment Ordinance (hereinafter defined); and

WHEREAS, the City Council, on DKCWWV [ ! , 2013, authorized the levy of the
Service Tax and appropriation of the funds therefrom for the Area for fiscal year 2014 for the
provision of the Special Services in the Area, and the City wishes to provide that the Contractor,
beginning on January 1, 2014, and continuing until December 31, 2014, may use those funds to
provide the Services, subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement; and

WHEREAS, the Contractor and the City desire to enter into this Agreement to provide
such Special Services in the Area and the Contractor is ready, willing and able to enter into this
Agreement to provide the Special Services to the full satisfaction of the City;

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises contained in this
Agreement, the City and the Contractor agree as follows:

ARTICLE 1 INCORPORATION OF RECITALS

The recitals set forth above are incorporated by reference as if fully set forth herein.



ARTICLE 2 DEFINITIONS

The following words and phrases shall have the following meanings for purposes of this
Agreement:

"Agreement" means this Special Service Area Agreement, including all exhibits attached
to it and incorporated in it by reference, and all amendments, modifications or revisions made in
accordance with its terms.

"Commissioner" means the Commissioner of the Department of Housing and Economic
Development or a duly authorized representative of the Commissioner of the Department of
Housing and Economic Development.

"Construction" means that work of a nature constituting “public works” as defined in
820 ILCS 130/2, such as landscaping and building activities, including but not limited to,
physical building improvements, installations and other fixed works, but does not include pre-
development work (design and preparation of specifications).

"Days" means business days in accordance with the City of Chicago business calendar.

"Department" means the City of Chicago Department of Housing and Economic
Development.

"Establishment Ordinance" means the ordinance enacted by City Council on December
__» 2013, and any subsequent amendments thereto authorizing imposition of the Service Tax and
setting forth the Special Services to be provided in the Area.

“Late Collections” means any tax revenue received by the City during the term of this
Agreement attributable to the levy of the Service Tax in prior years in the SSA, along with any
interest income on such revenue.

"Risk Management Division" means the Risk Management Division of the Department
of Finance which is under the direction of the Comptroller of the City and is charged with
reviewing and analyzing insurance and related liability matters for the City.

"Security Firm" means a business entity certified by the State of Illinois pursuant to the
Private Detective, Private Alarm, Private Security, Fingerprint Vendor, and Locksmith Act of
2004, 225 ILCS 447 et seq., and whose employees are licensed by the State of Illinois.

"Services" means, collectively, the services, duties and responsibilities described in
Article 3 and Exhibit 1 (Scope of Services & Budget) of this Agreement and any revisions
thereof and any and all work necessary to complete them or carry them out fully and to the
standard of performance required in this Agreement.



"Service Tax Funds" means the amount actually collected pursuant to the Service Tax.

"Special Service Area Commission ("'SSAC')" means the body established pursuant to
the Establishment Ordinance to prepare the Budget, identify a Contractor and supervise the
provision of the Special Services in the Area.

"Subcontractor" means any person or entity with whom Contractor contracts to provide
any part of the Services, including subcontractors of any tier, subconsultants of any tier, suppliers
and materialmen, whether or not in privity with the Contractor.

"Surplus Funds", also referred to as “Carry-Over Funds”, means those Service Tax
Funds already collected and disbursed to the Contractor in prior years for the provision of Special
Services in the Area which remain unspent, including any interest earned thereon.

ARTICLE 3 DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES OF CONTRACTOR
3.01 Scope of Services

The Services which the Contractor shall provide include, but are not limited to, those
described in this Article 3 and in Exhibit 1 which is attached hereto and incorporated by
reference as if fully set forth here. The SSAC reserves the right to require the Contractor to
perform revised services that are within the general scope of services of this Agreement and of
the Special Services identified in the Establishment Ordinance subject to the same terms and
conditions herein. Revised services are limited to changes or revisions to the line items in the
Budget, do not affect the maximum compensation and require the prior written approval of the
SSAC. The SSAC may, by written notice to the Department and the Contractor, delete or amend
the figures contained and described in the Budget attached hereto as Exhibit 1 and incorporated
by reference as if fully set forth herein. The Contractor shall provide the Services in accordance
with the standards of performance set forth in Section 3.02.

3.02 Standard of Performance

The Contractor shall perform all Services required of it with that degree of skill, care and
diligence normally shown by a contractor performing services of a scope, purpose and magnitude
comparable with the nature of the Services to be provided hereunder. The Contractor shall at all
times use every reasonable effort on behalf of the City to assure timely and satisfactory rendering
and completion of its Services.

The Contractor shall at all times act in the best interests of the City consistent with the
professional obligations assumed by it in entering into this Agreement. The Contractor shall
perform all Services in accordance with the terms and conditions of this Agreement and to the
full satisfaction of the SSAC. The Contractor shall furnish efficient business administration and
supervision to render and complete the Services at reasonable cost.



The Contractor shall assure that all Services that require the exercise of professional skills
or judgment are accomplished by professionals qualified and competent in the applicable
discipline and appropriately licensed, if required by law. The Contractor remains responsible for
the professional and technical accuracy of all Services provided, whether by the Contractor or its
Subcontractors or others on its behalf.

If the SSAC determines that the Contractor has failed to comply with the foregoing
standards, the Contractor shall perform again, at its own expense, all Services required to be
reperformed as a direct or indirect result of such failure. Any review, approval, acceptance or
payment for any or all of the Services by the City does not relieve the Contractor of its
responsibility for the professional and technical accuracy of its Services. This provision in no
way limits the City's rights against Contractor, either under this Agreement, at law or in equity.

3.03 Personnel
A. Key Personnel

The Contractor shall, immediately upon receiving a fully executed copy of this
Agreement, assign and maintain during the term of this Agreement and any extension thereof an
adequate staff of competent personnel, who are fully equipped, licensed as appropriate, available
as needed, qualified and assigned to perform the Services. Contractor shall pay the salaries and
wages due all its employees performing Services under this Agreement unconditionally and at
least once a month without deduction or rebate on any account, except only for such payroll
deductions as are mandatory by law or are permitted under applicable law and regulations.

B. Prevailing Wages

If the Contractor engages in Construction, it shall comply, and shall cause all of its
Subcontractors to comply by inserting appropriate provisions in their contracts, with 820 ILCS
130/0.01 et seq. regarding the payment of the general prevailing rate of hourly wage for all
laborers, workers, and mechanics employed by or on behalf of the Contractor and all
Subcontractors in connection with any and all Construction work. The prevailing rates of wages
applicable at the time of execution of this Agreement are included in Exhibit 5 to this
Agreement, which is incorporated by reference as though fully set forth herein.

C. Illinois Workers, Veterans Preference and Steel Products

If the Contractor engages in Construction, it shall comply, and shall cause all of its
Subcontractors to comply by inserting appropriate provisions in their contracts, with the
Employment of Illinois Workers on Public Works Act, 30 ILCS 570/0.01 et seq., the Veterans
Preference Act, 330 ILCS 55/0.01 et seq., and the Steel Products Procurement Act, 30 ILCS
30/565/1 et seq.



3.04 Nondiscrimination
(a) Contractor

1) Federal Requirements

Contractor must not engage in unlawful employment practices, such as (1) failing or
refusing to hire or discharging any individual, or otherwise discriminating against any
individual with respect to compensation or the terms, conditions or privileges of the
individual’s employment, because of the individual's race, color, religion, sex, age,
handicap/disability or national origin, or (2) limiting, segregating or classifying
Contractor’s employees or applicants for employment in any way that would deprive or
tend to deprive any individual of employment opportunities or otherwise adversely affect
the individual’s status as an employee, because of the individual's race, color, religion,
sex, age, handicap/disability or national origin.

Contractor must comply with, and the procedures Contractor utilizes and the Services
Contractor provides under this Agreement must comply with, the Civil Rights Act of
1964, 42 U.S.C. § 2000e et seg. (1981), as amended and the Civil Rights Act of 1991,
P.L. 102-166. Attention is called to: Exec. Order No. 11246, 30 Fed. Reg. 12,319
(1965), reprinted in 42 U.S.C. § 2000e note, as amended by Exec. Order No. 11375, 32
Fed. Reg. 14,303 (1967) and by Exec. Order No. 12086, 43 Fed. Reg. 46,501 (1978); Age
Discrimination Act, 42 U.S.C. §§ 6101-6106 (1981); Age Discrimination in Employment
Act, 29 U.S.C. §§ 621-34; Rehabilitation Act of 1973, 29 U.S.C. §§ 793-794 (1981);
Americans with Disabilities Act, 42 U.S.C. §12101 et seq.; 41 C.F.R. Part 60 et seq.
(1990); and all other applicable federal statutes, regulations and other laws.

(ii) State Requirements

Contractor must comply with, and the procedures Contractor utilizes and the Services
Contractor provides under this Agreement must comply with, the Illinois Human
Rights Act, 775 ILCS 5/1-101 et seq.(1990), as amended and any rules and regulations
promulgated in accordance with it, including the Equal Employment Opportunity Clause,
44 11l. Admin. Code § 750 Appendix A. Furthermore, Contractor must comply with the
Public Works Employment Discrimination Act, 775 ILCS 10/0.01 et seq.(1990), as
amended, and all other applicable state statues, regulations and other laws.

@ii))  City Requirements

Contractor must comply with, and the procedures Contractor utilizes and the Services
Contractor provides under this Agreement must comply with, the Chicago Human Rights
Ordinance, ch. 2-160, Section 2-160-010 et seq. of the Municipal Code of Chicago
(1990), as amended, and all other applicable City ordinances and rules.



(b)  Subcontractors

Contractor must incorporate all of this Section 3.04 by reference in all agreements entered
into with any suppliers of materials, furnisher of services, Subcontractors of any tier, and labor
organizations that furnish skilled, unskilled and craft union skilled labor, or that may provide any
such materials, labor or services in connection with this Agreement. Further, Contractor must
furnish and must cause each of its Subcontractor(s) to furnish such reports and information as
requested by the federal, state and local agencies charged with enforcing such laws and
regulations, including the Chicago Commission on Human Relations.

3.05 Insurance

The Contractor shall comply with the insurance provisions attached hereto as Exhibit 3
and incorporated by reference as if fully set forth herein, or such other insurance provisions as
may be required in the reasonable judgment of the Risk Management Division. If the Contractor
enters into a subcontract with a Security Firm such Security Firm shall comply with the insurance
provisions attached hereto as Exhibit 4 and incorporated by reference as if fully set forth herein,
or such other insurance provisions as may be required in the reasonable judgment of the Risk
Management Division. If the Contractor subcontracts with a Subcontractor other than a Security
Firm, such Subcontractor shall comply with the Contractor insurance provisions attached hereto
as Exhibit 3.

The Risk Management Division may waive or reduce any of the insurance requirements
set forth herein.

3.06 Indemnification

A. On written notice from the City of Losses the City believes are Losses Arising
under this Agreement as defined in this Section 3.06, the Contractor shall defend, indemnify, and
hold completely harmless the City Indemnitees from and against such Losses, regardless of
whether Contractor challenges the City’s belief.  The defense, indemnification and hold
harmless obligations of the Contractor toward City Indemnitees remain an affirmative obligation
of Contractor following the City’s notice of Losses the City believes are Losses Arising under
this Agreement, unless and until a court of competent jurisdiction finally determines otherwise
and all opportunities for appeal have been exhausted or have lapsed.

B. For purposes of this Section 3.06,

“City Indemnitees” means, individually and collectively, the City of Chicago, its
officials, agents, employees and SSAC members.

“Losses” means, individually and collectively, all kinds of liabilities, losses, suits,
claims, damages, judgments, fines, and demands, including all reasonable costs for investigation,
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reasonable attorneys’ fees, court costs, and experts’ fees, arising by reason of injury or death of
any person, damage to property, patent or copyright infringement.

“Arising under this Agreement” means (i) arising out of awarding this Agreement, (ii)
arising out of the enforcement of this Agreement, including the enforcement of this
indemnification provision; (iii) arising out of or in connection with Contractor’s performance or
non-performance of this Agreement (including the acts or omission of Contractor, its officers,
agents, employees, consultants, subcontractors, licensees, or invitees), any breach by any of them
of any warranty made under this Agreement, or any failure by any of them to meet any applicable
standard of performance under this Agreement; or (iv) any combination of any of the foregoing.

C. To the extent permissible by law, Contractor waives any limits on Contractor’s
liability that it would otherwise have by virtue of the Worker’s Compensation Act or any other
related law or judicial decision (such as Kotecki v. Cyclops Welding Corporation, 146 111, 2d 155
(1991)). The City, however, does not waive any limitations it may have on its liability under the
Worker’s Compensation Act or under the Illinois Pension Code.

D. The City has the right, at its option and at its own expense, to participate in the
defense of any suit without relieving Contractor of any of its obligations under this indemnity
provision. The requirements set forth in this indemnity provision are separate from and not
limited by the amount of insurance Contractor is required to obtain under this Agreement or by
its bonds pursuant to other provisions in this Agreement. Further, the indemnitees contained in
this provision survive the expiration or termination of this Agreement.

3.07 Records and Audits

The Contractor shall deliver or cause to be delivered all documents, data, studies, reports,
findings or information to the SSAC promptly in accordance with the time limits prescribed
herein and if no time limit is specified, then upon reasonable demand therefore, or upon
termination or completion of the Services hereunder.

The Contractor agrees to adopt at its own expense such financial controls, including,
without limitation, the employment of a fiscal agent approved by the Commissioner, as
determined by the Commissioner in his sole discretion and communicated in writing to the
Contractor after the date of execution of this Agreement, to ensure that the Contractor is fulfilling
the terms of this Agreement.

The Contractor and any Subcontractors shall furnish the SSAC with semi-annual reports
or provide such information as may be requested relative to the performance and cost of the
Services. The Contractor shall maintain records showing actual time devoted and costs incurred.
The Contractor shall keep books, documents, paper, records and accounts in connection with the
Services open to inspection, copying, abstracting, transcription, and an independent audit by City
employees or agents or third parties, and shall make these records available to the City and any
other interested governmental agency at reasonable times during the performance of its Services.
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In addition, Contractor shall retain them in a safe place and make them available for an
independent audit, inspection, copying and abstracting for at least five years after the final
payment made in connection with this Agreement.

THE CONTRACTOR SHALL NOT COMMINGLE SERVICE TAX FUNDS WITH
FUNDS FROM OTHER SOURCES, and to the extent that the Contractor conducts any business
operations separate and apart from the Services hereunder using, for example, personnel,
equipment, supplies or facilities also used in connection with this Agreement, then the Contractor
shall maintain and make similarly available to the City detailed records supporting the
Contractor's allocation to this Agreement of the costs and expenses attributable to any such
shared usages.

The Contractor shall provide an annual audited financial statement (a “Third Party
Audit”) to the Department and the SSAC within 120 calendar days after the end of the calendar
year, and the system of accounting shall be in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles and practices, consistently applied throughout. Contractor must comply with the
requirements in Exhibit 8 with respect to any Third Party Audit. If any Third Party Audit shows
that Contractor or any of its Subcontractors has overcharged the City in any period, the City will
notify Contractor, and Contractor must then promptly reimburse the City for any amounts the
City has paid Contractor due to the overcharges. Any failure to comply with the audit
requirements set forth in Exhibit 8 of the Agreement shall constitute an event of default under the
Agreement. If such event of default is not corrected to the City’s satisfaction within the cure
period identified by the City, the City may incur costs to conduct any supplementary audit it
deems necessary, and Contractor must then promptly reimburse the City for any such costs. No
provision in this Agreement granting the City a right of access to records and documents is
intended to impair, limit or affect any right of access to such records and documents that the City
would have had in the absence of such provisions.

The City may in its sole discretion audit the records of Contractor or its Subcontractors,
or both, at any time during the term of this Agreement or within five years after the Agreement
ends, in connection with the goods, work, or services provided under this Agreement. Each
calendar year or partial calendar year is considered an “audited period.” If, as a result of such an
audit, it is determined that Contractor or any of its Subcontractors has overcharged the City in the
audited period, the City will notify Contractor. Contractor must then promptly reimburse the
City for any amounts the City has paid Contractor due to the overcharges and also some or all of
the cost of the audit, as follows:

A. If the audit has revealed overcharges to the City representing less than 5% of the
total value, based on the Agreement prices, of the goods, work, or services provided in the
audited period, then the Contractor must reimburse the City for 50% of the cost of the audit and
50% of the cost of each subsequent audit that the City conducts;

B. If, however, the audit has revealed overcharges to the City representing 5% or
more of the total value, based on the Agreement prices, of the goods, work, or services provided
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in the audited period, then Contractor must reimburse the City for the full cost of the audit and of
each subsequent audit.

If the City is unable to make a determination regarding overcharges to City as a result of
Contractor’s not having maintained records as required under this Agreement, Contractor must
promptly reimburse the City for some or all of the cost of the audit, as determined in the sole
discretion of the City. Failure of Contractor to promptly reimburse the City in accordance with
this Section 3.07 is an event of default under Section 7.01 of this Agreement, and Contractor will
be liable for all of the City’s costs of collection, including any court costs and attorneys’ fees.

3.08 Subcontracts and Assignments

The Contractor shall not assign, delegate, subcontract or otherwise transfer all or any part
of its rights or obligations under this Agreement or any part hereof, unless otherwise provided for
herein or without the express written consent of the SSAC. The absence of such provision or
written consent shall void the attempted assignment, delegation or transfer and shall be of no
effect as to the Services or this Agreement.

All subcontracts, all approvals of Subcontractors and any assignment to which the SSAC
consents are, regardless of their form, deemed conditioned upon performance by the
Subcontractor or assignee in accordance with the terms and conditions of this Agreement.

If the Contractor subcontracts for security services, the Subcontractor shall be a Security
Firm certified by the State of Illinois and the Security Firm's employees shall be licensed by the
State of Illinois. The Contractor, upon entering into any subcontract with a Security Firm, shall
furnish the SSAC and the Department with a copy of the subcontract for their approval. The City
expressly reserves the right to approve all Security Firm subcontracts.

3.09 License, Permits and Safety Considerations
A. Licenses and Permits

If the Contractor engages in Construction, it is responsible for and, in a timely manner
consistent with its obligations hereunder, shall secure and maintain at its expense such permits,
licenses, authorizations and approvals as are necessary for it to engage Construction under this
Agreement

B. Safety Considerations

If the Contractor engages in Construction, it shall at all times exercise reasonable care,
shall comply with all applicable provisions of federal, state and local laws to prevent accidents or
injuries, and shall take all appropriate precautions to avoid damage to and loss of City property
and the property of third parties in connection with the Construction. The Contractor shall erect
and properly maintain at all times all necessary safeguards, barriers, flags and lights for the
protection of its and its Subcontractors' employees, City employees and the public.
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If the Contractor engages in Construction, it shall report to the Department any damage
on, about, under or adjacent to City property or the property of third persons resulting from its
performance under this Agreement. The Contractor is responsible for any damage to City
property and the property of third parties due, in whole or in part, to the Contractor's
Construction activities under this Agreement, and the Contractor shall repair such damage to a
reasonably acceptable standard.

3.10 Performance Bond

If the Contractor engages in Construction work where expenditures exceed $100,000, it
shall, not later than the date the Contractor begins such work or executes a subcontract for such
work, provide or cause to be provided to the Department a performance and payment bond in the
amount allocated for the Construction work (but not including the amount allocated for design
and preparation of specifications), by a surety or sureties acceptable to the City. The
performance bond shall be in the form and to the effect of Exhibit 6 hereto, which is incorporated
by reference as if fully set forth here.

If any of the sureties on such bond at any time fail financially, or are deemed to be
insufficient security for the penalty of the bond, then the City may, on giving 10 days notice
thereof in writing, require the Contractor to furnish a new and additional bond with sureties
satisfactory to the City, and, if so required, Contractor must promptly provide such bond.

ARTICLE 4 TERM OF SERVICES

This Agreement shall take effect as of January 1, 2014 ("Effective Date") and shall
continue through December 31, 2014, or until the Agreement is terminated earlier in accordance
with its terms.

ARTICLE S COMPENSATION
5.01 Basis of Payment

The maximum compensation that the Contractor may be paid under this Agreement
between January 1, 2014 and December 31, 2014 is the sum of (a) $423,368 or the total amount
of Service Tax Funds actually collected, plus interest earned on those funds, for tax year 2013,
whichever is less; (b) the total amount of Surplus Funds in the amount of $0 which are being
carried over from previous program years and which contractor hereby acknowledges are in its
possession; and (¢) Late Collections in an amount not to exceed $0; the maximum compensation
that the Contractor may be paid under this Agreement between January 1, 2014 and December
31, 2014, therefore, shall not exceed $423,368.
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5.02 Budget for Services

The Contractor in conjunction with the SSAC has prepared a Budget through December
31, 2014, attached hereto as Exhibit 1 and incorporated by reference as if fully set forth here,
covering all services described in the Scope of Services. Subject to the restriction that the
maximum amount that may be spent in calendar year 2014 may not exceed $423,368, the SSAC
reserves the right to transfer funds between line items or make Budget revisions that do not affect
the maximum compensation set forth in Section 5.01. The SSAC shall revise the Budget if any
part of the Contractor's Services is terminated.

5.03 Method of Payment

Pursuant to a schedule to be determined by the Commissioner, after the performance of
Services pursuant to the terms of this Agreement, Contractor may submit invoices to the City to
request reimbursement for such expenses. The Contractor must provide, along with the invoices,
such additional documentation as the Commissioner requests to substantiate the Services. Upon
the Commissioner's determination that the invoices are accurate, the City will process payment of
the invoices.

The Contractor shall establish a separate checking account ("Account") in a bank
authorized to do business in the State of Illinois that is insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance
Corporation. All Service Tax Funds that the Comptroller transfers to the Contractor shall be
deposited in the Account and disbursements from the Account shall be pursuant to this
Agreement. THE CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR RECONCILING THE ACCOUNT
MONTHLY AND ACCOUNTING FOR ALL SERVICE TAX FUNDS. THE CONTRACTOR
MUST REQUIRE ITS AUDITOR TO REPORT ON THE ACTIVITIES THAT ARE
SUPPORTED BY THESE FUNDS IN A SEPARATE AUDIT TO ACCOUNT FOR CURRENT
AND PRIOR YEARS’ SERVICE TAX FUNDS.

The Contractor shall provide to the SSAC the signature card and sample check from the
bank which shows the signature(s) of the Contractor's authorized representative(s). The SSAC
reserves the right to audit the account and require the Contractor to refund any funds that were
not spent pursuant to the Budget or that were not approved by the SSAC. The name and address

< ALEBANY BANFE g TRUST O MA. .
of the bank is 2400 uj LAWEENCE AVE  CHICAGE I éoizs and the wire transfer

and the Account numbers are RouTiNs: O HOOLHE ACET #5208 (&

All funds remaining in the Account at the expiration or early termination of this
Agreement, including any interest earned, belong to the City for the benefit of the Area and shall
be returned to the City to be used only for Special Services.

5.04 Criteria for Payment

The SSAC shall determine the reasonableness, allocability and allowability of any rates,
costs and expenses charged or incurred by the Contractor.

11
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5.05 Funding

Payments under this Agreement shall be made from Service Tax Funds in fund number
and are subject to the availability of funds therein.

5.06 Non-Appropriation

In the event that no funds or insufficient funds are appropriated and budgeted in any City
fiscal period for payments to be made under this Agreement, then the City will notify the
Contractor of such occurrence and this Agreement shall terminate on the earlier of the last day of
the fiscal period for which sufficient appropriation was made or whenever the funds appropriated
for payment under this Agreement are exhausted. No payments shall be made or due to the
Contractor under this Agreement beyond those amounts appropriated and budgeted by the City to
fund payments hereunder.

ARTICLE 6 SPECIAL CONDITIONS
6.01 Warranties and Representations

In connection with the execution of this Agreement, the Contractor warrants and
represents:

A. That it is financially solvent; that it and each of its employees, agents, and
Subcontractors are competent to perform the Services required; that it is legally authorized to
execute and perform or cause to be performed this Agreement under the terms and conditions
stated herein.

B. That it shall not knowingly use the services of any ineligible Subcontractor for any
purpose in the performance of the Services.

C. That it and its Subcontractors are not in default at the time of the execution of this
Agreement, or deemed by the Department to have, within five years immediately preceding the
date of this Agreement, been found to be in default on any contract awarded by the City.

D. That it and, to the best of its knowledge, its Subcontractors are not in violation of
the provisions of § 2-92-320 of the Municipal Code of Chicago, 720 ILCS 5/33E-1 et seq. of the
Criminal Code of 1961, and 65 ILCS 5/11-42.1-1 of the Illinois Municipal Code.

E. That it, all Subcontractors and their respective officers, directors, agents, partners,
and employees shall cooperate with the Inspector General or Board of Ethics in any investigation
or hearing undertaken pursuant to Chapters 2-56 or 2-156 of the Municipal Code of Chicago; that
it understands and will abide by all provisions of Chapter 2-56 and 2-156 of the Municipal Code
of Chicago and all subcontracts shall inform Subcontractors of such provision and require
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understanding and compliance therewith.

F. That, except only for those representations, - statements or promises expressly
contained in this Agreement and any exhibits attached hereto, no representation, statement or
promise, oral or written, or of any kind whatsoever, by the City, its officials, agents or
employees, has induced the Contractor to enter into this Agreement.

G. That the Contractor understands and agrees that any certification, affidavit or
acknowledgment made under oath in connection with this Agreement is made under penalty of
perjury and, if false, is also cause for termination for default.

H. That neither Contractor nor an Affiliate of Contractor (as defined below) appears
on the Specially Designated Nationals List, the Denied Persons List, the unverified List, the
Entity List or the Debarred List as maintained by the Office of Foreign Assets Control of the U.S.
Department of the Treasury or by the Bureau of Industry and Security of the U.S. Department of
Commerce (or their successors), or on any other list of persons or entities with which the City
may not do business under any applicable law, rule, regulation, order or judgment. “Affiliate of
Contractor”means a person or entity that directly (or indirectly through one or more
intermediaries) controls, is controlled by or is under common control with Contractor. A person
or entity will be deemed to be controlled by another person or entity if it is controlled in any
manner whatsoever that results in control in fact by that other person or entity (either acting
individually or acting jointly or in concert with others) whether directly or indirectly and
whether through share ownership, a trust, a contract or otherwise.

L Contractor will abide by any policies promulgated by the Department or other City
departments.
J. Contractor understands and will abide by, and will cause Subcontractors to abide

by, the terms of Chapter 2-55 of the Municipal Code of Chicago pertaining to cooperation with
the Office of the Legislative Inspector General. Contractor understands and will abide by the
terms of Section 2-154-020 of the Municipal Code of Chicago. Failure by the Contractor or any
controlling person (as defined in Section 1-23-010 of the Municipal Code of Chicago) thereof to
maintain eligibility to do business with the City of Chicago as required by Section 1-23-030 of
the Municipal Code of Chicago shall be a default for which no cure is available and grounds for
termination of this Agreement.

6.02 Economic Disclosure Statement and Affidavit

The Contractor has provided the City with an Economic Disclosure Statement (EDS) and
Affidavit, “Familial Relationships with Elected City Officials and Department Heads,” which is
attached hereto as Exhibit 2 and incorporated by reference as if fully set forth herein. Contractor
shall apprise the Department promptly of any changes in the information provided in the EDS by
completing and submitting a revised EDS.
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In addition, the Contractor shall provide the City with copies of its latest articles of
incorporation, by-laws and resolutions, or partnership or joint venture agreement, as applicable,
and evidence of its authority to do business in the State of Illinois, including without limitation,
registrations of assumed names or limited partnerships and certifications of good standing with
the Office of the Secretary of State of Illinois.

6.03 Conflict of Interest

Pursuant to Chapter 2-156 of the Municipal Code of Chicago, and 65 ILCS 5/3.1-55-10,
no member of the governing body of the City or other unit of government, no other officer,
employee, SSAC member, or agent of the City or other unit of government who exercises any
functions or responsibilities in connection with the Services to which this Agreement or any
related subcontract pertain, and no relative of any SSAC member shall have any personal
economic or financial interest, directly or indirectly, in this Agreement or any such subcontract
except to the extent that such benefits are provided equally to all residents and/or business
owners in the Area. Furthermore, no SSAC member, relative of any SSAC member, City
official, agent or employee shall be a Subcontractor or have any financial interest in any
Subcontractor, employee or shareholder of the Contractor or receive anything of value from the
Contractor.

No member of or delegate to the Congress of the United States or the Illinois General
Assembly and no alderman of the City or City employee shall be admitted to any share or part of
this Agreement or to any financial benefit to arise from it. The Contractor acknowledges that any
agreement entered into, negotiated or performed in violation of any of the provisions of Chapter
2-156 shall be voidable by the City.

The Contractor covenants that it, its officers, directors and employees, and the officers,
directors and employees of each of its members if a joint venture, and Subcontractors presently
have no financial interest and shall acquire no interest, direct or indirect, in the Services
undertaken by the Contractor pursuant to the Agreement that would conflict in any manner or
degree with the performance of the Services. The Contractor further covenants that in the
performance of this Agreement no person having any such interest shall be employed. The
Contractor agrees that if the Commissioner in his reasonable judgment determines that any of the
Contractor's services for others conflict with the Services the Contractor is to provide for the City
under this Agreement, the Contractor shall terminate such other services immediately upon
request of the City.

6.04 Non-liability of Public Officials
No official, employee or agent of the City shall be charged personally by the Contractor,
or by any assignee or Subcontractor of the Contractor, with any liability or expenses of defense or

be held personally liable to them under any term or provision hereof, because of the City's
execution or attempted execution hereof, or because of any breach hereof.
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6.05 Independent Contractor

(a) The Contractor shall perform under this Agreement as an independent contractor
to the City and not as a representative, employee, agent or partner of the City.

(b) The City is subject to the May 31, 2007 Order entitled “Agreed Settlement Order
and Accord” (the “Shakman Accord”) and the June 24, 2011 "City of Chicago Hiring Plan" (the
“City Hiring Plan”) entered in Shakman v. Democratic Organization of Cook County, Case No
69 C 2145 (United State District Court for the Northern District of Illinois). Among other things,
the Shakman Accord and the City Hiring Plan prohibit the City from hiring persons as
governmental employees in non-exempt positions on the basis of political reasons or factors.

(c) Contractor is aware that City policy prohibits City employees from directing any
individual to apply for a position with Contractor, either as an employee or as a subcontractor,
and from directing Contractor to hire an individual as an employee or as a subcontractor.
Accordingly, Contractor must follow its own hiring and contracting procedures, without being
influenced by City employees. Any and all personnel provided by Contractor under this
Agreement are employees or subcontractors of Contractor, not employees of the City of Chicago.
This Agreement is not intended to and does not constitute, create, give rise to, or otherwise
recognize an employer-employee relationship of any kind between the City and any personnel
provided by Contractor.

(d) Contractor will not condition, base, or knowingly prejudice or affect any term or
aspect of the employment of any personnel provided under this Agreement, or offer employment
to any individual to provide services under this Agreement, based upon or because of any
political reason or factor, including, without limitation, any individual’s political affiliation,
membership in a political organization or party, political support or activity, political financial
contributions, promises of such political support, activity or financial contributions, or such
individual’s political sponsorship or recommendation. For purposes of this Agreement, a political
organization or party is an identifiable group or entity that has as its primary purpose the support
of or opposition to candidates for elected public office. Individual political activities are the
activities of individual persons in support of or in opposition to political organizations or parties
or candidates for elected public office.

(e) In the event of any communication to Contractor by a City employee or City
official in violation of paragraph (c) above, or advocating a violation of paragraph (d) above,
Contractor will, as soon as is reasonably practicable, report such communication to the Hiring
Oversight Section of the City’s Office of the Inspector General (“IGO Hiring Oversight”), and
also to the head of the Department. Contractor will also cooperate with any inquiries by IGO
Hiring Oversight or the Shakman Monitor’s Office related to this Agreement.
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6.06 Business Relationships with Elected Officials

Pursuant to Section 2-156-030(b) of the Municipal Code of the City of Chicago, it is
illegal for any elected official, or any person acting at the direction of such official, to contact
either orally or in writing any other City official or employee with respect to any matter involving
any person with whom the elected official has any business relationship that creates a financial
interest on the part of the official, or the domestic partner or spouse of the official, or from whom
or which he has derived any income or compensation during the preceding twelve months or
from whom or which he reasonably expects to derive any income or compensation in the
following twelve months. In addition, no elected official may participate in any discussion in any
City Council committee hearing or in any City Council meeting or vote on any matter involving
the person with whom the elected official has any business relationship that creates a financial
interest on the part of the official, or the domestic partner or spouse of the official, or from whom
or which he has derived any income or compensation during the preceding twelve months or
from whom or which he reasonably expects to derive any income or compensation in the
following twelve months.

Violation of Section 2-156-030 by any elected official with respect to this Agreement will
be grounds for termination of this Agreement. The term financial interest is defined as set forth in
Chapter 2-156 of the Municipal Code of the City of Chicago.

6.07 Chicago “Living Wage” Ordinance

(@  Section 2-92-610 of the Municipal Code of Chicago provides for a living
wage for certain categories of workers employed in the performance of City contracts,
specifically non-City employed security guards, parking attendants, day laborers, home and
health care workers, cashiers, elevator operators, custodial workers and clerical workers
("Covered Employees").  Accordingly, pursuant to Section 2-92-610 and regulations
promulgated under it:

(i) If Contractor has 25 or more full-time employees, and

(i)  Ifat any time during the performance of this Agreement, Contractor and/or
any Subcontractor or any other entity that provides any portion of the Services
(collectively "Performing Parties") uses 25 or more full-time security guards, or
any number of other full-time Covered Employees, then

(iii)  Contractor must pay its Covered Employees, and must assure that
all other Performing Parties pay their Covered Employees, not less than
the minimum hourly rate as determined in accordance with this provision
(the "Base Wage") for all Services performed under this Agreement.

16



(b)  Contractor’s obligation to pay, and to assure payment of, the Base Wage will
begin at any time during the term of this Agreement when the conditions set forth in (a)(i) and
(a)(ii) above are met, and will continue until the end of the term of this Agreement.

() As of July 1, 2013, the Base Wage is $11.78, and each July 1 thereafter, the Base
Wage will be adjusted, using the most recent federal poverty guidelines for a family of four as
published annually by the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, to constitute the
following: the poverty guidelines for a family of four divided by 2000 hours or the current base
wage, whichever is higher. At all times during the term of this Agreement, Contractor and all
other Performing Parties must pay the Base Wage (as adjusted in accordance with the above). If
the payment of prevailing wages is required for Services done under this Agreement, and the
prevailing wages for Covered Employees are higher than the Base Wage, then Contractor and all
other Performing Parties must pay the prevailing wage rates.

(d)  Contractor must include provisions in all subcontracts requiring its
Subcontractors to pay the Base Wage to Covered Employees. Contractor agrees to provide the
City with documentation acceptable to the Chief Procurement Officer demonstrating that all
Covered Employees, whether employed by Contractor or by a Subcontractor, have been paid the
Base Wage, upon the City’s request for such documentation. The City may independently audit
Contractor and/or Subcontractors to verify compliance with this section. Failure to comply with
the requirements of this section will be an event of default under this Agreement, and further,
failure to comply may result in ineligibility for any award of a City contract or subcontract for up
to 3 years.

(e) Not-for-Profit Corporations: If Contractor is a corporation having federal
tax-exempt status under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code and is recognized under
Ilinois not-for-profit law, then the provisions of Sections (a) through (d) above do not apply.

6.08 Deemed Inclusion

Provisions required by law, ordinances, rules, regulations or executive orders to be
inserted in this Agreement are deemed inserted in this Agreement whether or not they appear in
this Agreement or, upon application by either party, this Agreement will be amended to make the
insertion; however, in no event will the failure to insert the provisions before or after this
Agreement is signed prevent its enforcement.

6.09 Environmental Warranties and Representations

In accordance with Section 11-4-1600(e) of the Municipal Code of Chicago, Contractor
warrants and represents that it, and to the best of its knowledge, its subcontractors have not
violated and are not in violation of the following sections of the Code (collectively, the Waste
Sections):

7-28-390 Dumping on public way;
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7-28-440 Dumping on real estate without permit;
11-4-1410 Disposal in waters prohibited;

11-4-1420 Ballast tank, bilge tank or other discharge;
11-4-1450 Gas manufacturing residue;

11-4-1500 Treatment and disposal of solid or liquid waste;
11-4-1530 Compliance with rules and regulations required;
11-4-1550 Operational requirements; and

11-4-1560 Screening requirements.

During the period while this Agreement is executory, Contractor’s or any subcontractor’s
violation of the Waste Sections, whether or not relating to the performance of this Agreement,
constitutes a breach of and an event of default under this Agreement, for which the opportunity to
cure, if curable, will be granted only at the sole designation of the Commissioner. Such breach
and default entitles the City to all remedies under the Agreement, at law or in equity.

This section does not limit Contractor’s and its subcontractors’ duty to comply with all
applicable federal, state, county and municipal laws, statutes, ordinances and executive orders, in
effect now or later, and whether or not they appear in this Agreement.

Non-compliance with these terms and conditions may be used by the City as grounds for
the termination of this Agreement, and may further affect Contractor's eligibility for future
contract awards.

6.10 EDS / Certification Regarding Suspension and Debarment

Contractor certifies, as further evidenced in the EDS attached as Exhibit 2, by its
acceptance of this Agreement that neither it nor its principals is presently debarred, suspended,
proposed for debarment, declared ineligible or voluntarily excluded from participation in this
transaction by any federal department or agency. Contractor further agrees by executing this
Agreement that it will include this clause without modification in all lower tier transactions,
solicitations, proposals, contracts and subcontracts. If Contractor or any lower tier participant is
unable to certify to this statement, it must attach an explanation to the Agreement.

6.11 Ethics

(a) In addition to other warranties and representations, Contractor warrants that no
payment, gratuity or offer of employment will be made in connection with this Agreement by or
on behalf of any Subcontractors to Contractor or higher tier subcontractors or anyone associated
with them, as an inducement for the award of a subcontract or order.

(b) Contractor further acknowledges that any Agreement entered into, negotiated or
performed in violation of any of the provisions of Chapter 2-156 is voidable as to the City.

6.12 MacBride Ordinance
18



The City of Chicago through the passage of the MacBride Principles Ordinance seeks to
promote fair and equal employment opportunities and labor practices for religious minorities in
Northern Ireland and provide a better working environment for all citizens in Northern Ireland.

In accordance with Section 2-92-580 of the Municipal Code of the City of Chicago, if
Contractor conducts any business operations in Northern Ireland, the Contractor must make all
reasonable and good faith efforts to conduct any business operations in Northern Ireland in
accordance with the MacBride Principles for Northern Ireland as defined in Illinois Public Act
85-1390 (1988 Ill. Laws 3220).

The provisions of this Section 6.12 do not apply to contracts for which the City receives
funds administered by the United States Department of Transportation, except to the extent
Congress has directed that the Department of Transportation not withhold funds from states and
localities that choose to implement selective purchasing policies based on agreement to comply
with the MacBride Principles for Northern Ireland, or to the extent that such funds are not
otherwise withheld by the Department of Transportation.

6.13  Duty to Report Corrupt or Unlawful Activity

It is the duty of the Contractor to report to the Inspector General, directly and
without undue delay, any and all information concerning conduct which it knows or
should reasonably know to involve corrupt or other unlawful activity by its employees or
the employees of any of its subcontractors, in connection with the performance of city
work, or by any person dealing with the city which concerns the person’s dealings with
the city. Knowing failure to make such a report will be an event of default under this
Agreement.

ARTICLE 7 EVENTS OF DEFAULT, REMEDIES, TERMINATION, RIGHT
TO OFFSET, SUSPENSION

7.01 Events of Default Defined
The following constitute events of default:

A. Any material misrepresentation, whether negligent or willful and whether in the
inducement or in the performance, made by Contractor to the City.

B. Contractor's material failure to perform any of its obligations under the Agreement
including, but not limited to, the following:

(1) failure to commence or ensure timely completion of the Services due to a
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reason or circumstance within Contractor's reasonable control;
(2) failure to perform the Services in a manner satisfactory to the City;

(3) failure to promptly re-perform within a reasonable time Services that were
rejected as erroneous or unsatisfactory;

(4) discontinuance of the Services for reasons within the Contractor's reasonable
control;

(5) failure to comply with a material term of this Agreement, including but not
limited to the provisions concerning insurance and nondiscrimination; and

(6) any other acts specifically and expressly stated in this Agreement as
constituting an event of default.

C. The Contractor's default under any other agreement it may presently have or may
enter into with the City during the life of this Agreement. The Contractor acknowledges and
agrees that in the event of a default under this Agreement the City may also declare a default
under any such other agreements.

7.02 Remedies

The occurrence of any event of default which the Contractor fails to cure within 14
calendar days after receipt of notice specifying such default or which, if such event of default
cannot reasonably be cured within 14 calendar days after notice, the Contractor fails, in the sole
opinion of the Commissioner, to commence and continue diligent efforts to cure, permits the City
to declare the Contractor in default. Whether to declare the Contractor in default is within the
sole discretion of the Commissioner. Written notification of the default, and any intention of the
City to terminate the Agreement, shall be provided to Contractor and such decision is final and
effective upon Contractor's receipt of such notice. Upon receipt of such notice, the Contractor
must discontinue any services, unless otherwise directed in the notice, and deliver all materials
accumulated in the performance of this Agreement, whether completed or in the process of
completion, to the City. At such time the City may invoke any legal or equitable remedy
available to it including, but not limited to, the following:

A. The right to take over and complete the Services or any part thereof as agent for
and at the cost of the Contractor, either directly or through others. The Contractor shall have, in
such event, the right to offset from such cost the amount it would have cost the City under the
terms and conditions herein had the Contractor completed the Services.

B. The right to terminate this Agreement as to any or all of the Services yet to be
performed, effective at a time specified by the City.
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C. The right of specific performance, an injunction or any other appropriate equitable
remedy.

D. The right to money damages.

E. The right to withhold all or any part of Contractor's compensation hereunder.
F. The right to deem Contractor non-responsible in future contracts to be awarded by
the City.

If the City considers it to be in its best interest, it may elect not to declare default or to
terminate this Agreement. The parties acknowledge that this provision is solely for the benefit of
the City and that if the City permits the Contractor to continue to provide the Services despite
one or more events of default, the Contractor is in no way relieved of any of its responsibilities,
duties or obligations under this Agreement nor does the City waive or relinquish any of its rights.
No delay or omission to exercise any right accruing upon any event of default impairs any such
right nor shall it be construed as a waiver of any event of default or acquiescence therein, and
every such right may be exercised from time to time and as often as may be deemed expedient.

7.03 Right to Offset

The City reserves its rights under § 2-92-380 of the Municipal Code of Chicago and the
Commissioner shall consult with the SSAC before exercising such rights.

7.04 Suspension

The City may at any time request that the Contractor suspend its Services, or any part
thereof, by giving 15 days prior written notice to the Contractor or upon no notice in the event of
emergency. No costs incurred after the effective date of such suspension shall be allowed. The
Contractor shall promptly resume its performance upon written notice by the Department. The
Budget may be revised pursuant to Section 5.02 to account for any additional costs or expenses
actually incurred by the Contractor as a result of recommencing the Services.

7.05 No Damages for Delay

The Contractor agrees that it, its members, if a partnership or joint venture and its
Subcontractors shall make no claims against the City for damages, charges, additional costs or
hourly fees for costs incurred by reason of delays or hindrances by the City in the performance of
its obligations under this Agreement.

7.06 Early Termination

In addition to termination for default, the City may, at any time, elect to terminate this
Agreement or any portion of the Services to be performed under it at the sole discretion of the

21



Commissioner by a written notice to the Contractor. If the City elects to terminate the
Agreement in full, all Services shall cease and all materials accumulated in performing this
Agreement, whether completed or in the process of completion, shall be delivered to the
Department within 10 days after receipt of the notice or by the date stated in the notice.

During the final ten days or other time period stated in the notice, the Contractor shall
restrict its activities, and those of its Subcontractors, to winding down any reports, analyses, or
other activities previously begun. No costs incurred after the effective date of the termination are
allowed. Payment for any Services actually and satisfactorily performed before the effective date
of the termination shall be on the same basis as set forth in Article 5 hereof, but if any
compensation is described or provided for on the basis of a period longer than ten days, then the
compensation shall be prorated accordingly.

If a court of competent jurisdiction determines that the City's election to terminate this
Agreement for default has been wrongful, then such termination shall be deemed to be an early
termination.

ARTICLE 8 GENERAL CONDITIONS

8.01 Entire Agreement

This Agreement, and the exhibits attached hereto and incorporated hereby, shall
constitute the entire agreement between the parties and no other warranties, inducements,
considerations, promises, or interpretations shall be implied or impressed upon this Agreement
that are not expressly addressed herein.

8.02 Counterparts

This Agreement is comprised of several identical counterparts, each to be fully executed
by the parties and each to be deemed an original having identical legal effect.

8.03 Amendments
No changes, amendments, modifications or discharge of this Agreement, or any part
thereof, shall be valid unless in writing and signed by the authorized agent of the Contractor and

the Commissioner, or their successors and assigns. The City shall incur no liability for revised
services without a written amendment to this Agreement pursuant to this Section.

8.04 Compliance with All Laws
The Contractor shall at all times observe and comply with all applicable laws, ordinances,

rules, regulations and executive orders of the federal, state and local government, now existing or
hereinafter in effect, which may in any manner affect the performance of this Agreement.
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8.05 Compliance with ADA and Other Accessibility Laws

If this Agreement involves services to the public, the Contractor warrants that all Services
provided hereunder shall comply with all accessibility standards for persons with disabilities or
environmentally limited persons including, but not limited to the following: Americans with
Disabilities Act of 1990, 42 U.S.C. § 12101 et seq. and the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, 29 U.S.C.
§§ 793-94. In the event that the above cited standards are inconsistent, the Contractor shall
comply with the standard providing greater accessibility.

If this Agreement involves design for construction and/or Construction, the Contractor
warrants that all design documents produced and/or used under this Agreement shall comply with
all federal, state and local laws and regulations regarding accessibility standards for persons with
disabilities or environmentally limited persons including, but not limited to, the following:
Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, 42 U.S.C. § 12101 et seq. and the Americans with
Disabilities Act Accessibility Guidelines for Buildings and Facilities; the Architectural Barriers
Act, P.L. 90-480 and the Uniform Federal Accessibility Standards; and the Environmental
Barriers Act, 410 ILCS 25/1 et seq., and the regulations promulgated thereto at J1l. Admin. Code
tit. 71, ch. 1, § 400.110. In the event that the above cited standards are inconsistent, the
Contractor shall comply with the standard providing greater accessibility. If the Contractor fails
to comply with the foregoing standards, it shall perform again at no expense all services required
to be reperformed as a direct or indirect result of such failure.

8.06 Assigns
All of the terms and conditions of this Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit
of the parties hereto and their respective legal representatives, successors, transferees and
assigns.

8.07 Cooperation

The Contractor agrees at all times to cooperate fully with the City and to act in the City's
best interests. Upon the termination or expiration of this Agreement, the Contractor shall make
every effort to assure an orderly transition to another provider of the Services, if any, orderly
demobilization of its operations in connection with the Services, uninterrupted provision of
Services during any transition period and shall otherwise comply with reasonable requests of the
Department in connection with this Agreement's termination or expiration.

8.08 Severability

If any provision of this Agreement is held or deemed to be or shall in fact be inoperative
or unenforceable as applied in any particular case in any jurisdiction or in all cases because it
conflicts with any other provision hereof or of any constitution, statute, ordinance, rule of law or
public policy, or for any other reason, such circumstances shall not have the effect of rendering
such provision inoperative or unenforceable in any other case or circumstances, or of rendering
any other provision herein invalid, inoperative, or unenforceable to any extent. The invalidity of
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any one or more phrases, sentences, clauses or sections herein shall not affect the remaining
portions of this Agreement or any part thereof.

8.09 Interpretation

All headings in this Agreement are for convenience of reference only and do not define or
limit the provisions thereof. Words of gender are deemed to include correlative words of the
other gender. Words importing the singular number include the plural number and vice versa,
unless the context otherwise indicates. All references to exhibits or documents are deemed to
include all supplements and/or amendments to such exhibits or documents if entered into in
accordance with the terms and conditions hereof and thereof. All references to persons or
entities are deemed to include any persons or entities succeeding to the rights, duties, and
obligations of such persons or entities in accordance with the terms and conditions herein.

8.10 Miscellaneous Provisions

Whenever under this Agreement the City by a proper authority waives the Contractor's
performance in any respect or waives a requirement or condition to the Contractor's performance,
the waiver, whether express or implied, applies only to that particular instance and is not a
waiver forever or for subsequent instances of the performance, requirement or condition. No
waiver shall be construed as a modification of the Agreement regardless of the number of times
the City may have waived the performance, requirement or condition.

8.11 Disputes

Except as otherwise provided in this Agreement, Contractor must and the City may bring
any dispute arising under this Agreement which is not resolved by the parties to the Chief
Procurement Officer for decision based upon the written submissions of the parties. (A copy of
the "Regulations of the Department of Procurement Services for Resolution of Disputes between
Contractors and the City of Chicago" is available in City Hall, 121 N. LaSalle Street, Room 301,
Bid and Bond Room, Chicago, Illinois 60602.) The Chief Procurement Officer will issue a
written decision and send it to the Contractor and the SSAC by mail. The decision of the Chief
Procurement Officer is final and binding. The sole and exclusive remedy to challenge the
decision of the Chief Procurement Officer is judicial review by means of a common law writ of
certiorari.

8.12 Contractor Affidavit

The Contractor must provide to the City, no later than thirty days after the end of each
year May 1% of each year, a fully executed and notarized Affidavit certifying the expenditures
and Services provided for the prior year. The Contractor must also provide to the City, no later
than June 1% of each year, a Full-Year Assessment. The forms of this Affidavit and Full-Year
Assessment are attached as Exhibit 7 and incorporated by reference.
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8.13 Prohibition on Certain Contributions

Contractor agrees that Contractor, any person or entity who directly or indirectly has an
ownership or beneficial interest in Contractor of more than 7.5 percent ("Owners"), spouses and
domestic partners of such Owners, Contractor’s subcontractors, any person or entity who directly
or indirectly has an ownership or beneficial interest in any subcontractor of more than 7.5 percent
(“Sub-owners”) and spouses and domestic partners of such Sub-owners (Contractor and all the
other preceding classes of persons and entities are together, the (“Identified Parties™)), shall not
make a contribution of any amount to the Mayor of the City of Chicago (“Mayor”) or to his
political fundraising committee during (i) the bid, or other solicitation process for this Contract
or other Contract, including while this Contract or Other Contract is executory, (ii) the term of
this Contract or any Other Contract between City and Contractor, and/or (iii) any period in which
an extension of this Contract or any Other Contract with the City is being sought or negotiated.

Contractor represents and warrants that since the date of public advertisement of the
specification, request for qualifications, request for proposals or request for information (or any
combination of those requests) or, if not competitively procured, from the date the City
approached Contractor or the date Contractor approached the City, as applicable, regarding the
formulation of this Agreement, no Identified Parties have made a contribution of any amount to
the Mayor or to his political fundraising committee.

Contractor agrees that it shall not: (a) coerce, compel or intimidate its employees to
make a contribution of any amount to the Mayor or to the Mayor’s political fundraising
committee; (b) reimburse its employees for a contribution of any amount made to the Mayor or to
the Mayor’s political fundraising committee; or (c) bundle or solicit others to bundle
contributions to the Mayor or to his political fundraising committee.

Contractor agrees that the Identified Parties must not engage in any conduct whatsoever
designed to intentionally violate this provision or Mayoral Executive Order No. 11-4 or to entice,
direct or solicit others to intentionally violate this provision or Mayoral Executive Order No. 11-
4,

Contractor agrees that a violation of, non-compliance with, misrepresentation with
respect to, or breach of any covenant or warranty under this provision or violation of Mayoral
Executive Order No. 11-4 constitutes a breach and default under this Agreement, and under any
Other Contract for which no opportunity to cure will be granted. Such breach and default entitles
the City to all remedies (including without limitation termination for default) under this
Agreement, under Other Contract, at law and in equity. This provision amends any Other
Contract and supersedes any inconsistent provision contained therein.

If Contractor violates this provision or Mayoral Executive Order No. 11-4 prior to award

of the Agreement resulting from this specification, the Commissioner may reject Contractor’s
bid.
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For purposes of this provision:

“Other Contract" means any other agreement with the City of Chicago to which
Contractor is a party that is (i) formed under the authority of chapter 2-92 of the
Municipal Code of Chicago; (ii) entered into for the purchase or lease of real or personal
property; or (iii) for materials, supplies, equipment or services which are approved or
authorized by the city council.

"Contribution" means a "political contribution" as defined in Chapter 2-156 of the
Municipal Code of Chicago, as amended.

"Political fundraising committee" means a "political fundraising committee" as defined in
Chapter 2-156 of the Municipal code of Chicago, as amended."

8.14 Firms Owned or Operated by Individuals with Disabilities

The City encourages Contractors to use Subcontractors that are firms owned or
operated by individuals with disabilities, as defined by Section 2-92-586 of the Municipal
Code of the City of Chicago, where not otherwise prohibited by federal or state law.

8.15 Governing Law and Jurisdiction

This Agreement is governed as to performance and interpretation in accordance with
the laws of the State of Illinois.

ARTICLE 9 NOTICES

Notices provided for herein shall be in writing and may be delivered personally or by
United States mail, first class, certified, return receipt requested, with postage prepaid and
addressed as follows:

If to the City: Special Service Area #60 Commission
3403 W. Lawrence Ave., Suite 201
Chicago, Illinois 60625

Department of Housing and Economic Development
City Hall, Room 1000

121 North LaSalle Street

Chicago, Illinois 60602

Attention: Commissioner

With Copies to: Department of Law
Room 600, City Hall
121 North LaSalle Street
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Chicago, Illinois 60602
Attention: Corporation Counsel

If to Contractor: North River Commission
3403 W. Lawrence Ave., Suite 201
Chicago, Illinois 60625
Attention: Perry Gunn

Changes in the above-referenced addresses must be in writing and delivered in
accordance with the provisions of this Section. Notices delivered by mail shall be deemed
received 3 days after mailing in accordance with this Section. Notices delivered personally
shall be deemed effective upon receipt.

ARTICLE 10 CITY ACTION

In the event that there is no duly constituted SSAC during the term of this
Agreement, the City will retain all of the rights and obligations afforded to the SSAC
hereunder.

ARTICLE 11 MULTI-PROJECT LABOR AGREEMENT

The City has entered into the Multi-Project Labor Agreement (“PLA”) with various
trades regarding projects as described in the PLA, a copy of which, without appendices, is
attached hereto as Exhibit 9. A copy of the PLA, with appendices, may also be found on the
City's website at http://www.cityofchicago.org/PLA. Contractor acknowledges familiarity
with the requirements of the PLA and its applicability to any Services under this Agreement,
and shall comply in all respects with any applicable provisions of the PLA.
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PA 0

IN WITNES HEREOF, the City and the Contractor have executed this
Agreement on the déte set forth above, at Chicago, lllinois,

CITY OF CHICAGO

By:
Commissioner, Dcpértmc?t of

Housing and Economic Dgvelopment

,20 /o
co@ 7’1-5 WEGTH RUBz- Lomm 1 55104
By: ) )\/‘a/ 2 __,.-"‘)

Its: @bt _Llpvplack, bresdent
Attested By:(_"l e en S
Its: SECRETRLY ) -

as of /15
" 4

State of T(LINO/S
County of ook

This instrument was acknowledged before me on > /51204 (date) by Btz X QUL Ck—
(name/s of person/s) as fiLes OERNT (type of authority, e.g., officer, trustee, etc.) of THe ~IBETYL
(name of party\on behalf of whom instrument was executed).R(UEL_ Cay\MILSS /N #

(Si ¢ of Nolary Public)

AL AP
OFFICIAL SEAL
DOUGLAS CONOVER

NOTARY PUBLIC - STATE OF ILLINOIS
MY COMMISSION EXPIRES:08/03/16

APPSO
b T
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EXHIBIT 1

Scope of Services & Budget
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SCHEDULE A: 2014 SSA BUDGET & SERVICES SUMMARY
Clty of Chicago, Depariment of Housing and Economic Development

SSA 60 Albany Park
North River Commission
Budget Period:

January 1, 2014 to December 31, 2014

Late Coflections
and Interest
2013 BUDGET SUMMARY Carry Over +| Income Thereon 2014 Budget
CATEGORY
1.00 Advertising & Promotion $ 12500 | +| $ -+ 8 -l = $ 12,500
2.00 Public Way Maintenance 3 168000 +| $ 1+ 8 -l = $ 168,000
3.00 Public Way Aesthelics $ 16920 | +| § -1+ 3 -l = $ 16,920
4,00 Tenant Relention/Atiraction $ -1+ s -+l 8 -| = $ B
5.00 Fagade Improvements s 15,000 | + $ -+ $ | = $ 15,000
6,00 Parking/Transit/Accessibility $ -+ 3 -1+ % -l = $ -
1.00 Safety Programs $ 30,000 | + $ -+ 3 - 3 30,000
8.00 District Planning $ 50000 | +| § -+l 8 | = $ 50,000
9.00 Other Technical Asslstance $ +| $ -l +] $ =l = $ -
10.00 Personnel $ 63,543 | + $ -1+ $ $ 63,543
11.00 Admin Non.Persotinel $ 23,405 | + $ -+ $ | = 3 23,405
12.00 Loss Colleclion:  10.4% $ 44,000 | + % -]+ $ -l = $ 44,000
13.00 Late Collection $ - $ - $ $ -
GRAND TOTAL $ 423,368 | + $ o+ $ -l = $ 423,368
2014 Budget $ 423,368
1 Estimated 2012 EAV: $105,942,030
2 Authorized Tax Rate Cap: 0.425%
4 Eslimated 2013 Levy: $423,368
Eslimated Tax Rale to Genarate 2013 Levy (EAV| 0.400%
4 x Est. 2013 Levy = Est. Tax Rale);

2014 SSA SERVICES SUMMARY

1.00 Advertising & Promotlon

2.00 Public Way Maintenance
3.00 Public Way Aesthetics
6.00 Fagade Improvements
7.00 Safely Pragrams

8.00 District Planning




EXHIBIT 2

Economic Disclosure Statement and Affidavit



CITY OF CHICAGO
ECONOMIC DISCLOSURE STATEMENT and AFFIDAVIT
Related to Contract/Amendment/Solicitation
EDS # 49817

SECTION | -- GENERAL INFORMATION

A. Legal name of the Disclosing Party submitting the EDS:
North River Commission

Enter d/b/a if applicable:

The Disclosing Party submitting this EDS is:
the Applicant
B. Business address of the Disclosing Party:

3403 W. Lawrence Avenue
Suite 201

Chicago, IL 60625
United States

C. Telephone:

773-478-0202

Fax:

773-478-0282

Email:
cagostinelli@northrivercommission.org
D. Name of contact person:
Carla Agostinelli

E. Federal Employer Identification No. (if you have one):

36-2526797



F. Brief description of contract, transaction or other undertaking (referred to below as
the "Matter") to which this EDS pertains:

Service Provider agreement with the City of Chicago in order
to provide special services within SSA #60

Which City agency or department is requesting this EDS?
DEPT OF HOUSING AND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT

Specification Number

Contract (PO) Number

Revision Number

Release Number

User Department Project Number

SECTION Il -- DISCLOSURE OF OWNERSHIP INTERESTS

A. NATURE OF THE DISCLOSING PARTY

1. Indicate the nature of the Disclosing Party:

Not-for-profit corporation

Is the Disclosing Party also a 501(c)(3) organization?

Yes

Is the Disclosing Party incorporated or organized in the State of lllinois?
Yes

B. DISCLOSING PARTY IS A LEGAL ENTITY:

1.a.1 Does the Disclosing Party have any directors?

Yes



1.a.3 List below the full names and titles of all executive officers and all directors,
if any, of the entity. Do not include any directors who have no power to select the
entity's officers.

Officer/Director: Mr. Perry Gunn

Title: Executive Director
Role: Both

B R A et e R A I LT Y T A L Lk L L X T Py emrrrRdiveiiniieadeoesiliiiann .
Officer/Director: Ms. Carla M Agostlnelll
Title: Project Director

Role: Director
Officer/Dlrector- Ms. Mellssa McDanlels
Title: Program Director

Role: Director
0ff1cer/D1rector-  Mr. Dav1d Rownd

Title: Treasurer

Role: Both

Offzcer/Director- Mr. Ron Duplack

Title: President

Role Both

1.a.5 Are there any members of the non-for-profit Disclosing Party which are legal
entities?

No

SECTION Ill -- BUSINESS RELATIONSHIPS WITH CITY ELECTED
OFFICIALS

Has the Disclosing Party had a "business relationship," as defined in Chapter 2-156
of the Municipal Code, with any City elected official in the 12 months before the date
this EDS is signed?

No



SECTION IV -- DISCLOSURE OF SUBCONTRACTORS AND OTHER
RETAINED PARTIES

The Disclosing Party must disclose the name and business address of each
subcontractor, attorney, lobbyist, accountant, consultant and any other person or
entity whom the Disclosing Party has retained or expects to retain in connection
with the Matter, as well as the nature of the relationship, and the total amount of the
fees paid or estimated to be paid. The Disclosing Party is not required to disclose
employees who are paid solely through the Disclosing Party's regular payroll.

“Lobbyist" means any person or entity who undertakes to influence any legislative or
administrative action on behalf of any person or entity other than: (1) a not-for-profit
entity, on an unpaid basis, or (2) himself. "Lobbyist" also means any person or

entity any part of whose duties as an employee of another includes undertaking to
influence any legislative or administrative action.

If the Disclosing Party is uncertain whether a disclosure is required under this
Section, the Disclosing Party must either ask the City whether disclosure is required
or make the disclosure.

1. Has the Disclosing Party retained any legal entities in connection with the Matter?

Yes

2. List below the names of all legal entities which are retained parties.

' Name: TBD - Advertising and Prowmotion
Anticipated/ Anticipated

Retained:

Business Address: , United States

Relationghip: Other

Fees $12,500.00

(88 or %):

Estimated/Pald Estimated

Name: TBD Public Way Maintenanee T
Anticipated/ Anticipated

Retained:

Business Address: , United States

Relationship: Other

Fees $168,000.00

($$ or %):



Estimated/Paid: Estimated
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Name; TBD - Public Way RAesthetics
Anticipated/ Anticipated

Retained:

Business Address: , United States
Relationship: Other

Fees $16,920.00

($$ or %):

AEstlmated/Pald. Estimated

Name;‘uui S TBDi—'Facade Improvements o
Anticipated/ Anticipated

Retained:

Business Address: , United States

Relationship: Other

Fees $15,000.00

(88 or %):

Estimated/Paid Estimated

Name: | TBD - Safety Brograms
Anticipated/ Anticipated

Retained:

Businesgs Address: , United States

Relationship: Other

Fees $30,000.00

($$ or %):

Estimated/Paid° Estimated

BQ&Q}" T ’“,”%BD F'Dletmzet‘Planningﬂ m—
Anticipated/ Anticipated

Retained:

Business Address: , United States

Relationghip: Otherx

Fees $50,000.00

($$ or %):

Estlmated/Pald. Estimated

Name: S place4bén£d tlﬁg,mlnczw" I W Y



Anticipated/ Retained

Retained:
Businesas Address: 3759 N. Ravenswood
Suite 129
Chicago, IL 60613 United States
Relationship: Consultant
Fees $25,000.00
($$ or %):
Estlmated/Pald Estlmated
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3. Has the Disclosing Party retained any persons in connection with the Matter?

No
SECTION V -- CERTIFICATIONS

A. COURT-ORDERED CHILD SUPPORT COMPLIANCE

Under Municipal Code Section 2-92-415, substantial owners of business entities that
contract with the City must remain in compliance with their child support obligations
throughout the contract's term.

Has any person who directly or indirectly owns 10% or more of the Disclosing Party
been declared in arrearage of any child support obligations by any lllinois court of
competent jurisdiction?

Not applicable because no person directly or indirectly owns
10% or more of the Disclosing Party

B. FURTHER CERTIFICATIONS

1. Pursuant to Municipal Code Chapter 1-23; Article | ("Article I")(which the Applicant
should consult for defined terms (e.g., "doing business") and legal requirements), if
the Disclosing Party submitting this EDS is the Applicant and'is doing business with
the City, then the Disclosing Party certifies as follows:

i. neither the Applicant nor any controlling person is currently indicted or charged
with, or has admitted guilt of, or has ever been convicted of, or placed under
supervision for, any criminal offense involving actual, attempted, or conspiracy
to commit bribery, theft, fraud, forgery, perjury, dishonesty or deceit against an
officer or employee of the City or any sister agency; and

ii. the Applicant understands and acknowledges that compliance with Article | is a
continuing requirement for doing business with the City.



NOTE: If Article | applies to the Applicant, the permanent compliance timeframe in
Article | supersedes some five-year compliance timeframes in certifications 2 and 3
below.

I certify the above to be true

2. The Disclosing Party and, if the Disclosing Party is a legal entity, all of those
persons or entities identified in Section I1.B.1. of this EDS:

a. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared
ineligible or voluntarily excluded from any transactions by any federal, state or
local unit of government;

b. have not, within a five-year period preceding the date of this EDS, been
convicted of a criminal offense, adjudged guilty, or had a civil judgment
rendered against them in connection with: obtaining, attempting to obtain,
or performing a public (federal, state or local) transaction or contract under
a public transaction; a violation of federal or state antitrust statutes; fraud;
embezzlement; theft; forgery; bribery; falsification or destruction of records;
making false statements: or receiving stolen property;

C. are not presently indicted for, or criminally or civilly charged by, a governmental
entity (federal, state or local) with committing any of the offenses set forth in
clause B.2.b. of this Section V:

d. have not, within a five-year period preceding the date of-this EDS, had one or
more public transactions (federal, state or local) terminated for cause or defauit;
and

e. have not, within a five-year period preceding the date of this EDS, been
convicted, adjudged guilty, or found liable in a civil proceeding, or in:any criminal
or civil action, including actions concerning environmental violations, instituted
by the City or by. the federal government, any state, or any other unit of local
government.

I certify the above to be true

3. Neither the Disclosing Party, nor any Contractor, nor any Affiliated Entity of either
the Disclosing Party or any Contractor nor any Agents have, during the five years
before the date this EDS is signed, or, with respect to a Contractor, an Affiliated
Entity, or an Affiliated Entity of a Contractor during the five years before the date of
such Contractor's or Affiliated Entity's contract or engagement in connection with the
Matter:

a. bribed or attempted to bribe, or been convicted or adjudged guilty of bribery or
attempting to bribe, a public officer or employee of the City, the State of lllinois,
or any agency of the federal government or of any state or local government in
the United States of America, in that officer's or employee's official capacity;

b. agreed or colluded with other bidders or prospective bidders, or been a party
to any such agreement, or been convicted or adjudged guilty of agreement
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or collusion among bidders or prospective bidders, in restraint of freedom of
competition by agreement to bid a fixed price or otherwise; or

¢. made an admission of such conduct described in a. or b. above that is a matter
of record, but have not been prosecuted for such conduct; or

d. violated the provisions of Municipal Code Section 2-92-610 (Living Wage
Ordinance).

I certify the above to be true

4. Neither the Disclosing Party, Affiliated Entity or Contractor, or any of their
employees, officials, agents or partners, is barred from contracting with any unit of
state or local government as a result of engaging in or being convicted of

* bid-rigging in violation of 720 ILCS 5/33E-3:

* bid-rotating in violation of 720ILCS 5/33E-4; or

* any similar offense of any state or of the United States of America that contains
the same elements as the offense of bid-rigging or bid-rotating.

I certify the above to be true

5. Neither the Disclosing Party nor any Affiliated Entity is listed on any of the
following lists maintained by the Office of Foreign Assets Control of the U.S.
Department of the Treasury or the Bureau of Industry and Security of the U.S.
Department of Commerce or their successors: the Specially Designated Nationals
List, the Denied Persons List, the Unverified List, the Entity List and the Debarred

I certify the above to be true

8. The Disclosing Party understands and shall comply with the applicable
requirements of Chapters 2-55 (Legislative Inspector General), Chapter 2-56
(Inspector General) and Chapter 2-156 ( Governmental Ethics) of the Municipal
Code. .

I certify the above to be true

7. To the best of the Disclosing Party's knowledge after reasonable inquiry, the
following is'a complete list of all current employees of the Disclosing Party who were,
atany time during the 12-month period preceding the execution date of this EDS; an
employee, or elected or appointed official, of the City of Chicago.

None

8. To the best of the Disclosing Party's knowledge after reasonable inquiry, the
following is a complete list of all gifts that the Disclosing Party has given or caused
to be given, at any time during the 12-month period preceding the execution date



of this EDS, to an employee, or elected or appointed official, of the City of Chicago.
For purposes of this statement, a "gift" does not include: (i) anything made generally
available to City employees or to the general public, or (i) food or drink provided

in the course of official City business and having a retail value of less than $20 per
recipient.

None

C. CERTIFICATION OF STATUS AS FINANCIAL INSTITUTION
The Disclosing Party certifies that, as defined in Section 2-32-455(b) of the Municipal

Code, the Disclosing Party

is not a "financial institution"

D. CERTIFICATION REGARDING INTEREST IN CITY BUSINESS

Any words or terms that are defined in Chapter 2-156 of the Municipal Code have
the same meanings when used in this Part D.

1. In accordance with Section 2-156-110 of the Municipal Code: Does any official or
employee of the City have a financial interest in his or her own name or in the name
of any other person or entity in the Matter?

No
E. CERTIFICATION REGARDING SLAVERY ERA BUSINESS

If the Disclosing Party cannot make this verification, the Disclosing Party must
disclose all required information in the space provided below or in an attachment in
the "Additional Info" tab. Failure to comply with thesé disclosure requirements may
make any contract entered into with the City in connection with the Matter voidable
by the City.

.The Disclosing Party verifies that the Disclosing Party has searched any and all
records of the Disclosing Party and any and all predecessor entities regarding
records of investments or profits from stavery or slavehelder insurance policies
during the slavery era (including insurance policies.issued to slaveholders that
provided coverage for damage to or injury or death, of their slaves), and the
Disclosing Party has found no such records.

I can make the above verification



SECTION VI -- CERTIFICATIONS FOR FEDERALLY-FUNDED
MATTERS

Is the Matter federally funded? For the purposes of this Section VI, tax credits
allocated by the City and proceeds of debt obligations of the City are not federal
funding.

No

SECTION VII -- ACKNOWLEDGMENTS, CONTRACT
INCORPORATION, COMPLIANCE, PENALTIES, DISCLOSURE

The Disclosing Party understands and agrees that:

A. The certifications, disclosures, and acknowledgments contained in this EDS
will become part of any contract or other agreement between the Applicant and
the City in connection with the Matter, whether procurement, City assistance, or
other City action, and are material inducements to the City's execution of any
contract or taking other action with respect to the Matter. The Disclosing Party
understands that it must comply with all statutes, ordinances, and regulations on
which this EDS is based.

B. The City's Governmental Ethics and Campaign Financing Ordinances,
Chapters 2-156 and 2-164 of the Municipal Code, impose certain duties
and obligations on persons or entities seeking City contracts, work,
business, or transactions. A training program is available on line at
www.cityofchicago.org/city/en/depts/ethics.htmi, and may also be obtained from
the City's Board of Ethics, 740 N. Sedgwick St., Suite 500, Chicago, IL 60610,
(312) 744-9660. The Disclosing Party must comply fully with the applicable
ordinances.

I acknowledge and consent to the above

The Disclosing Party understands and agrees that:

C. If the City determines that any information provided in this EDS is false,
incomplete or inaccurate, any contract or other agreement in connection with
which it is submitted may be rescinded or be void or voidable, and the City may
pursue any remedies under the contract or agreement (if not rescinded or void),
at law, or in equity, including terminating the Disclosing Party's participation in
the Matter and/or declining to allow the Disclosing Party to participate in other
transactions with the City. Remedies at law for a false statement of material fact
may include incarceration and an award to the City of treble damages.

D. Itis the City's policy to make this document available to the public on its Internet
site and/or upon request. Some or all of the information provided on this EDS
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and any attachments to this EDS may be made available to the public on the
Interriet, in response to a Freedom of Information Act request, or otherwise. By
completing and signing this EDS, the Disclosing Party waives and releases any
possible rights or claims which it may have against the:City in connection with
the public release of information contained in this EDS and also authorizes the
City to verify the accuracy of any information submitted in this EDS.

E. The information provided in this EDS must be kept current. In the event of
changes, the Disclosing Party must supplement this EDS up to the time the
City takes action on the Matter. If the Matter is a contract being handled by the
City's Department of Procurement Services, the Disclosing Party must update
this EDS as the contract requires. NOTE: With respect to Matters subject
to Article | of Chapter 1-23 of the Municipal Code (imposing PERMANENT
INELIGIBILITY for certain specified offenses), the information provided herein
regarding eligibility must be kept current for a fonger period, as required by
Chapter 1-23 and Section 2-154-020 of the Municipal Code.

I acknowledge and consent to the above
The Disclosing Party represents and warrants that::

F.1. The Disclosing Party is not delinquent in the payment of any tax administered
by the Illinois Department of Revenue, nor are the Disclosing Party or its Affiliated
Entities delinquent in paying any fine, fee, tax or other charge owed to the City. This
includes, but is not limited to, all water charges, sewer charges, license fees, parking
tickets, property-taxes or sales taxes.

I certify the above to be true

Fi2 Ifthe Disclosing Party is the Applicant, the Disclosing Party and its Affiliated
Entities will not use, nor permit their subcontractors to use, any facility listed by the
U.S. E.P.A. on the federal Excluded.Parties List:System ("EPLS") maintained by the
U.S. General Services Administration.

I certify the above to be true

F.3:1f the Disclosing Party is the Applicant, the Disclosing Party will obtain

from any contractors/subcontractors hired or to be hired in connection with

the Matter certifications equal in form and substance to those in F.1. and F.2.
above and will not, without the prior written consent of the City, use any such
contractor/subcontractor that does not provide such certifications or that the
Disclosing Party has reason to believe has not provided or cannot provide truthful
certifications.

I certify the above to be true
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FAMILIAL RELATIONSHIPS WITH ELECTED CITY OFFICIALS AND
DEPARTMENT HEADS

This question is to be completed only by (a) the Applicant, and (b) any legal entity
which has a direct ownership interest in the Applicant exceeding 7.5 percent. It is not
to be completed by any legal entity which has only an indirect ownership interest in
the Applicant.

Under Municipal Code Section 2-154-015, the Disclosing Party must disclose
whether such Disclosing Party or any "Applicable Party" or any Spouse or Domestic
Partner thereof currently has a "familial relationship” with any elected city official or
department head. A "familial relationship" exists if, as of the date this EDS is signed,
the Disclosing Party or any "Applicable Party" or any Spouse or Domestic Partner
thereof is related to the mayor, any alderman, the city clerk, the city treasurer or
any city department head as spouse or domestic partner or:as any of the following,
whether by blood or adoption: parent, child, brother or sister, aunt or uncle, niece

or nephew, grandparent, grandchild, father-in-law, mother-in-law, son-in-law,
daughter-in-law, stepfather or stepmother, stepson or stepdaughter, stepbrother or
stepsister or half-brother or half-sister.

"Applicable Party" means (1) all corporate officers of the Disclosing Party, if

the Disclosing Party is a corporation: all partners of the Disclosing Party, if the
Disclosing Party is a general partnership; all general partners and limited partners

of the Disclosing Party, if the Disclosing Party is a limited partnership; all managers,
managing members and members of the Disclosing Party, if the Disclosing Party is a
limited liability company; (2) all principal officers of the Disclosing Party; and (3) any
person having more than a 7.5 percent ownership interest in the Disclosing Party.
"Principal officers" means the president, chief operating officer, executive director,
chief financial officer, treasurer or secretary of a legal entity or any person exercising
similar authority.

Does the Disclosing Party or any “Applicable Party"-or any Spouse or Domestic
Partner thereof currently have a "familial relationship" with an elected city official or
department head?

No
ADDITIONAL INFO

Please add any additional explanatory information here. If explanation is longer than
1000 characters, you may add an attachment below. Please riote that your EDS,
including all attachments, becomes available for public viewing upon contract award.
Your attachments will be viewable "as is" without manual redaction by the City. You
are responsible for redacting any non-public information from your documents before
uploading.
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List of vendor attachments uploaded by City staff
None.
List of attachments uploaded by vendor

None ..
CERTIFICATION

Under penalty of perjury, the person signing below: (1) warrants that he/she is
authorized to execute-this EDS on behalf of the Disclosing Party, and (2) warrants
that all certifications and statements contained in this EDS are true, accurate and
complete as of the date furnished to the City.

/sl 11/26/2013

Perry Gunn

Executive Director
North River Commission

This is a printed copy of the Economic Disclosure Statement, the original of which

is filed electronically with the City of Chicago. Any alterations must be made
electronically, alterations on this printed .copy are void and of no effect.
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CERTIFICATE OF FILING FOR
CITY OF CHICAGO ECONOMIC DISCLOSURE STATEMENT

EDS Number; 49817 Date of This Filing:11/26/2013 03:35 PM
Certificate Printed on: 12/02/2013 Original Filing Date:11/21/2013 11:12 AM

Disclosing Party: North River Commission Title:Executive Director
Filed by: Perry Gunn

Matter: Service Provider agreement with the
City of Chicago in order to provide special
services within SSA #60

Applicant: North River Commission
Specification #:

Contract #:

The Economic Disclosure Statement referenced above has been electronically filed with

the City. Please provide a copy of this Certificate of Filing to your city contact with other
required documents pertaining to the Matter. For additional guidance as to when to provide this
Certificate and other required documents, please follow instructions provided to you about the
Matter or consult with your City contact.

A copy of the EDS may be viewed and printed by visiting
hitps://webapps1.cityofchicago.org/EDSWeb and entering the EDS number into the EDS
Search. Prior to contract award, the filing is accessible online only to the disclosing party and
the City, but is still subject to the Illinois Freedom of Information Act. The filing is visible
online to the public after contract award.



2)

3)

4)

EXHIBIT 3
CONTRACTOR INSURANCE PROVISIONS

INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS
Special Services Area

Contractor must provide and maintain at Contractor’s own expense, during the term of the
Agreement and time period following expiration if Contractor is required to return and
perform any of the Services or Additional Services under this Agreement, the insurance
coverage and requirements specified below, insuring all operations related to the
Agreement. ‘

INSURANCE TO BE PROVIDED

1) Workers Compensation and Employers Liability

Workers Compensation Insurance, as prescribed by applicable law, covering all
employees who are to provide a service under this Agreement and Employers Liability
coverage with limits of not less than $100,000 each accident, illness or disease.

Commercial General Liability (Primary and Umbrella)

Commercial General Liability Insurance or equivalent with limits of not less than
$1.000,000 per occurrence for bodily injury, personal injury and property damage
liability. Coverages must include the following:  All premises and operations,
products/completed operations, separation of insureds, defense and contractual liability
(not to include Endorsement CG 21 39 or equivalent). The City of Chicago is to be
named as an additional insured on a primary, non-contributory basis for any liability
arising directly or indirectly from the work or Services.

Automobile Liability (Primary and Umbrella)

When any motor vehicles (owned, non-owned and hired) are used in connection with
Services to be performed, Contractor must provide Automobile Liability Insurance with
limits of not less than $500,000 per occurrence for bodily injury and property damage.
The City of Chicago is to be named as an additional insured on a primary, non-
contributory basis.

Professional Liability




When any professional consultants (e.g.; CPA’s, Attorney, Architects, Engineers)
perform work in connection with this Agreement, Professional Liability Insurance
covering acts, errors, or omissions must be maintained with limits of not less than
$500,000. When policies are renewed or replaced, the policy retroactive date must
coincide with, or precede start of work on the Contract. A claims-made policy which is
not renewed or replaced must have an extended reporting period of two (2) years.

5) Crime

The Contractor is responsible for all persons handling funds under this Agreement,
against loss by dishonesty, robbery, burglary, theft, destruction or disappearance, computer fraud,
credit card forgery and other related crime risks.

B. SECURITY FIRMS

If the Contractor enters into a subcontract with a Security Firm, such Security Firm must be
certified by State of Illinois, and the Security Firm’s employees must be registered and certified
by the State. Contractor must ensure and require any Security Firm subcontractor to comply with
the Risk Management Division approved Security Firm Insurance Provision set forth in Exhibit 4
of this Agreement, attached hereto and incorporated by references as though fully set forth
herein.

C. ADDITIONAL REQUIREMENTS

Contractor must furnish the City of Chicago, Department of Housing and Economic
Development (HED), City Hall, Room 1006, 121 North LaSalle Street 60602, original
Certificates of Insurance, or such similar evidence, to be in force on the date of this Agreement,
and Renewal Certificates of Insurance, or such similar evidence, if the coverages have an
expiration or renewal date occurring during the term of this Agreement. Contractor must submit
evidence of insurance on the City of Chicago Insurance Certificate Form (copy attached as
Exhibit-) or equivalent prior to execution of this Agreement. The receipt of any certificate does
not constitute agreement by the City that the insurance requirements in the Agreement have been
fully met or that the insurance policies indicated on the certificate are in compliance with all
Agreement requirements. The failure of the City to obtain certificates or other insurance
evidence from Contractor is not a waiver by the City of any requirements for the Contractor to
obtain and maintain the specified coverages. Contractor must advise all insurers of the
Agreement provisions regarding insurance. Non-conforming insurance does not relieve
Contractor of the obligation to provide insurance as specified in this Agreement. Nonfulfillment
of the insurance conditions may constitute a violation of the Agreement, and the City retains the
right to suspend this Agreement until proper evidence of insurance is provided, or the Agreement
may be terminated.



The Contractor must provide for 60 days prior written notice to be given to the City in the event
coverage is substantially changed, canceled or non-renewed.

Any deductibles or self-insured retentions on referenced insurance coverages must be borne by
Contractor.

Contractor hereby waives and agrees to require their insurers to waive their rights of subrogation
against the City of Chicago, its employees, elected officials, agents or representatives.

The coverages and limits furnished by Contractor in no way limit the Contractor's liabilities and
responsibilities specified within the Agreement or by law.

Any insurance or self-insurance programs maintained by the City of Chicago do not contribute
with insurance provided by Contractor under this Agreement.

The required insurance to be carried is not limited by any limitations expressed in the
indemnification language in this Agreement or any limitation placed on the indemnity in this
Agreement given as a matter of law.

If Contractor is a joint venture or limited liability company, the insurance policies must name the
joint venture or limited liability company as a named insured.

Contractor must require all Subcontractors to provide the insurance required in this Agreement,
or Contractor may provide the coverages for Subcontractors. All Subcontractors are subject to
the same insurance requirements of Contractor unless otherwise specified in this Agreement.

If Contractor or Subcontractor desire additional coverages, the party desiring the additional
coverages is responsible for the acquisition and cost.

Notwithstanding any provision in the Contract to the contrary, the City of Chicago Risk
Management Department maintains the right to modify, delete, alter or change these
requirements.



EXHIBIT 4
SECURITY FIRM INSURANCE PROVISIONS

CONTRACT INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

The Security Firm must provide and maintain at Security Firm's own expense, until Contract
completion and during the time period following expiration if Security Firm is required to return
and perform any additional work, the insurance coverages and requirements specified below,
insuring all operations related to the Contract.

A.

1)

2)

3)

4)

INSURANCE TO BE PROVIDED

Workers Compensation and Employers Liability

Workers Compensation Insurance, as prescribed by applicable law covering all
employees who are to provide work under this Contract and Employers Liability coverage
with limits of not less than $500,000 each accident, illness or disease.

Commercial General Liability (Primary and Umbrella)

Commercial General Liability Insurance or equivalent with limits of not less than
$1.000.000 per occurrence for bodily injury, personal injury, and property damage
liability. ~Coverages must include the following: All premises and operations,
products/completed operations, separation of insureds, defense, and contractual liability
(not to include Endorsement CG 21 39 or equivalent but coverage must include
Endorsement CG 22 74). The SSAC, City of Chicago and Contractor are to be named as
an additional insureds on a primary, non-contributory basis for any liability arising
directly or indirectly from the work.

Automobile Liability (Primary and Umbrella)

When any motor vehicles (owned, non-owned and hired) are used in connection with
work to be performed, the Security Firm must provide Automobile Liability Insurance
with limits of not less than $ 1,000,000 per occurrence for bodily injury and property
damage. The SSAC, City of Chicago and Contractor are to be named as an additional
insureds on a primary, non-contributory basis.

Professional Liability

Professional Liability Insurance covering acts, errors, or omissions must be maintained by
the Security Firm with limits of not less than $1,000,000. When policies are renewed or
replaced, the policy retroactive date must coincide with, or precede, start of work on the
Contract. A claims-made policy which is not renewed or replaced must have an extended




reporting period of two (2) years.
B. ADDITIONAL REQUIREMENTS

The Security Firm must furnish the Contractor and City of Chicago, Department of Housing and
Economic Development (HED), City Hall, Room 1006, 121 North LaSalle Street 60602, original
Certificates of Insurance, or such similar evidence, to be in force on the date of this Contract, and
Renewal Certificates of Insurance, or such similar evidence, if the coverages have an expiration
or renewal date occurring during the term of this Contract. The receipt of any certificate does not
constitute agreement by the Contractor that the insurance requirements in the Contract have been
fully met or that the insurance policies indicated on the certificate are in compliance with all
Contract requirements. The failure of the Contractor to obtain certificates or other insurance
evidence from Security Firm is not a waiver by the Contractor of any requirements for the
Security Firm to obtain and maintain the specified coverages. The Security Firm shall advise all
insurers of the Contract provisions regarding insurance. Non-conforming insurance does not
relieve Security Firm of the obligation to provide insurance as specified herein. Nonfulfillment
of the insurance conditions may constitute a violation of the Contract, and the Contractor retains
the right to stop work until proper evidence of insurance is provided, or the Contract may be
terminated.

The Security Firm must provide for 60 days prior written notice to be given to the Contractor in
the event coverage is substantially changed, canceled, or non-renewed.

Any deductibles or self insured retentions on referenced insurance coverages must be borne by
Security Firm.

The Security Firm hereby waives and agrees to require their insurers to waive their rights of
subrogation against the Contractor and the City of Chicago, its employees, elected officials,
agents, or representatives.

The coverages and limits furnished by Security Firm in no way limit the Security Firm's
liabilities and responsibilities specified within the Contract or by law.

Any insurance or self insurance programs maintained by the Contractor do not contribute with
insurance provided by the Security Firm under the Contract.

The required insurance to be carried is not limited by any limitations expressed in the
indemnification language in this Contract or any limitation placed on the indemnity in this
Contract given as a matter of law.

If Security Firm is a joint venture or limited liability company, the insurance policies must name
the joint venture or limited liability company as a named insured.

The Security Firm must require all subcontractors to provide the insurance required herein, or
Security Firm may provide the coverages for subcontractors. All subcontractors are subject to



the same insurance requirements of Security Firm unless otherwise specified in this Contract.

If Security Firm or subcontractor desires additional coverages, the party desiring the additional
coverages is responsible for the acquisition and cost.

Notwithstanding any provision in the Contract to the contrary, the City of Chicago Risk
Management Department maintains the right to modify, delete, alter or change these
requirements.
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Cook County Prevailing Wage for November 2013
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Cook County Prevailing Wage for November 2013

(See explanation of column headings at bottom of wages)

Trade Name

ASBESTOS ABT-GEN
ASBESTOS ABT-MEC
BOILERMAKER
BRICK MASON

CARPENTER
CEMENT MAS
CERAMIC TI

ON

LE FNSHER

COMM. ELECT.

ELECTRIC PWR

ELECTRIC P
ELECTRIC P

EQMT OP
WR GRNDMAN
WR LINEMAN

ELECTRICIAN
ELEVATOR CONSTRUCTOR
FENCE ERECTOR

. GLAZIER

HT/FROST I
IRON WORKE
LABORER
LATHER
MACHINIST
MARBLE FIN
MARBLE MAS
MATERIAL T
MATERIALS
MILLWRIGHT
OPERATING
OPERATING
OPERATING
OPERATING
OPERATING
OPERATING
OPERATING
OPERATING
OPERATING
OPERATING
OPERATING
OPERATING
OPERATING
OPERATING
OPERATING
OPERATING
OPERATING
OPERATING
OPERATING
ORNAMNTL I
PAINTER
PAINTER SI
PILEDRIVER
PIPEFITTER
PLASTERER

NSULATOR
R

ISHERS

ON

ESTER I
TESTER II

ENGINEER
ENGINEER
ENGINEER
ENGINEER
ENGINEER
ENGINEER
ENGINEER
ENGINEER
ENGINEER
ENGINEER
ENGINEER
ENGINEER
ENGINEER
ENGINEER
ENGINEER
ENGINEER
ENGINEER
ENGINEER
ENGINEER
RON WORKER
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ALL
BLD
BLD
BLD
ALL
ALL
BLD
BLD
ALL
ALL
ALL
ALL
BLD
ALL
BLD
BLD
ALL
ALL
ALL
BLD
ALL
BLD
ALL
ALL
ALL
BLD
BLD
BLD
BLD
BLD
BLD
BLD
FLT
FLT
FLT
FLT
FLT
HWY
HWY
HWY
HWY
HWY
HwWY
HWY
ALL
ALL
BLD
ALL
BLD
BLD
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37

34

44

34

37
42

27
32

44

47

44

44

41
40

47

.100
35.
43.
41.
42,
42.

100
450
580
520
350

.810
38.
.850
34.
44,
43,
49.

000

980
850
000
080

.840
39.
46.
42.

500
950
070

.000
.520
43,
30.
40.
.000
.000
42.
46.

920
520
780

520
100

.800
42.
40.
49,
.100
49.
51.
49.
.350
36.
52.
.300
43,
.700
.300
S
.300
45.
42.
40.
33.
42.
46.
41.

250
500
850

100
300
800

850
800

750

100

300
900
000
920
520
000
250

37

47

44
44

0
40

49
46
55
36
41

37
44

44

44

50
50
50

51
51
51
51
51
48
48
48
48
48
48
48

44
38
44

.600
37.

600

.360
45.
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.520
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.000
.800
49.
49.
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.000
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.000
49.
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850
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070

. 750
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0.
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0.
0.
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000
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.100
.100
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100
100

100
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.520
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H/W Pensn Vac Trng
13.38 9.520 0.000 0.500
11.17 10.76 0.000 0.720
6.970 14.66 0.000 0.350
9.700 12.80 0.000 1.040
13.29 12.75 0.000 0.630
12.16 12.35 0.000 0.430
10.20 7.830 0.000 0.640
8.420 11.30 1.100 0.700
10.63 14.23 0.000 0.450
8.290 11.10 0.000 0.350
10.63 14.23 0.000 0.450
12.83 14.27 0.000 0.750
11.88 12.71 3.930 0.600
12.86 10.67 0.000 0.300
11.99 14.30 0.000 0.840
11.17 11.96 0.000 0.720
13.45 19.59 0.000 0.350
13.38 9.520 0.000 0.500
13.29 12.75 0.000 0.630
6.760 8.950 1.850 0.000
9.700 12.55 0.000 0.590
9.700 12.71 0.000 0.740
13.38 9.520 0.000 0.500
13.38 9.520 0.000 0.500
13.29 12.75 0.000 0.630
16.60 11.05 1.900 1.250
16.60 11.05 1.900 1.250
16.60 11.05 1.900 1.250
16.60 11.05 1.900 1.250
16.60 11.05 1.900 1.250
16.60 11.05 1.900 1.250
16.60 11.05 1.900 1.250
15.70 10.55 1.900 1.250
15.70 10.55 1.900 1.250
15.70 10.55 1.900 1.250
15.70 10.55 1.900 1.250
15.70 10.55 1.900 1.250
16.60 11.05 1.900 1.250
16.60 11.05 1.900 1.250
16.60 11.05 1.900 1.250
16.60 11.05 1.900 1.250
16.60 11.05 1.900 1.250
16.60 11.05 1.900 1.250
16.60 11.05 1.900 1.250
13.11 16.40 0.000 0.600
9.750 11.10 0.000 0.770
2.600 2.710 0.000 0.000
13.29 12.75 0.000 0.630
9.000 15.85 0.000 1.680
11.10 11.69 0.000 0.550
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PLUMBER BLD 46.050 48.050 1.5 1.5 2.0 12.53 10.06 0.000 0.880
ROOFER BLD 38.950 41.950 1.5 1.5 2.0 8.280 9.190 0.000 0.430
SHEETMETAL WORKER BLD 41.210 44.510 1.5 1.5 2.0 10.48 19.41 0.000 0.660
SIGN HANGER BLD 30.210 30.710 1.5 1.5 2.0 4.850 3.030 0.000 0.000
SPRINKLER FITTER BLD 495.200 51.200 1.5 1.5 2.0 10.75 8.850 0.000 0.450
STEEL ERECTOR ALL 42.070 44.070 2.0 2.0 2.0 13.45 19.59 0.000 0.350
STONE MASON BLD 41.580 45.740 1.5 1.5 2.0 9.700 12.80 0.000 1.040
SURVEY WORKER ALL 37.000 37.750 1.5 1.5 2.0 12.97 9.930 0.000 0.500
TERRAZZO FINISHER BLD 36.040 0.000 1.5 1.5 2.0 10.20 9.9500 0.000 0.540
TERRAZZO MASON BLD 39.880 42.880 1.5 1.5 2.0 10.20 11.25 0.000 0.700
TILE MASON BLD 41.840 45.840 2.0 1.5 2.0 10.20 9.560 0.000 0.880
TRAFFIC SAFETY WRKR HWY 28.250 29.850 1.5 1.5 2.0 4.896 4.175 0.000 0.000
TRUCK DRIVER E ALL 1 33.850 34.500 1.5 1.5 2.0 8.150 8.500 0.000 0.150
TRUCK DRIVER E ALL 2 34.100 34.500 1.5 1.5 2.0 8.150 8.500 0.000 0.150
TRUCK DRIVER E ALL 3 34.300 34.500 1.5 1.5 2.0 8.150 8.500 0.000 0.150
TRUCK DRIVER E ALL 4 34.500 34.500 1.5 1.5 2.0 8.150 8.500 0.000 0.150
TRUCK DRIVER W ALL 1 32.550 33.100 1.5 1.5 2.0 6.500 4.350 0.000 0.000
TRUCK DRIVER W ALL 2 32.700 33.100 1.5 1.5 2.0 6.500 4.350 0.000 0.000
TRUCK DRIVER W ALL 3 32.900 33.100 1.5 1.5 2.0 6.500 4.350 0.000 0.000
TRUCK DRIVER W ALL 4 33.100 33.100 1.5 1.5 2.0 6.500 4.350 0.000 0.000
TUCKPOINTER BLD 41.950 42.950 1.5 1.5 2.0 8.180 11.78 0.000 0.630

Legend: RG (Region)

TYP (Trade Type - All,Highway,Building, Floating,Oil & Chip,Rivers)

C (Class)

Base (Base Wage Rate}

FRMAN (Foreman Rate)

M-F>8 (OT required for any hour greater than 8 worked each day, Mon through Fri.
OSA  (Overtime (OT) is required for every hour worked on Saturday)

OSH (Overtime is required for every hour worked on Sunday and Holidays)
H/W (Health & Welfare Insurance)

Pensn (Pension)

Vac (Vacation)

Trng (Training)

Explanations

COOK COUNTY

The following list is considered as those days for which holiday rates
of wages for work performed apply: New Years Day, Memorial Day,

Fourth of July, Labor Day, Thanksgiving Day, Christmas Day and
Veterans Day in some classifications/counties. Generally, any of
these holidays which fall on a Sunday is celebrated on the following
Monday. This then makes work performed on that Monday payable at the
appropriate overtime rate for holiday pay. Common practice in a given
local may alter certain days of celebration. If in doubt, please
check with IDOL.

TRUCK DRIVERS (WEST) - That part of the county West of Barrington
Road.

EXPLANATION OF CLASSES

ASBESTOS - GENERAL - removal of asbestos material/mold and hazardous
materials from any place in a building, including mechanical systems
where those mechanical systems are to be removed. This includes the
removal of asbestos materials/mold and hazardous materials from
ductwork or pipes in a building when the building is to be demolished

20f8 10/29/2013 11:24 AM



Cook County Prevailing Wage for November 2013

30of8

at the time or at some close future date.

ASBESTOS - MECHANICAL - removal of asbestos material from mechanical
systems, such as pipes, ducts, and boilers, where the mechanical
systems are to remain.

CERAMIC TILE FINISHER

The grouting, cleaning, and polishing of all classes of tile, whether
for interior or exterior purposes, all burned, glazed or unglazed
products; all composition materials, granite tiles, warning detectable
tiles, cement tiles, epoxy composite materials, pavers, glass,
mosaics, fiberglass, and all substitute materials, for tile made in
tile-like units; all mixtures in tile like form of cement, metals, and
other materials that are for and intended for use as a finished floor
surface, stair treads, promenade roofs, walks, walls, ceilings,
swimming pools, and all other places where tile is to form a finished
interior or exterior. The mixing of all setting mortars including but
not limited to thin-set mortars, epoxies, wall mud, and any other

sand and cement mixtures or adhesives when used in the preparation,
installation, repair, or maintenance of tile and/or similar materials.
The handling and unloading of all sand, cement, lime, tile,

fixtures, equipment, adhesives, or any other materials to be used in
the preparation, installation, repair, or maintenance of tile and/or
similar materials. Ceramic Tile Finishers shall fill all joints and
voids regardless of method on all tile work, particularly and
especially after installation of said tile work. Application of any
and all protective coverings to all types of tile installations
including, but not be limited to, all soap compounds, paper products,
tapes, and all polyethylene coverings, plywood, masonite, cardboard,
and any new type of products that may be used to protect tile
installations, Blastrac équipment, and all floor scarifying equipment
used in preparing floors to receive tile. The clean up and removal of
all waste and materials. All demolition of existing tile floors and
walls to be re-tiled.

COMMUNICATIONS ELECTRICIAN

Installation, operation, inspection, maintenance, repair and service
of radio, television, recording, voice sound vision production and
reproduction, telephone and telephone interconnect, facsimile, data
apparatus, coaxial, fibre optic and wireless equipment, appliances and
systems used for the transmission and reception of signals of any
nature, business, domestic, commercial, education, entertainment, and
residential purposes, including but not limited to, communication and
telephone, electronic and sound equipment, fibre optic and data
communication systems, and the performance of any task directly
related to such installation or service whether at new or existing
sites, such tasks to include the placing of wire and cable and
electrical power conduit or other raceway work within the equipment
room and pulling wire and/or cable through conduit and the
installation of any incidental conduit, such that the employees
covered hereby can complete any job in full.

MARBLE FINISHER

Loading and unloading trucks, distribution of all materials (all
stone, sand, etc.), stocking of floors with material, performing all
rigging for heavy work, the handling of all material that may be
needed for the installation of such materials, building of

http://www.illinois.gov/idol/Laws-Rulessf CONMED/Rates/13-11No...
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scaffolding, polishing if needed, patching, waxing of material if
damaged, pointing up, caulking, grouting and cleaning of marble,
holding water on diamond or Carborundum blade or saw for setters
cutting, use of tub saw or any other saw needed for preparation of
material, drilling of holes for wires that anchor material set by
setters, mixing up of molding plaster for installation of material,
mixing up thin set for the installation of material, mixing up of sand
to cement for the installation of material and such other work as may
be required in helping a Marble Setter in the handling of all

material in the erection or installation of interior marble, slate,
travertine, art marble, serpentine, alberene stone, blue stone,
granite and other stones (meaning as to stone any foreign or domestic
materials as are specified and used in building interiors and
exteriors and customarily known as stone in the trade), carrara,
sanionyx, vitrolite and similar opaque glass and the laying of all
marble tile, terrazzo tile, slate tile and precast tile, steps, risers
treads, base, or any other materials that may be used as substitutes
for any of the aforementioned materials and which are used on interior
and exterior which are installed in a similar manner.

MATERIAL TESTER I: Hand coring and drilling for testing of materials;
field inspection of uncured concrete and asphalt.

MATERIAL TESTER II: Field inspection of welds, structural steel,
fireproofing, masonry, soil, facade, reinforcing steel, formwork,
cured concrete, and concrete and asphalt batch plants; adjusting
proportions of bituminous mixtures.

OPERATING ENGINEER - BUILDING

Class 1. Asphalt Plant; Asphalt Spreader; Autograde; Backhoes with
Caisson Attachment; Batch Plant; Benoto (requires Two Engineers);
Boiler and Throttle Valve; Caisson Rigs; Central Redi-Mix Plant;
Combination Back Hoe Front End-loader Machine; Compressor and Throttle
Valve; Concrete Breaker (Truck Mounted); Concrete Conveyor; Concrete
Conveyor (Truck Mounted); Concrete Paver Over 27E cu. ft; Concrete
Paver 27E cu. ft. and Under: Concrete Placer; Concrete Placing Boom;
Concrete Pump (Truck Mounted); Concrete Tower; Cranes, All; Cranes,
Hammerhead; Cranes, (GCI and similar Type); Creter Crane; Spider
Crane; Crusher, Stone, etc.; Derricks, All; Derricks, Traveling;
Formless Curb and Gutter Machine; Grader, Elevating; Grouting
Machines; Heavy Duty Self-Propelled Transporter or Prime Mover;
Highlift Shovels or Front Endloader 2-1/4 yd. and over; Hoists,
Elevators, outside type rack and pinion and similar machines; Hoists,
One, Two and Three Drum; Hoists, Two Tugger One Floor; Hydraulic
Backhoes; Hydraulic Boom Trucks; Hydro Vac (and similar equipment);
Locomotives, All; Motor Patrol; Lubrication Technician; Manipulators;
Pile Drivers and Skid Rig; Post Hole Digger; Pre-Stress Machine; Pump
Cretes Dual Ram; Pump Cretes: Squeeze Cretes-Screw Type Pumps; Gypsum
Bulker and Pump; Raised and Blind Hole Drill; Roto Mill Grinder:
Scoops - Tractor Drawn; Slip-Form Paver; Straddle Buggies; Operation
of Tie Back Machine; Tournapull; Tractor with Boom and Side Boom;
Trenching Machines.

Class 2. Boilers; Broom, All Power Propelled; Bulldozers; Concrete
Mixer (Two Bag and Over); Conveyor, Portable; Forklift Trucks:
Highlift Shovels or Front Endloaders under 2-1/4 yd.; Hoists,
Automatic; Hoists, Inside Elevators; Hoists, Sewer Dragging Machine;
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Hoists, Tugger Single Drum; Laser Screed; Rock Drill (Self-Propelled):
Rock Drill (Truck Mounted); Rollers, All; Steam Generators; Tractors,
All; Tractor Drawn Vibratory Roller; Winch Trucks with "A" Frame.

Class 3. Air Compressor; Combination Small Equipment Operator;
Generators; Heaters, Mechanical; Hoists, Inside Elevators (remodeling
or renovation work); Hydraulic Power Units (Pile Driving, Extracting,
and Drilling); Pumps, over 3" (1 to 3 not to exceed a total of 300
ft.); Low Boys; Pumps, Well Points; Welding Machines (2 through 5);
Winches, 4 Small Electric Drill Winches.

Class 4. Bobcats and/or other Skid Steer Loaders; Oilers; and Brick
Forklift.

Class 5. Assistant Craft Foreman.
Class 6. Gradall.

Class 7. Mechanics; Welders.

OPERATING ENGINEERS - HIGHWAY CONSTRUCTION

Class 1. Asphalt Plant; Asphalt Heater and Planer Combinaticn; Asphalt
Heater Scarfire; Asphalt Spreader; Autograder/GOMACO or other similar
type machines: ABG Paver; Backhoes with Caisson Attachment; Ballast
Regulator; Belt Loader; Caisson Rigs; Car Dumper; Central Redi-Mix
Plant; Combination Backhoe Front Endloader Machine, (1 cu. yd. Backhoe
Bucket or over or with attachments); Concrete Breaker (Truck

Mounted); Concrete Conveyor; Concrete Paver over 27E cu. ft.; Concrete
Placer; Concrete Tube Float; Cranes, all attachments; Cranes, Tower
Cranes of all types: Creter Crane: Spider Crane; Crusher, Stone, etc.;
Derricks, All; Derrick Boats; Derricks, Traveling; Dredges;

Elevators, Outside type Rack & Pinion and Similar Machines; Formless
Curb and Gutter Machine; Grader, Elevating; Grader, Motor Grader,
Motor Patrol, Auto Patrol, Form Grader, Pull Grader, Subgrader; Guard
Rail Post Driver Truck Mounted; Hoists, One, Two and Three Drum; Heavy
Duty Self-Propelled Transporter or Prime Mover; Hydraulic Backhoes;
Backhoes with shear attachments up to 40' of boom reach; Lubrication
Technician; Manipulators; Mucking Machine; Pile Drivers and Skid Rig;
Pre-Stress Machine; Pump Cretes Dual Ram; Rock Drill - Crawler or Skid
Rig; Rock Drill - Truck Mounted; Rock/Track Tamper; Roto Mill

Grinder; Slip-Form Paver; Snow Melters; Soil Test Drill Rig (Truck
Mounted); Straddle Buggies; Hydraulic Telescoping Form (Tunnel);
Operation of Tieback Machine; Tractor Drawn Belt Loader; Tractor
Drawn Belt Loader (with attached pusher - two engineers); Tractor with
Boom; Tractaire with Attachments; Traffic Barrier Transfer Machine;
Trenching; Truck Mounted Concrete Pump with Boom; Raised or Blind Hole
Drills (Tunnel Shaft); Underground Boring and/or Mining Machines 5

ft. in diameter and over tunnel, etc; Underground Boring and/or Mining
Machines under 5 ft. in diameter; Wheel Excavator; Widener (APSCO).

Class 2. Batch Plant; Bituminous Mixer; Boiler and Throttle Valve;
Bulldozers; Car Loader Trailing Conveyors; Combination Backhoe Front
Endloader Machine (Less than 1 cu. yd. Backhoe Bucket or over or with
attachments); Compressor and Throttle Valve; Compressor, Common
Receiver (3):; Concrete Breaker or Hydro Hammer; Concrete Grinding
Machine; Concrete Mixer or Paver 7S Series to and including 27 cu.
ft.; Concrete Spreader; Concrete Curing Machine, Burlap Machine,
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Belting Machine and Sealing Machine; Concrete Wheel Saw; Conveyor Muck
Cars (Haglund or Similar Type); Drills, All; Finishing Machine -
Concrete; Highlift Shovels or Front Endloader; Hoist - Sewer Dragging
Machine; Hydraulic Boom Trucks (All Attachments); Hydro-Blaster; Hydro
Excavating (excluding hose work); Laser Screed; All Locomotives,
Dinky; Off-Road Hauling Units (including articulating) Non
Self-Loading Ejection Dump; Pump Cretes: Squeeze Cretes - Screw Type
Pumps, Gypsum Bulker and Pump; Roller, Asphalt; Rotary Snow Plows;
Rototiller, Seaman, etc., self-propelled; Self-Propelled Compactor;
Spreader - Chip - Stone, etc.; Scraper - Single/Twin Engine/Push and
Pull; Scraper - Prime Mover in Tandem (Regardless of Size); Tractors
pulling attachments, Sheeps Foot, Disc, Compactor, etc.; Tug Boats.

Class 3. Boilers; Brooms, All Power Propelled; Cement Supply Tender;
Compressor, Common Receiver (2); Concrete Mixer (Two Bag and Over);
Conveyor, Portable; Farm-Type Tractors Used for Mowing, Seeding, etc.;
Forklift Trucks; Grouting Machine; Hoists, Automatic; Hoists, All
Elevators; Hoists, Tugger Single Drum; Jeep Diggers; Low Boys; Pipe
Jacking Machines; Post-Hole Digger; Power Saw, Concrete Power Driven;
Pug Mills; Rollers, other than Asphalt; Seed and Straw Blower; Steam
Generators; Stump Machine; Winch Trucks with "A" Frame; Work Boats;
Tamper-Form-Motor Driven.

Class 4. Air Compressor; Combination - Small Equipment Operator;
Directional Boring Machine; Generators; Heaters, Mechanical; Hydraulic
Power Unit (Pile Driving, Extracting, or Drilling); Light Plants, All
(1 through 5); Pumps, over 3" (1 to 3 not to exceed a total of 300
ft.); Pumps, Well Points; Vacuum Trucks (excluding hose work); Welding
Machines (2 through 5); Winches, 4 Small Electric Drill Winches.

Class 5. SkidSteer Loader (all); Brick Forklifts; Oilers.
Class 6. Field Mechanics and Field Welders

Class 7. Dowell Machine with Air Compressor; Gradall and machines of
like nature.

OPERATING ENGINEER - FLOATING

Class 1. Craft Foreman; Master Mechanic; Diver/Wet Tender: Engineer;
Engineer (Hydraulic Dredge).

Class 2. Crane/Backhoe Operator; Boat Operator with towing
endorsement; Mechanic/Welder; Assistant Engineer (Hydraulic Dredge) ;
Leverman (Hydraulic Dredge); Diver Tender.

Class 3. Deck Equipment Operator, Machineryman, Maintenance of Crane
(over 50 ton capacity) or Backhoe (115,000 lbs. or more); Tug/Launch

Operator; Loader/Dozer and like equipment on Barge, Breakwater Wall,

Slip/Dock, or Scow, Deck Machinery, etc.

Class 4. Deck Equipment Operator, Machineryman/Fireman (4 Equipment
Units or More); Off Road Trucks; Deck Hand, Tug Engineer, Crane
Maintenance (50 Ton Capacity and Under) or Backhoe Weighing (115,000
pounds or less); Assistant Tug Operator.

Class 5. Friction or Lattice Boom Cranes.

SURVEY WORKER - Operated survey equipment including data collectors,

http://www.illinois.gov/idol/Laws-Rules/ CONMED/Rates/13-11No...

10/29/2013 11:24 AM



Cook County Prevailing Wage for November 2013

7of8

G.P.S. and robotic instruments, as well as conventional levels and
transits.

TERRAZZO FINISHER

The handling of sand, cement, marble chips, and all other materials
that may be used by the Mosaic Terrazzo Mechanic, and the mixing,
grinding, grouting, cleaning and sealing of all Marble, Mosaic, and
Terrazzo work, floors, base, stairs, and wainscoting by hand or
machine, and in addition, assisting and aiding Marble, Masonic, and
Terrazzo Mechanics.

TRAFFIC SAFETY

Work associated with barricades, horses and drums used to reduce lane
usage on highway work, the installation and removal of temporary lane
markings, and the installation and removal of temporary road signs.

TRUCK DRIVER - BUILDING, HEAVY AND HIGHWAY CONSTRUCTION - EAST & WEST

Class 1. Two or three Axle Trucks. A-frame Truck when used for
transportation purposes; Air Compressors and Welding Machines,
including those pulled by cars, pick-up trucks and tractors;
Ambulances; Batch Gate Lockers; Batch Hopperman; Car and Truck
Washers; Carry-alls; Fork Lifts and Hoisters; Helpers; Mechanics
Helpers and Greasers; 0il Distributors 2-man operation; Pavement
Breakers; Pole Trailer, up to 40 feet; Power Mower Tractors:
Self-propelled Chip Spreader; Skipman; Slurry Trucks, 2-man operation;
Slurry Truck Conveyor Operation, 2 or 3 man; Teamsters; Unskilled
Dumpman; and Truck Drivers hauling warning lights, barricades, and
portable toilets on the job site.

Class 2. Four axle trucks; Dump Crets and Adgetors under 7 yards;
Dumpsters, Track Trucks, Euclids, Hug Bottom Dump Turnapulls or
Turnatrailers when pulling other than self-loading equipment or
similar equipment under 16 cubic yards; Mixer Trucks under 7 yards;
Ready-mix Plant Hopper Operator, and Winch Trucks, 2 Axles.

Class 3. Five axle trucks; Dump Crets and Adgetors 7 yards and over;
Dumpsters, Track Trucks, Euclids, Hug Bottom Dump Turnatrailers or
turnapulls when pulling other than self-loading equipment or similar
equipment over 16 cubic yards; Explosives and/or Fission Material
Trucks; Mixer Trucks 7 yards or over; Mobile Cranes while in transit;
0il Distributors, l-man operation; Pole Trailer, over 40 feet; Pole
and Expandable Trailers hauling material over 50 feet long; Slurry
trucks, l-man operation; Winch trucks, 3 axles or more;
Mechanic—-Truck Welder and Truck Painter.

Class 4. Six axle trucks; Dual-purpose vehicles, such as mounted
crane trucks with hoist and accessories; Foreman; Master Mechanic;
Self-loading equipment like P.B. and trucks with scoops on the front.

Other Classifications of Work:

For definitions of classifications not otherwise set out, the
Department generally has on file such definitions which are
available. 1If a task to be performed is not subject to one of the
classifications of pay set out, the Department will wupon being
contacted state which neighboring county has such a classification and
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provide such rate, such rate being deemed to exist by reference in
this document. If no neighboring county rate applies to the task,
the Department shall undertake a special determination, such special
determination being then deemed to have existed under this
determination. If a project requires these, or any classification not
listed, please contact IDOL at 217-782-1710 for wage rates or
clarifications.

LANDSCAPING

Landscaping work falls under the existing classifications for laborer,
operating engineer and truck driver. The work performed by

landscape plantsman and landscape laborer is covered by the existing
classification of laborer. The work performed by landscape operators
(regardless of equipment used or its size) is covered by the
classifications of operating engineer. The work performed by
landscape truck drivers (regardless of size of truck driven) is
covered by the classifications of truck driver.
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CONTRACTOR’S PERFORMANCE & PAYMENT BOND

Bnofn All Men by these Presents,  arwe,

Principal, hereinafter referred to as Contractor, and
. Surety

of the County of Cook and State of Illinois, are held and firmly bound unto the CITY OF CHICAGO in the penal sum of

lawful money of the United States, for the payment of which sum of money, well and truly to be made, we bind ourselves, our heirs,

executors, administrators, successors and assigns, jointly and severally, firmly by these presents.

Sealed with our seals and dated this day of AD., 20
The Gondition of the Aboie Ohbligation is such,

That whereas the above bounden Contractor has entered into a certain contract with the CITY OF CHICAGO, bearing

Contract No. and Specification No. all in conformity with said contract, for,

The said contract is incorporated herein by reference in its entirety, including without limitation, any and all indemnification provisions.

Now, if the said Contractor shall in all respects well and truly keep and perform the said contract on its part, in accordance with
the terms and provisions of all of the Contract Documents comprising said contract, and in the time and manner therein prescribed, and
further shall save, indemnify, and keep harmless the City of Chicago against all loss, damages, claims, liabilities, judgements, costs and
expenses which may in anywise accrue against said City of Chicago, in consequence of the granting of said contract, or which may in
anywise result therefrom, or which may result from strict liability, or which may in anywise result from any injuries to, or death of, any
person, or damage to any real or personal property, arising directly or indirectly from or in connection with, work performed or to be
performed under said contract by said Contractor, its Agents, Employees or Workmen, assignees, subcontractors, or anyone else, in any
respect whatever, or which may result on account of any infringement of any patent by reason of the materials, machinery, devices or
apparatus used in the performance of said contract, and moreover, shall pay to said City any sum or sums of money determined by the
Purchasing Agent, and/or by a court of competent jurisdiction, to be due said City by reason of any failure or neglect in the performance
of the requirements of said contract, wherefore the said Purchasing Agent shall have elected to suspend or cancel the same, and shall pay
all claims and demands whatsoever, which may accrue to each and every materialman and subcontractor, and to each and every person
who shall be employed by the said Contractor or by its assignees and subcontractors, in or about the performance of said contract, and
with wages paid at prevailing wage rates if so required by said contract, and shall insure its liability to pay the compensation, and shall
pay all claims and demands for compensation which may accrue to each and every person who shall be employed by them or any of them in or
about the performance of said contract, or which shall accrue to the beneficiaries or dependents of any such person, under the provisions
of the Workers’ Compensation Act, 820 ILCS 305, as amended, and the Workers’ Occupational Disease Act, 820 ILCS 310, as amended
(hereinafter referred to as “Acts”) then is this obligation 1o be null and void, otherwise to remain in full force and effect.



And it is hereby expressly understood and agreed, and made a condition hereof, that any judgement rendered against said City in
any suit based upon any loss, damages, claims, liabilities, judgements, costs or expenses which may in anywise accrue against said City
as a consequence of the granting of said contract, or which may in anywise result therefrom, or which may in anywise result from any
injuries to, or death of, any person, or damage to any real or personal property, arising directly or indirectly from, or in connection with,
work performed. or to be performed under said contract by said Contractor or its agents, employees or workmen, assignees, subcontrac-
tors, or anyone else and also any decision of the Industrial Commission of the State of Illinois, and any order of court based upon such deci-
sion, or judgement thereon, rendered against said City of Chicago in any suit or claim arising under the aforementioned Acts when notice
of the pendency or arbitration proceedings or suit shall have been given said Contractor, shall be conclusive against each and all parties
to this obligation, as 10 amount, liability and all other things pertaining thereto.

Every person furnishing material or performing labor in the performance of said contract, either as an individual, as a subcontractor,
or otherwise, shall have the right to sue on this bond in the name of the City of Chicago for his use and benefit and in such suit said person
as plaintiff, shall file a copy of this bond, certified by the party or parties in whose charge this bond shall be, which copy shall be, unless
execution thereof be denied under oath, prima facie evidence of the execution and delivery of the original; provided, that nothing in this
bond contained shall be taken to make the City of Chicago liable to any subcontractor, materialman, laborer or to any other person 10 any
greater extent than it would have been liable prior to the enactment of the Public Construction Bond Act, 30 ILCS 550, as amended:
provided further, that any person having a claim for labor and materials furnished in the performance of this contract shall have no right of
action unless he shall have filed a verified notice of such claim with the Clerk of the City of Chicago within 180 days after the date of the
last item of work or the furnishing of the last item of materials, and shall have furnished a copy of such verified notice to the contractor
within 10 days of the filing of the notice with the City of Chicago. Such claim shall be verified and shall contain the name and address of
the claimant, the business address of the claimant within the State of Illinois, if any, or if the claimant be a foreign corporation having no
place of business with the State the principal place of business of said corporation, and in all cases of partnership the names and residences
of each of the partners, the name of the contractor for the City of Chicago, the name of the person, firm or corporation by whom the
claimant was employed or to whom such claimant fumished materials, the amount of the claim and a brief description of the public
improvement for the construction or installation of which the contract is to be performed. Provided, further, that no defect in the notice
herein provided for shall deprive the claimant of his right of action under the terms and provisions of this bond unless it shall affirmatively
appear that such defect has prejudiced the rights of an interested party asserting the same; provided, further, that no action shall be
brought until the expiration of one hundred twenty (120) days after the date of the last item of work or of the furnishing of the last item of
material, except in cases where the final settlement between the City of Chicago and the Contractor shall have been made prior to the
expiration of the 120 day period in which case action may be taken immediately following such final settlement, and provided, further, that
no action of any kind shall be brought later than six (6) months after the acceptance by the City of Chicago of the completion of work.

Any suit upon this bond shall be brought only in a circuit court of the State of lllinois in the judicial district in which the contract shall have
been performed.

The said Surety, for value received, hereby stipulates and agrees that no change, extension of time, alteration or addition to the terms
of any of the Contract Documents comprising said contract, or to the work to be performed thereunder, shall in anywise affect the

obligations on this bond, and it does hereby waive notice of any such change, extension of time, alteration or addition to the terms of said
Contract Documents or to the work.

(Seal)

Approved 20,

(Seal)

(Seal)
Purchasing Agent

(Seal)

Approved as to form and legality: (Seal)

(Seal)

Assistant Corporation Counset



STATE OF ILLINOIS,

PRINCIPAL
IF INDIVIDUAL

SS.
COUNTY OF COOK,
I » a Notary Public in and for the County and State
aforesaid, DO HEREBY CERTIFY that . President and
Z Secretary of the
=
j '; who are personally known to me to be the same persons whose names are subscribed in the foregoing instrument as
% g such President and Secretary, appeared
Z & before me this day in person and acknowledged that they signed, sealed and delivered the said instrument of writing as
25
Q their free and voluntary act, and as the free and voluntary act of the said
ry lary
E for the uses and purposes therein set forth, and caused the corporate seal of said Company to be thereto attached.
GIVEN under my hand and Notarial Seal this day of 20
Notary Public
N
/ STATE OF ILLINOIS,} s
COUNTY OF COOK,
I, ’ + a Notary Public in and for the County and State
E aforesaid, DO HEREBY CERTIFY that
é of the who, personally known
g to be the same person whose name, subscribed in the foregoing instrument as such
e » appeared before me this day in person and acknowledged that
Q
E, signed, sealed and delivered the said instrument of wriling as free and voluntary act, and as the free
-
E and voluntary act of the said
=) for the uses and purposes therein set forth, and caused the corporate seal of said Company to be thereto attached.
[72]
GIVEN under my hand and Notarial Seal this day of _ _ 20
N\ Notary Public
(' STATE OF ILLINOIS, |
COUNTY OF COOK, ’
I, » a Notary Public in and for the County and State

aforesaid, DO HEREBY CERTIFY that

who personally known to me to be the same persons whose name subscribed in the foregoing

instrument, appeared before me this day in person and acknowledged that he signed, sealed and delivered the

said instrument of writing as free and voluntary act, for the uses and purposes therein set forth,

GIVEN under my hand and Notarial Seal this day of 20

Notary Public

GRC-160211-26-1



RIDER TO CONTRACTOR’S PERFORMANCE AND PAYMENT BOND

This Rider supplements Contractor's Performance and Payment Bond (“Bond”) on that certain
contract with the City of Chicago (“City”) bearing Contract No. and Specification No.
(“Contract”). Surety acknowledges that the Contract requires Contractor to obtain from each of its
subcontractors consent to a collateral assignment of their contracts with Contractor to the City. The
Contract further grants the City the right, upon Contractor’s default for failure to comply with Chapter
4-36 of the Municipal Code of the City, and at the City’s sole option, to take over and complete the
work to be performed by Contractor through the City’s assumption of some or all of Contractor's
subcontracts. If the City, in its sole discretion, exercises this right, then Surety waives any rights it
may have to cure Contractor's default by performing the work itself or through others and remains
bound by its other obligations under the Bond.




EXHIBIT 7

Contractor Affidavit
Contractor Name:
Special Service Area Number:
Agreement (“Agreement”):
Agreement between the City of Chicago and dated
, relating to the provision of special services.
AFFIDAVIT
The undersigned, . as , and on behalf
of , having been duly sworn under oath, certifies that in the
year , it performed that portion of the Services described in Exhibit 1 of the Agreement

in accordance with the terms of the Agreement, to the extent described in the attached Full-Year
Assessment Form and that it spent that portion of funds obtained from the City in connection with that
Agreement on the Services described in Exhibit 1, to the extent described in the attached Full-Year
Assessment Form . The Full-Year Assessment Form shall be in the form prescribed by the City and shall
contain such level of detail as the City may require from time to time.

Nothing in this Affidavit may be construed as limiting Contractor’s obligations under the Agreement.
All terms not defined in this Affidavit will be as defined in the Agreement,

Under penalty of perjury, I certify that I am authorized to execute this Affidavit on behalf of the

Contractor, that I have personal knowledge of the certifications made in this Affidavit, and that they are
true and correct.

NAME OF CONTRACTOR:

Signature of Authorized Officer

Name of Authorized Officer (Print or Type)

State of

County of

Sworn to and acknowledged before me by [name of signatory] as
[title] of [mame of

contracting party] this day of .20

Signature of Notary



INSERT FULL-YEAR ASSESSMENT FORM




EXHIBIT 8

Special Service Area - Additional Audit Requirements

Accounting System

The Department requires that the Contractor maintain its accounting system in a manner which
allows the Contractor’s expenditures to be categorized in its statement of activities according to
the categories listed in the budget approved by the City for each Area.

Guidance for the Contractor’s Selection of a CPA Firm (Independent Auditor)

The Contractor must use the following guidelines for engaging a qualified CPA Firm:

1. Issue a Request for Proposal (“RFP”) that sets forth all of the terms and conditions of the
engagement, evaluation criteria, and scope of the work required. Audit firm evaluations
can replace an annual RFP process; an RFP process every three years is preferred.

2x Distribute and publicize the RFP sufficiently to ensure full and open competition.

3. Request in the RFP that bidders provide detail on:

a.
b.

g.
h.

How the CPA Firm will conduct the audit.

Qualifications of the CPA Firm, management, and staff, including experience in
auditing like entities.

Policies on notification of changes in key personnel.

Whether the proposed staff has received continuing professional education that is
relevant to the performance of this engagement during the previous 2 years,
Whether the CPA Firm has received a positive peer review within the last 3 years.
Whether the CPA Firm is independent, as defined by applicable auditing
standards. '

Whether the CPA Firm has been the object of any disciplinary action during the
past 3 years.

Confirmation the CPA Firm and key personnel assigned to this engagement

maintains an active license in the State of Illinois and attached a copy of a current license with
the RFP response or annually.

i.

Confirmation the CPA Firm is not on the City’s debarred vendor list.

j- The audit fee.
4, Evaluate the proposals based on:

a. The CPA Firm’s understanding of the audit requirements, including the needs of
the Area and the final products to be delivered.

b. Soundness of technical approach to the audit, including the meeting of the
Contractor’s specific deadlines and other requirements.

c. Qualifications of the CPA Firm.

d. Qualifications of the audit team.

e. The information provided by respondents in response to the RFP, including cost



and independence.

5. Rate the proposals as follows:
a. Proposals should be evaluated as submitted.
b. Make a list of strengths and weaknesses for each to support its technical rating.
c. Review the proposed fees offered by the bidders after completion of the technical
evaluation.
d. Ask questions of the bidders to eliminate any ambiguities.
e. Select a proposal that is most advantageous to the Area based on the evaluation

criteria set forth in the RFP.,

6. Once a CPA Firm is chosen based upon the foregoing criteria, require a written
engagement letter to avoid misunderstandings that specifies:

a. Audit scope, objectives, and purposes.

b. Deadlines for the work to be performed.

C. Audit fees.

d. Report format, including providing a PDF digital version of the final audit.

e. Type and timing of support to be provided to the CPA Firm by the Special Service
Area Commission (“SSAC?).

i Professional auditing standards to be followed in performing the audit.

g. Independence of the CPA Firm to the SSAC.

h. Terms of making changes to the scope of the agreement.

i. CPA Firm’s ownership of the work papers, retention period, and requirement for

availability to the City upon request.
Summary Schedule of Findings.

In order to properly conduct the certified audit of the books and records of the Contractor, it is
necessary for the CPA Firm to read and understand the requirements contained in the Agreement.
Particular attention should be given to Sections 3 and 5 of the Agreement.

The CPA Firm must test the Contractor’s compliance with the requirements contained in the
Agreement. Should the CPA Firm find exception to the requirements of the Agreement, it must
disclose all exceptions in a separate schedule, which shall be entitled “Summary Schedule of
Findings”. Each finding shall be listed separately. The schedule shall be incorporated with the
other required financial statements.

If the CPA Firm finds no exceptions to the Agreement requirements, it shall still include a
“Summary Schedule of Findings”. On that schedule the CPA Firm shall make an affirmative
statement indicating it has read the Agreement and, after conducting the audit, has determined
that no exceptions were noted.

Subsections to note in Section 5 include:
a. Section 5.01, Basis of Payment, describes “carry over” as the amount of Service



Tax Funds collected for prior tax years which remain previously unspent.

b. Section 5.02, Budget for Services, restricts the maximum amount that may be
spent in a calendar year to the amount stated in the Agreement.
c. Section 5.03, Method of Payment, states that the Contractor shall establish a

separate checking account and that Area funds shall not be commingled with other sources.
Audit of Financial Statements

As discussed in Section 3.07, “Records and Audits”, the Contractor shall provide an annual
audited financial statement to the Department and SSAC within 120 calendar days after the end
of the calendar year and the system of accounting shall be in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles and practices, consistently applied throughout.

Audit Documents
The City requires an audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles
to include the following documents:

1. Statement of Financial Position.

2. Statement of Activities: Budget and Actual (period being audited compared to the
previous year, e.g. columns should be 2014 Budget, 2014 Actual, Variance, 2013 Budget,
2013 Actual, Variance).

3. Statement of Cash Flows.
4. Notes to the Financial Statements.
) Summary Schedule of Findings that also includes the management response to any audit

findings and any subsequent CPA Firm and/or City’s and/or management responses until
the CPA Firm and/or the City consider the findings sufficiently remedied.

Expense descriptions included in the Statement of Activities must correspond to the expense
descriptions in the budget submitted to the City. ‘

CPA Firm License

The CPA Firm shall attach as an exhibit to the audit the firm’s active license and key personnel
to this engagement in the State of Illinois.

Audit Presentations

The CPA Firm shall attend at least one (1) SSAC meeting and be available for other meetings as
requested by the City to present the draft and/or final audit and respond to questions.

Debarment

Upon issuance of the final audit, the CPA Firm shall confirm it is not on the City’s debarred
vendor list.
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CITY OF CHICAGO

s MULTI- PROJECT LABOR AGREEMENT - o
This Model Multi-Project Labor Agreement ("Agreement”) is entered into by and between City
of Chicago, an Illinois municipal corporation, as Owner, on behalf of itself and each of its contractors,
subcontractors of whatsoever tier performing construction work on any project to which this Agreement
shall be applicable, and each of the undersigned labor organizations signatory hereto.

Whereas, Owner is responsible for construction, demolition, rehabilitation, maintenance, and/or
renovation of real property located in Chicago, lllinois; Due to the size, scope, cost and duration of the
multitude of Projects traditionally performed by the City of Chicago, the parties to this Agreement have
determined that it is in their interest to have these Projects completed in the most timely, productive,
economical and orderly manner possible, and withoui labor disruptions of any kind that might interfere
with, or delay, any of these Projects; '

Whereas, the parties have determined that it is desirable to eliminate the potential for friction and
disruption of these Projects by using their best efforts and ensuring that all work is performed by the trade
unions that are signatory hereto and which have traditionally performed and have trade and geographic
jurisdiction over such work. Experience has proven the value of such cooperation, and that such mutual
undertakings should be maintained, and if possible, strengthened, and that the ultimate beneficiaries
remain the Owner of the project; and,

Whereas, the Owner acknowledges that it has a serious and ongoing concern regarding Jabor
relations associated with the Projects and through its completion irrespective of the existence of a
collective bargaining relationship with any of the signatory labor organizations.

NOW THEREFORE, in order to further these goals and objectives and to maintain the spirit of
harmony, labor-management cooperation and stability, the parties agree as follows:

1. During the term of this Agreement, Owner its representatives and agents shall not
contract or subcontract, nor permit any other person, firm, company, or entity to contract
or subcontract, any construction, démolition, rehabilitation or renovation work for the
Project work covered under this Agreeinent or within the trade jurisdiction of the
signatory labor organization, to be performed at the Site of construction or off-site solely
for installation at the Site (includi?xg all tenant improvements, if applicable), unless such .
work is performed only by a person, firm or company signatory, or willing to become
signatory, to the applicable area-wide collective bargaining agreement(s) with the
union(s) or the appropriate trade/craft union(s) or subordinate body or affiliate of the
Chicago & Cook County Building & Construction Trades Council ("Council”) or the
Teamsters' Joint Council No. 25. Copies of all such current collective bargaining
agreements constitute Appendix "A" of this Agreement, attached hereto and made an
integral part hereof, and as may be modified from time to time during the term of this
Agreement. Said provisions of this Agreement shall be included in all Requests for Bids
and/or Proposals and shall be explicitly included in all contracts or subcontracts of
whatsoever tier by all contractors and subcontractors; provided that the total Project value
exceeds $25,000.00. In no event shall contracts be “split” so as to avoid the applicability
of this Agreement, In the event a dispute arises with respect to the applicability of this
Multi-Project Labor Agreement to a particular project, the parties agree to submit said
dispute to final and binding arbitration before a Permanent Umpire who shall be
mutually agreed to by the parties.



2.

With respect to a contractor or subcontractor who is the successful bidder, but is not
signatory to the applicable collective bargaining agreement, the collective bargaining
agreement(s) executed by said- bidder shall be the relevant area-wide agreement(s)

~regulating of governing wages, hours and 6ther terms and conditions of employment.

During the term of this Agreement, the Owner or any Project contractor and sub-
contractor shall engage in no lockout.

During the term of this Agreement, no labor organization signatory hereto, or any of its
members, officers, stewards, agents, representatives, or employees shall instigate,
authorize, support, sanction, maintain, or participate in any strike, walkout, work
stoppage, work slowdown, work curtailment, cessation or interruption of production, or
in any picketing of any Site covered under this Agreement for any reason whatsoever,
including but not limited to the expiration of any of the collective bargaining agreements
referred to on Appendix A. In the event of an economic strike or other jjob action upon
the termination of an existing collective bargaining agreement, in no event shall any
adverse job action be directed against any covered Project. All provisions of the
subsequently negotiated collective bargaining agreement shall be retroactive for all
employees working at a Project Site, provided such a provision for retroactivity is
contained in the newly negotiated collective bargaining agreement.

Each Union signatory hereto agrees that it will use its best efforts to prevent any of the
acts forbidden in Paragraph 4, and that in the event any such act takes place or is engaged
in by any employee or group of employees, each Union signatory hereto further agrees
that it will use its best efforts (including its full disciplinary power under its Constitution
and/or By-Laws) to cause an immediate cessation thereof. :

Any contractor of subcontractor signatory or otherwise bound stipulated or required to
abide by and to any provisions of this Agreement shall have the right to discharge or
discipline any employee who violates the provisions of this Agreement. Such discharge
or discipline by a contractor or subcontractor shall be subject to the Grievance/Arbitration
procedure of the applicable collective bargaining agreement only as to the fact of such
employee's violation of this Agreement, If such fact is established, the penalty imposed
shall not be disturbed. Work at any Site covered under this Agreement shall continue
without disruption or hindrance of any kind duringiany Grievance/ Arbitration procedure.

The parties expressly authorize a court of competent jurisdiction to order appropriate
injunctive relief to restrain any violation of this Agreement, any form of self-help remedy
is expressly forbidden., Nothing in the foregoing shall restrict any party to otherwise
judicially enforce any provision of its collective bargaining agreement between any labor
organization and a contractor with whom it has a collective bargaining relationship.

This Agreement shall become effective, and shall be included in al) Requests for Pro-
posals and/or Bids, all Purchase Orders, Contracts or other arrangements issued by the
City of Chicago for work described in Paragraph 1 above immediately subsequent to the
ratification of the Ordinance authorizing this Multi-Project Labor Agreement by the City
Council. ~

This Agreement shall expire on December 31, 2016 and shall be automatically extended
for an additional five (5) year term unless the parties issue a notice to terminate between
sixty (60) and (30) days prior to the initial expiration date.



10.

11.

b.)

c)

12.

In the event a dispute shall arise between any contractor or subcontractor of the Project
and any signatory labor organization and/or fringe benefit fund established under any of

__ the appropriate collective bargaining agreements as to the obligation and/or payment of

fringe benefit contributions provided under the collective bargaining agreement, upon
proper notice to the contractor(s) or subcontractor(s) by the applicable labor organization
or fringe benefit fund and to the contractor or subcontractor, an amount sufficient to
satisfy the amount claimed shall be withheld from the contractor's or subcontractor's
regularly scheduled periodic payment from the contractor or subcontractor, or their
agents until such time as said claim is resolved.

In the event of a jurisdictional dispute by and between any labor organizations signatory
hereto, such labor organizations shall take all steps.necessary to promptly resolve the dispute.
In the event of a dispute relating to trade or work jurisdiction, ail parties, including: the
employers, contractors or subcontractors, agree that a final and bindidg resolution of the
dispute shall be resolved as follows:

Representatives of the affected trades shall meet on the job site within forty-eight (48)
hours after receiving notice in an effort to resolve the dispute. (In the event there is a
dispute between local unions affiliated with the same International Union, the decision of
the General President, or histher designee, as the internal jurisdictional authority of that
International Union, shall consfitute a find and binding decision and determination as to
the jurisdiction of work.)

If no settlement is achieved subsequent to the preceding Paragraph, the matter shall be
referred to the Chicago & Cook County Building & Construction Trades Council, which shall
meet with the affected trades within forty-eight (48) hours subsequent to receiving notice. An
agreement reached at this Step shall be final and binding.-

If no settlement agreements is reached during the proceedings contemplated by Paragraph "a"
or "b" above, the matter shall be immediately referred to the Joint Conference Board,
established by the Standard Agreement between the Construction Employers® Association and
the Chicago & Cook County Building & Construction Trades Council, which may be
amended from time to time, for final and binding resolution of said dispute. Said Standard
Agreement is attached hereto as Appendix “B” and specifically incorporated into this
Agreement.
t

This Agreement shall be incorporated into and become part of the collective bargaining
agreements between the Unions signatory hereto and contractors and subcontractors. In
the event of any inconsistency between this Agreement and any collective bargaining
agreement, the terms of this Agreement shall supersede and prevail except for all work
performed under the NT Articles of Agreement, the National Stack/Chimney Agreement,
the National Cooling Tower Agreement, all instrument calibrafion work and loop
checking shall be performed under the terms of the UA/IBEW Joint National Agreement
for instrument and Control Systems Technicians, and the National Agreement of the
International Union of Elevator Constructors with the exception of the content and
subject matter of Articles V, VI and VII of the AFL-CIO’s Building & Construction
Trades Department model Project Labor Agreement.

The parties agree that in the implementation and administration of this Agreement, it is
vitally necessary to maintain effective and immediate communication so as to minimize
the potential of labor relations disputes arising out of this Agreement. To that end, each
party hereto agrees to designate, in writing, a representative to whom problems can be
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directed which may afise'during the term of this Agréefnént. 'Within forty-cight (48)
hours after notice of the existence of any problem, representatives of each party shall
meet-to discuss and, wherepossible, resolve such problems. The representative of the

"signiatory unions shall bé Thomas Villanova, of his designee, President of the Chicagd &

Cook County Building & Construction Trades Council. The representative of Owner
shall be the Corporation Counsel or his/her designee.

If any provision, section, subsection or other portion of this Agreement shall be
determined by any court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, illegal, or unenforceable
in whole or in part, and such determination shall become final, such provision or portion
shall be deemed to be severed or limited, but only to the extent required to render the
remaining provisions and portions of this Agreement enforceable. This Agreement, as
thus amended, shall be enforced so as to give effect to the intention of the parties insofar
as that is possible. In addition, the parties hereby expressly empower a court of competent *
jurisdiction to modify any term or provision of this Agreement to the extent necessary to
comply with existing law and to enforce this Agreement as modified.

Owner and General Contractor, on behalf of themselves and their contractors and
subcontractors agree that the applicable substance abuse policy (i.e., drug, alcohol, etc.)
applicable to the.employees working on any covered Project shall be that as contained, or
otherwise provided for, in the area-wide collective bargaining agreements attached at
Appendix "A" to this Agreement. Nothing in the foregoing shall limit the Owners and/or
General Contractor, its contractors or subcontractors from instituting its own substance
abuse policy governing other employees performing work on a Project not otherwise
covered under this Agreement. In the event there is no substance abuse .policy in the
applicable collective bargaining agreement, the policy adopted by the Owners and/or
General Contractor may apply.

The parties recognize a desire to facilitate the entry into the building and construction
trades of veterans who are interested in careers in the building and construction industry.
The parties agree to utilize the services of the- Center for Military Recruitment,
Assessment and Veterans Employment (hereinafter referred to as the “Center™) and the,
Center’s Helmets to Hardhats” program to service as a resource. for preliminary
orientation, assessment of construction aptitude, referral to apprenticeship programs or
hiring halls, counseling and mentoring, support network, employment opportunities apd
other needs as identified by the parties. The parties also agree to coordinate with the
Center to create and maintain an integrated database of veterans interested in working on
this project and of apprenticeship and employment opportunities for these Projects. To
the extent permitted by law, the parties will give appropriate credit to such veterans for
bona fide, provable past experience, in the building and construction industry.

The parties recognize the importance of facilitating the goals and objectives of the
Apprenticeship & Training Initiative agreed to by the parties in separate collective
bargaining agreements applicable to employees of the Owner. Additionally, parties agree
to incorporate the duties and responsibilities associated with the Supplemental Addendum
to the Multi-Project Labor Agreement between the signatory labor organizations and the
Chicago Public Schools attached hereto in Appendix “C” and incorporated herein.
Towards these ends, the undersigned labor organizations will assist and cooperate with
the Owner, the Chicago Public Schools, City Colleges and contractors in monitoring and
enforcing the foregoing commitments, including  providing relevant information
requested by the Owner for the purpose of such monitoring and enforcement, including



the information provided for in Paragraph 3(E) of the'Supplemental Addendum with

CPS. Upon execution of this Agreement, representatives of the Owner and the Chicago

Building Trades Council will immediately meet for the purpose of establishing the’
" specific mechanism by whichthis infotmation will be gathered; processeéd and reported: = —

The parties hereto agree and acknowledge that the commitments set forth herein,
including those in the attached Appendix “C” are intérdependent. In the event the goals
and commitments set forth in Appendix “C” are not realized, the City shall bring this to
the attention of the Chicago Building Trades Council (“Council™), and the parties shall
immediately meet for the purpose of identifying the cause(s) of said failure and
implement necessary measures to remedy the failure. Should the Council’s affiliate
members refuse to implement measures reasonably necessary to realize these goals and
commitments, the City may terminate this Agreement subsequent to January 13, 2013, If,
as of June 1, 2012, the City believes that the Council's affiliate members have failed to
implement measures reasonably necessary to realize these goals and commitments, the
City may at that time deliver to the Council formal written notice of intent to terminate
this Agréement on January 1, 2013. Upon deliverance of such notice, the parties shall
immediately meet to craft and implement additional measures to remedy such failure. If
the parties are unsuccessful in implementing satisfactory measures, the City may
implement said notice of termination on January 1, 2013.

The parties acknowledge the Residency requirement for employees of contractors and
subcontractors in the standard City of Chicago construction contract. The parties also
agree to cooperatively work and monitor compliance with these requirements and to work
cooperatively to facilitate and work in good faith to the achievement of said required
Residency provision including union attendance at pre-bid conferences with prospective
contractors and subcontractors as well as other reasonable undertakings to demonstrate
progress in this regard.

17. The parties agree that contractors and subcontractors working under the provisions of this
Agreement shall be required to strive to utilize the maximum number of apprentices on
said Project as permitted under the applicable collective bargaining agreement as
contained in Appendix “A™.

18. This document, with each of the Attachments, constitutes the entire agreement of the
parties and may not be modified or changed except by the subsequent written agreement
of the parties. '

19, All parties represent that they have the full legal authority to enter into this Agreement.

The undersigned, as the Owner and Labor Organizations on the Project, agree to all of the terms
and conditions contained in this Agreement.

Dated this the 9" day of February, 2011 in Chicago, Cook County, Illinois.

On behalf of Owner:




Corporation Counsel

Duly Authorized Officer of the City of Chicago

On behalf of

(Insert Name of Labor Organization)

Its Duly Authorized Officer



CITY OF CHICAGO
ECONOMIC DISCLOSURE STATEMENT and AFFIDAVIT
Related to Contract/Amendment/Solicitation
EDS # 49817

SECTION | -- GENERAL INFORMATION

A. Legal name of the Disclosing Party submitting the EDS:
North River Commission

Enter d/b/a if applicable: .

The Disclosing Party submitting this EDS is:
the Applicant
B. Business address of the Disclosing Party:

3403 W. Lawrence Avenue
Suite 201

Chicago, IL 60625
United States

C. Telephone:

773-478-0202

Fax:

773-478-0282

Email:
cagostinelli@northrivercommission.org

D. Name of contact person:

Carla Agostinelli

E. Federal Employer Identification No. (if you have one):

36-2526797



F. Brief description of contract, transaction or other undertaking (referred to below as
the "Matter") to which this EDS pertains:

Service Provider agreement with the City of Chicago in order
to provide special services within SSA #60

Which City agency or department is requesting this EDS?
DEPT OF HOUSING AND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT

Specification Number
Contrapt (PO) Number
Revision Number
Release Number

User Department Project Number

SECTION I -- DISCLOSURE OF OWNERSHIP INTERESTS

A. NATURE OF THE DISCLOSING PARTY

1. Indicate the nature of the Disclosing Party:

Not-for-profit corporation

Is the Disclosing Party also a 501(c)(3) organization?

Yes

Is the Disclosing Party incorporated or organized in the State of lllinois?
Yes

B. DISCLOSING PARTY IS A LEGAL ENTITY?

1.a.1 Does the Disclosing Party have any directors?

Yes



1.2.3 List below the full names and titles of all executive officers and all directors,
if any, of the entity. Do not include any directors who have no power to select the
entity's officers.

Officer/Director: Mr. Perry Gunn
Title: Executive Director

Role. Both

Officer/Dlrector. Ms. Carla M Agostlnelll

Title: Project Director
Role: Director
Officer/Bireotor: "Ms.'MeliéSa McDaniels
Title: Program Director
Role: Director
Offlcer/Dlrector' " Mr. David Rownd '
Title: Treasurer

Role Both
Officer/Dlrector. Mr Ron Duplack
Title: President

Role. Both

1.a.5 Are there any members of the non-for-profit Disclosing Party which are: Iegal
entities?

No

SECTION lil -- BUSINESS RELATIONSHIPS WITH CITY ELECTED
OFFICIALS

Has the Disclosing Party had a "business relationship," as defined in Chapter.2-156
of the Municipal Code, with any City elected official in the 12 months beforeé the date
this EDS is signed?

No



SECTION IV -- DISCLOSURE OF SUBCONTRACTORS AND OTHER
RETAINED PARTIES

The Disclosing Party must disclose the name and business address of each
subcontractor, attorney, lobbyist, accountant, consultant and any other person or
entity whom the Disclosing Party has retained or expects to retain in connection
with the Matter, as well as the nature of the relationship, and the total amount of the
fees paid or estimated to be paid. The Disclosing Party is not required to disclose
employees who are paid solely through the Disclosing Party's regular payroll.

"Lobbyist' means any person or entity who undertakes to‘influence any legislative or
administrative:action on behalf of any person or entity other than: (1) a not-for-profit
entity, on an unpaid basis, or (2) himself. "Lobbyist" also means any person or

entity any part of whose duties as an employee of another includes undertaking to
influence any legislative or administrative action.

If the Disclosing Party is uncertain whether a disclosure is required under this
Section, the Disclosing Party must either ask the City whether disclosure is required
or make the disclosure.

1. Has the Disclosing Party retained any legal entities in connection with the Matter?
Yes

2. List below the names of all legal entities which are retained parties.

‘ Name: TBD - Advertising and Promotion
Anticipated/ Mnticipated
Retained:

Buginess Address: , United States
Relationship: Other

Fees $12,500.00

(8§ or %):

Estimated/Pald Estimated
Anticipated/ Anticipated
Retained:

Business Address: , United States
Relationship: Other

Fees $168,000.00

($8 or %):



Estimated/Paid. Estimated

-Name-h ~~~~~~ o H—fgs.Qufdbllc”Wéy A;sthetlcéwm o
Anticipated/ Anticipated

Retained:

Business Address: , United States

Relationship: Other

Fees $16,920.00

(88 or %):

Estlmated/Paid:. Estlmated

. -p.\.o..,.(...',;_. L LN P

TBD - Facade Imprévements o

Anticipated/ Anticipated

Retained:

Business Address: » United States

Relationship: Other

Fees $15,000.00

(38 or %):

Estimated/Pald- Estimated o . N
Name: ...... Téﬁ‘f éaéééy érograms

Anticipated/ Anticipated

Retained:

Business Address: . United States

Relationship: Other

Fees $30,000.00

(88 or %):

Estimated/Paid- Estimated

R;;;:i o '"'“;Bb‘— Distrl;L Plénnlng S
Anticipated/ Anticipated

Retained:

Business Address: , United States

Relationship: Other

Fees $50,000.00

($$ or %):

Estimated/Paid Estimated

ha;e-’ B , Place E;néﬁitlﬁéimfﬂg T ———

=8¢z



Anticipated/ Retained

Retained:
Business Address: 3759 N. Ravenswood
Suite 129
Chicago, IL 60613 United States
Relationship: Consultant
Fees $25,000.00
(68 or %):

Egtimated/Paid: Estimated

3. Has the Disclosing Party retained any persons in connection with the Matter?

No
SECTION V -- CERTIFICATIONS

A. COURT-ORDERED CHILD SUPPORT COMPLIANCE

Under Municipal Code Section 2-92-415, substantial owners of business entities that
contract with the City must remain in compliance with their child support obligations
throughout the contract's term.

Has any person who directly or indirectly owns 10% or more of the Disclosing Party
been declared in arrearage of any child support obligations by any Hlinois court of
competent jurisdiction?

Not applicable because no person directly or indirectly owns
10% or more of the Disclosing Party

B. FURTHER CERTIFICATIONS

1. Pursuant to Municipal Code Chapter 1-23, Article | ("Article I")(which the Applicant
should consult for defined terms (e.g., "doing business") and legal requirements), if
the Disclosing Party submitting this EDS is the Applicant and'is doing business with
the City, then the Disclosing Party certifies as follows:

i. neither the Applicant nor any controlling person is currently indicted or charged
with, or has admitted guilt of, or has ever been convicted of, or placed under
supervision for, any criminal offense involving actual, attempted, or conspiracy
to commit bribery, theft, fraud, forgery, perjury, dishonesty or deceit against an
officer or employee of the City or any sister agency; and

ii. the Applicant understands and acknowledges that compliance with Article | is a
continuing requirement for doing business with the City.



NOTE: If Article | applies to the Applicant, the permanent compliance timeframe in
Article | supersedes some five-year compliance timeframes in certifications 2 and 3
below.

I certify the above to be true

2. The Disclosing Party and, if the Disclosing Party is a legal entity, all of those
persons or entities identified in Section I1.B.1. of this EDS:

a. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared
ineligible or voluntarily excluded from any transactions by any federal, state or
local unit of government:

b. have not, within a five-year period preceding the date of this EDS, been
convicted of a criminal offense, adjudged guilty, or had a civil judgment
rendered against them in connection with: obtaining, attempting to obtain,
or performing a public (federal, state or local) transaction or contract under
a public transaction; a violation of federal or state antitrust statutes; fraud;
embezzlement; theft; forgery; bribery; falsification or destruction of records;
making false statements; or receiving stolen property;

C. are not presently indicted for, or criminally or civilly charged by, a governmental
entity (federal, state or local) with committing any of the offenses set forth in
clause B.2.b. of this Section V:

d. have not, within a five-year period preceding the date of this EDS, had one or
more public transactions (federal, state or local) terminated for cause or default;
and

e. have not, within a five-year period preceding the date of this EDS, been
convicted, adjudged guilty, or found liable in a civil proceeding, or in-any criminal
or civil action, including actions concerning environmental violations, instituted
by the City or by the federal government, any state, or any other unit of local
government,

I certify the above to be true

3. Neither the Disclosing Party, .nor any Contractor, nor any Affiliated Entity of either
the Disclosing Party or any Contractor nor any Agents have, during the five years
before the date this EDS is signed, or, with respect to a Contractor, an Affiliated
Entity, or an Affiliated Entity of a Contractor during the five years before the date of
such Contractor's or Affiliated Entity's contract or engagement in connection with the
Matter:

a. bribed or attempted to bribe, or been convicted or adjudged guilty of bribery or
attempting to bribe, a public officer or employee of the City, the State of lllinois,
or any agency of the federal government or of any state or local government in
the United States of America, in that officer's or employee's official capacity;

b. agreed or colluded with other bidders or prospective bidders, or been a party
to any such agreement, or been convicted or adjudged guilty of agreement

e f -



or collusion among bidders or prospective bidders, in restraint of freedom of
competition by agreement to bid a fixed price or otherwise; or » ‘

c. made an admission of such conduct described in a. or b. above that is a matter
of record, but have not been prosecuted for such conduct; or

d. violated the provisions of Municipal Code Section 2-92-610 (Living Wage
Ordinance).

I certify the above to be true

4. Neither the Disclosing Party, Affiliated Entity or Contractor, or any of their
employees, officials, agents or partners, is barred from contracting with any unit of
state or local government as a result of engaging in or being convicted of

* bid-rigging in violation of 720 ILCS 5/33E-3:

* bid-rotating in violation of 720.ILCS 5/33E-4; or

+ any similar offense of any state or of the United States of America that contains
the same elements as the offense of bid-rigging or bid-rotating.

I certify the above to be true

5. Neither the Disclosing Party nor any Affiliated Entity is listed on any of the
following lists maintained by the Office of Foreign Assets Control of the U.S.
Department of the Treasury or the Bureau of Industry and Security of the U.S.
Department of Commerce or their successors: the Specially Designated Nationals
List, the Denied Persons List, the Unverified List, the Entity List and the Debarred

I certify the above to be true

6. The Disclosing Party understands and shall comply with the applicable
requirements of Chapters 2-55 (Legislative Inspector General), Chapter 2-56
(Inspector General) and Chapter 2-156 (Governmental Ethics) of the Municipal
Code. g

I certify the above to be true

7. To the best of the Disclosing Party's knowledge after reasonable inquiry, the
following is a complete list of all current employees of the Disclosing Party who were,
at any time during the 12-month period preceding the execution date of this EDS, an
employee, or elected or appointed official, of the City of Chicago.

None

8. To the best of the Disclosing Party's knowledge after reasonable inquiry, the
following is a complete list of all gifts that the Disclosing Party has given or caused
to be given, at any time during the 12-month period preceding the execution date



of this EDS, to an employee, or elected or appointed official, of the City of Chicago.
For purposes of this statement, a "gift" does not include: (i) anything made generally
available to City employees or to the general public, or (ii) food or drink provided

in the course of official City business and having a retail value of less than $20 per
recipient.

None
C. CERTIFICATION OF STATUS AS FINANCIAL INSTITUTION

The Disclosing Party certifies that, as defined in Section 2-32-455(b) of the Municipal
Code, the Disclosing Party

ig not a "financial institution"
D. CERTIFICATION REGARDING INTEREST IN CITY:BUSINESS

Any words or terms that are defined in Chapter 2-156 of the Municipal Code have
the same meanings when used in this Part D.

1. In accordance with Section 2-156-110 of the Municipal Code: Does any official or
employee of the City have a financial interest in his or her own name or in the name
of any other person or entity in the Matter?

No
E. CERTIFICATION REGARDING SLAVERY ERA BUSINESS

If the Disclosing Party cannot make this verification, the Disclosing Party must
disclose all required information in the space provided below or in an attachment in
the "Additional Info" tab. Failure to comply with these disclosure requirements may
make any contract entered into with the City in connection with the Matter voidable
by the City.

‘The Disclosing Party verifies that the Disclosing Party has searched any and all
records of the Disclosing Party and any and all predecessor entities regarding
records of investments or profits from slavery er slaveholder insurance policies
during the slavery era (including insurance policies issued to slaveholders that
provided coverage for damage to or injury or death, of their slaves), and the
Disclosing Party has found no such records.

I can make the above wverification



SECTION VI -- CERTIFICATIONS FOR FEDERALLY-FUNDED
MATTERS

Is the Matter federally funded? For the purposes of this Section VI, tax credits
allocated by the City and proceeds of debt obligations of the City are not federal
funding.

No

SECTION Vi -- ACKNOWLEDGMENTS, CONTRACT
INCORPORATION, COMPLIANCE, PENALTIES, DISCLOSURE

The Disclosing Party understands and agrees that:

A. The certifications, disclosures, and acknowledgments contained in this EDS
will become part of any contract or other agreement between the Applicant and
the City in connection with the Matter, whether procurement, City assistance, or
other City action, and are material inducements to the City's execution of any
contract or taking other action with respect to the Matter. The Disclosing Party
understands that it must comply with all statutes, ordinances, and regulations on
which this EDS is based.

B. The City's Governmental Ethics and Campaign Financing Ordinances,
Chapters 2-156 and 2-164 of the Municipal Code, impose certain duties
and obligations on persons or entities seeking City contracts, work,
business, or transactions. A training program is available on line at
www.cityofchicago.org/city/en/depts/ethics.html, and may also be obtained from
the City's Board of Ethics;, 740.N. Sedgwick St., Suite 500, Chicago, IL 60610,
(312) 744-9660. The Disclosing Party must comply fully with the applicable
ordinances.

I acknowledge and consent to the above

The Disclosing Party understands and agrees that:

C. If the City determines that any information provided in this EDS is false,
incomplete or inaccurate, any contract or other agreement in connection with
which it is submitted may be rescinded or be void or voidable, and the City may
pursue any remedies under the contract or agreement (if not rescinded or void),
at law, or in equity, including terminating the Disclosing Party's participation in
the Matter and/or declining to allow the Disclosing Party to participate in other
transactions with the City: Remedies at law for a false statement of material fact
may include incarceration and an award to the City of treble damages.

D. ltis the City's policy to make this document available to the public on its Internet
site and/or upon request. Some or all of the information provided on this EDS
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and any attachments to this EDS may be made available to the public on the
Interniet, in response to a Freedom of Information Act request, or otherwise. By
completing and signing this EDS, the Disclosing Party waives and releases any
possible rights or claims which it may have against:the City in connection with
the:public release of information contained in this EDS and also authorizes the
City to. venfy the accuracy of any information submitted in this EDS.

E. The information provided in this EDS must be kept current. In the event of
changes, the Disclosing Party must supplement this EDS up to the time the
City takes action on the Matter. If the Matter is a contract being handled by the
City's Department of Procurement Services, the Disclosing Party must update
this EDS as the contract requires. NOTE; With respect to Matters subject
to Article | of Chapter 1-23 of the Municipal Code (imposing PERMANENT
INELIGIBILITY for certain specified offenses), the information provided herein
regarding eligibility must be kept current for a longer period, as required by
Chapter 1-23 and Section 2-154-020 of the Muicipal Code.

I acknowledge and consent to the above
The Disclosing Party represents and warrants that

F:1. The Disclosing Party is not delinquent in the payment of any tax administered
by the llinois Department of Revenue, nor are the Disclosing Party or its Affiliated
Entities delinquent in paying any fine, fee, tax or other charge owed to the City. This
mcludes butis not limited to, all water charges, sewer charges, license fees, parking
tickets property taxes or sales taxes.

I. certify the above to be true

F:2 Ifthe Disclosing Party is the Applicant, the Disclosing Party and its Affiliated
Entities will not use, nor permit their subcontractors to use, any facility listed by the
U:S. E:P.A. on the federal Excluded Parties List System ("EPLS") maintained by the
U.S. General Services Administration.

I certify the above to be true

F.3:If the Disclosing Party is the Applicant, the Disclosing Party will obtain

from any contractors/subcontractors hired or to be hired in connection with

the Matter certifications equal in form and substance to those in F.1. and F.2.
above and will not, without the prior written consent of the City, use any such
contractor/subcontractor that does not provide such certifications or that the
Disclosing Party has reason to believe has not provided or cannot provide truthful
certifications.

I certify the above to be true
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FAMILIAL RELATIONSHIPS WITH ELECTED CITY OFFICIALS AND
DEPARTMENT HEADS

This question is to be completed only by (a) the Applicant, and (b) any legal entity
which has a direct ownership interest in the Applicant exceeding 7.5 percent. 1t is not
to be completed by any legal entity which has only an indirect ownership interest in
the Applicant.

Under Municipal Code Section 2-154-015, the Disclosing Party must disclose
whether such Disclosing Party or any "Applicable Party" or any Spouse or Domestic
Partner thereof currenftly has a "familial relationship" with any elected city official or
department head. A "familial relationship" exists if, as of the date this EDS is signed,
the Disclosing Party or any "Applicable Party" or any Spouse or Domestic Partner
thereof is related to the mayor, any alderman, the city cierk, the city treasurer or
any city department head as spouse or domestic partner or as any of the following,
whether by blood or adoption: parent, child, brother or sister, aunt or uncle, niece

or nephew, grandparent, grandchild, father-in-law, mother-in-law, son-in-law,
daughter-in-law, stepfather or stepmother, stepson or stepdaughter, stepbrother or
stepsister or half-brother or half-sister.

"Applicable Party" means (1) all corporate officers of the Disclosing Party, if

the Disclosing Party is a corporation; all partners of the Disclosing Party, if the
Disclosing Party is a general partnership; all general partners and.limited partners

of the Disclosing Party, if the Disclosing Party is a limited partnership; all managers,
managing members and members of the Disclosing Party, if the Disclosing Party is a
limited liability company; (2) all principal officers of the Disclosing Party; and (3) any
person having more than a 7.5 percent ownership interest in the Disclosing Party.
"Principal officers" means the president, chief operating officer, executive director,
chief financial officer, treasurer or secretary of a legal entity or any person .exercising
similar authority.

Does the Disclosing Party or any "Applicable Party" or any Spouse or Domestic
Partner thereof currently have a "familial relationship" with an elected city official or
department head?

No
ADDITIONAL INFO

Please add any additional explanatory information here. If explanation is longer than
1000 characters, you may add an attachment below. Please note that your EDS,
including all attachments, becomes available for public viewing upon contract award.
Your attachments will be viewable "as is" without manual redaction by the City. You
are responsible for redacting ariy non-public information from your documents before
uploading.
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List of vendor attachments uploaded by City staff
None.
List of attachments uploaded by vendor

None.,
CERTIFICATION

Under penalty of perjury, the person signing below: (1) warrants that he/she is
authorized to execute this EDS on behalf of the Disclosing Party, and (2) warrants
that all certifications and statements contained in this EDS are true, accurate and
complete as of the date furnished to the City.

Is/ 11/26/2013

Perry Gunn

Executive Director
North River Commission

This is a printed copy of the Economic Disclosure Statement, the original of which
is filed electronically with the City of Chicago. Any alterations must be made
electronically, alterations on this printed copy are void and of no effect.:

-13-



CERTIFICATE OF FILING FOR

CITY. OF CHICAGO ECONOMIC DISCLOSURE STATEMENT

EDS Number: 49817 Date of This Filing:11/26/2013 03:35 PM
Certificate Printed on: 12/02/2013 Original Filing Date:11/21/2013 11:12 AM
Disclosing Party: North River Commission Title:Executive Director

Filed by: Perry Gunn

Matter: Service Provider agreement with the
City of Chicago in order to provide special
services within SSA #60

Applicant: North River Commission
Specification #:

Contract #:

The Economic Disclosure Statement referenced above has been electronically filed with

the City. Please provide a copy of this Certificate of Filing to your city contact with other
required documents pertaining to the Matter. For additional guidance as to when to provide this
Certificate and other required documents, please follow instructions provided to you about the
Matter or consult with your City contact.

A copy of the EDS may be viewed and printed by visiting
https://webapps].cityofchicago.org/EDSWeb and entering the EDS number into the EDS
Search. Prior to contract award, the filing is accessible online only to the disclosing party and
the City, but is still subject to the Illinois Freedom of Information Act. The filing is visible
online to the public after contract award.



